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2021 FE kS ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the audited annual results and business
review for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period”) and future prospects for 2022 of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

Looking back on the past 2021, the economy continued to be
disrupted by the sluggish climate and the resurgent COVID-19
pandemic and failed to reach full recovery. However, after the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, China has been able to respond
to crises with more ease. It resisted the downward pressure on the
economy with more moderate and loose policies. Taking the global
lead in its control over the pandemic and the normalization of the
macro policies, China will continue to expand high-level opening-up to
realize rapid economic recovery and promote green development and
common prosperity.

2021 is an important turning point for the real estate industry.
While seeing the tightened market regulation policies, slower-paced
urbanization, decreasing demographic dividend, total industry volume
slipping from its peak, diverging cities and markets, and the intense
competition among real estate companies, the industry still has huge
opportunities in the future. After experiencing the era of land dividend
and the era of leverage dividend, the real estate industry is gradually
entering the era of management dividend, and will be certain to
embrace the era of brand dividend.

During the Reporting Period, the real estate industry fell into an
industrial downturn, as is shown by the increasingly tightened policies,
changing market environment and intense competition. Nonetheless,
the Group managed to achieve several breakthroughs in the areas of
operation, resources, quality and organization. Working hard toward
the development goal of “stable development, assured quality, risk
control and quality growth”, the Group steadily moved forward and
bucked the trend with growth, demonstrating strong organizational
resilience.
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In the aspect of business expansion, the Group has continued to stick
to the deployment strategy of “being rooted in Zhejiang, focusing on
the Yangtze River Delta, and extending to key hub cities of China” to
further expand quality land resources in cities with high development
In 2021,
about 5.811 million square meters (“sq.m.”) to its land reserves. In
2021,
of premium land acquired by means of bid, auction and listing and

potential. the Group expanded into 3 new cities, adding

the Group’s land expansion progressed well, with 32 parcels

purchase, merger and acquisition. Sticking to the principle of “setting
production capacity by sales and directing investment by production
capacity”, the Group controlled the land acquisition cost well through
diversified land acquisition methods. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group has a business network covering over 30 cities with 163
operating projects, among which the Group directly manages 151
projects, and holds high-quality land reserves (including reserves of
joint ventures and associates) of nearly 19.1 million sg.m., thus laying

a foundation for sustainable development of the Company.

In 2021, while with a moderate focus on and continuous efforts in
consolidating its leading position in the Yangtze River Delta region, the
Group also established its national presence in a stable manner and
achieved good results. During the Reporting Period, the Group kept a
strong momentum of business expansion and focused on the four core
metropolitan areas, namely, the Yangtze River Delta, Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, Chengdu-Chongging and the middle
reach area of Yangtze River. As of 31 December 2021, about 73% of
the Group’s land reserves are located in the first — and second-tier
cities, and about 26% of such reserves are located in the strong
third-tier cities, showing the proportion of land reserves in high
value-add cities was further improved. By precisely capturing the
housing demand in the core metropolitan areas during the process
of urbanization, the Group is injecting continuous momentum into its
high-quality development in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In terms of operating results, against the backdrop of tightening
regulatory policies and intensifying competition in the industry, the
Group adhered to a steady and sustainable development approach,
and achieved stable growth in scale and performance. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s full-caliber contracted
sales (including sales of joint ventures and associates) amounted to
approximately RMB73.98 billion, representing an increase of 16.45%
over 2020. Meanwhile, as banks tightened credit, the annual cash
collection rate of the Group exceeded 90%, increasing the safety
margin. The contracted sales area was approximately 73,980 million
sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 16.4% over 2020,
better than its industry counterparts. During the Reporting Period,
the Group recognized revenue of approximately RMB23.1 billion,
representing an increase of approximately 45.6% over 2020. The
Group’s net profit was approximately RMB2.38 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 5.1%. During the Reporting Period, net
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMBO0.94 billion, representing a decrease of approximately 21.1% over
the last year.

With respect to brand building and product operation, based on the
brand positioning of “Your Life Companion”, the Group adheres to
the bottom line of craftsmanship and quality and practices the brand
image of “Hangzhou workmanship”. During the Reporting Period, the
Group further standardized product quality and refined the full-cycle
quality control process to create different types of products. A product
portfolio comprised of “three product lines and five product series”
has been gradually formed, catering to different needs of first-time
homebuyers and non-first-time homebuyers. In addition, the Group
continued to innovate its product series this year, with its high-end
products receiving high popularity in the market. In response to the
“carbon neutrality” policy, the Group has developed the green and
healthy residential product series, which delivered an outstanding
performance, in particular, over 20 batches of projects were delivered
throughout the year, with an average 30-day delivery rate of over
90%. Besides, sales was successfully boosted through the adoption
of various new marketing strategies, including “Zhijiyun” (A2 %), a
one-stop online property purchasing platform of the Group, attracted
over 10 million visits.
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group won many honors and
rewards, including “China’s Top 10 Real Estate Companies in Annual
Financial Performance 2021” (2021 FHBREMEDSEFEIERIR 10
58), “China’s Top 10 Listed Real Estate Enterprises in Solvency 2021”
(2021 FHE FMERERZEES TOP10), “Leading ESG Companies
in Real Estate 2021” (2021 FEFEMEITHE ESC BEBEANRH) and
“China’s Top 50 Real Estate Brand 2021” (2021 FBEME R EE
50 3%). The Group has won the title of “China’s Top 100 Real Estate
Enterprises” for nine consecutive years, ranking the 55th in 2021.
These honors and awards highlight the Group’s market position and
indicate that the Group’s business development and performance
have been widely recognized by the capital market and customers.

In 2021, the Group strengthened its cooperation with financial
institutions, and entered into the green bond framework (SPO), which
marked a big step towards the implementation of the comprehensive
green concept. The Group focused on “integration of accounting and
operation” and promoted high-quality operation based on the overall
operation logic to achieve efficient control of cash flows. Meanwhile,
the Group maintained its commitment to public welfare by responding
to the call of national public welfare and charity to fulfill its corporate
social responsibility and continuously extend Dexin’s “confidant
warmth”, so as to bring warmth to the society sustainably, create
value and achieve a long-term all-win situation.

Looking into 2022, the real estate industry will still be the backbone of
the national economy in the long run. Dexin is of the view that as long
as it adheres to the operation quality, focuses on cash flow safety and
profit, provides products and services with craftsmanship, and builds
a healthy and efficient organization with heart, it could forge ahead.

In view of the changing market environment and tightening regulatory
controls, the Group will follow the future development direction
of the overall market. For market rules, it will strictly control risks,
maintain a sense of crisis at all times, continue to strengthen internal
control and refined management, and focus on the progressive
development priority of “cash flow, profit and brand”, so as to build
a new development path. Its future direction will be moderate focus
and further deepened development. It will stick to the strategic layout
of “being rooted in Zhejiang, focusing on the Yangtze River Delta, and
extending to key hub cities of China”, and adhere to the concept of
rational investment, in order to achieve balanced development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The new journey in 2022 has begun. Riding the tide of the times, the
Group will start from every minor detail to accept new challenges,
new opportunities and new development, and adhere to the pragmatic
business philosophy of “business operation is not a 100-meter sprint,
but a marathon” to always provide good products and services, which
is the trump card underlying the Group’s invincible position. Good
service is the cornerstone of winning more customers.

Finally, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
thanks to all the shareholders for their support to the Company and all
the employees for their hard work and efforts over the past year.

Chairman
Hu Yiping
13 May 2022
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWw RO

GENERAL OVERVIEW

In 2021, due to recurrence of COVID-19, governments of various
countries were committed to fighting against the pandemic. China is
one of the few countries whose overall economy has rebounded to the
pre-pandemic level during the pandemic. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of the PRC (the “National Bureau of Statistics”),
China’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) in 2021 amounted to
RMB114,367 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%,
showing a stable economic growth.

In the first half of 2021, the overall sales in the real estate market
were prosperous, while the overall demand in the domestic real estate
market in the second half of 2021 was weak, recording lower sales
growth as compared to the first half of 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2021, as shown by statistics from the National Bureau of
Statistics, total floor area of commercial housing sold increased by
1.9% year-on-year to 1,794.33 million sg.m.; average selling price of
commercial housing increased by 2.8% year-on-year to approximately
RMB10,139 per sg.m.; and total sales amounted to approximately
RMB18.19 trillion. Generally speaking, sales in the real estate market
in China were still showing an upward trend as compared to the
previous yeatr.

In respect of real estate policies, the central government was
determined to pursue the policy that “houses are for living in and not
for speculative investment” and the “three stabilisations” policy for
stabilizing the land premium, house price and market expectations.
Meanwhile, the central government accelerated the establishment of
a housing system with multiple house suppliers, various guarantee
channels, and houses for rent and purchase. The efforts aimed to
establish an effective system and assist the long-term, stable and
sound development of the real estate industry. At the same time,
regulators implemented a prudent financial management system
for the real estate industry, to promote better flow of financial
resources to the key areas and weak links of the real economy. Under
the regulatory policy of “centralized land supply”, the investment
transparency of land market improved, and real estate companies
need higher financial management and operation capacity. In general,
under the influence of the central government, funds and market
policies, the industry is expected to remain stable on the whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The year 2021 is the third year since the Group’s listing (the “Listing”).
With the support of shareholders and the unremitting efforts of
employees, the Group has insisted on optimizing and diversifying
its business development strategy, while constantly improving its
corporate strength. In the first half of 2021, the Group further improved
its revenue scale and profitability by virtue of nationwide layout, high
quality land reserves, efficient operations, targeted strategies and
high-quality products, achieving total revenue of RMB23,109.1 million
and gross profit of RMB5,010.8 million, a period-on-period growth
of 45.6% and 22.0% respectively, with a core profit of RMB3,499.3
million, a period-on-period growth of 16.1%. The sales performance
is also excellent, achieving full-caliber sales of RMB73,980.0 million in
2021, a year-on-year increase of 16.4%, reflecting the market’s high
recognition of the products and services of the Group.

In terms of expansion of land reserves, in 2021, the Company acquired
32 land parcels with an increased total gross floor area (“GFA”) of
approximately 5.81 million sgq.m. and 67% were located in first- and
second-tier cities. As of 31 December 2021, the Group operated
a total of 163 projects in 30 cities. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the total land reserves of approximately 19.13 million sg.m.
further consolidated the strategic layout in the four core metropolitan
areas, namely, the Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta, Chengdu-
Chongaing Double-city and the Middle Reaches of the Yangtze River
Economic Belt.
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWw RO

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of properties and,
to a lesser extent, property construction and project management
services, lease of commercial properties and hotel operations. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately RMB23,109.1 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 45.6%.

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
contracted sales of approximately RMB73,980 million (including
those of joint ventures and associates), representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 16.4%, and contracted GFA sales
of approximately 3,492,000 sg.m., representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 12.1%. The average selling price (“ASP”)
of our contracted sales for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB21,185.6 per sg.m., representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 3.8%.

Sales of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from sales
of properties increased by approximately 43.5% year-on-year to
approximately RMB22,269.3 million, accounting for approximately
96.4% of the total revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group recognised total GFA of approximately
1,301,740 sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 23.2%
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2020. The ASP of
the properties recognised as property sales was approximately
RMB17,107 per sg.m., representing an increase of approximately
16.5% year-on-year. The increase of ASP was mainly due to the
significant increase in the recognised GFA of areas with higher ASP.

Based in Zhejiang Province, the Group focused on the Yangtze River
Delta and extended to key hub cities of China.
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The following table sets out the recognised sales and GFA sold of RXR&FIEHZE2021F12A31HLEFESHT

each city for the year ended 31 December 2021: EHRAHEERDEEEEE
Recognised
Recognised ASP
GFA SR Recognised
ERER FHEE revenue
EEMEE RMB/sq.m. =2 ON
sq.m. AR®x RMB’000
City B I K 75K AR¥ET T
Hangzhou LA 279,822 25,909 7,249,843
Ningbo =R 204,430 23,159 4,734,434
Wenzhou BN 339,160 13,597 4,611,721
Huzhou N 149,726 18,716 2,802,327
Shangrao i 212,051 6,966 1,477,062
Wuhan Bz 40,478 9,876 399,756
Xuzhou AN 23,942 15,210 364,159
Taizhou &M 30,962 11,093 343,458
Nanjing MR 21,169 13,537 286,571
Total st 1,301,740 17,107 22,269,331
Note: Mzt -

Recognised revenue in the above table includes the revenue from residences, FXREHERWABIEEET  HE¥f - EEH L
commercial spaces, car parks and storage spaces, and recognised GFA does HEZEFTEWA - MEBREZEREITE2EEESB M

not include the GFA of car parks and storage spaces. HEENRERE -
Property construction and project management MEREREEHEERRKE
services

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from property & E2021F 12831 HILFE @ WEEENIE
construction and project management services increased by BEERBWARLIEINL1,086.2%EH AR
approximately 1,086.2% vyear-on-year to approximately RMB437.7 #6437 7H BT (hAEELWAKH1.9%
million, accounting for approximately 1.9% of the total revenue of the HAEEMTIERHNRMRERBEEETERS
Group. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in the B8 H SE 8 ATIEMNFTE -

volume of our construction and project management services for our

projects in operation.
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Management and consulting service income

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from management
and consulting service income increased by approximately 11.0%
year-on-year to approximately RMB227.8 million, accounting for
approximately 1.0% of the total revenue of the Group. The increase
was primarily attributable to (i) an increase in the number of joint
ventures and associates to which the services were provided for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to the previous year; and
(i) the larger scale of certain projects of joint ventures and associates
served for the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to the
previous year.

Lease of commercial properties

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from rental
income increased by approximately 40.0% year-on-year to
approximately RMB140.6 million, accounting for approximately 0.6% of
the total revenue of the Group. The increase was primarily attributable
to the leasing out of Hangzhou ONE (#1/l/ONE) tenants in Hangzhou
during the year while no GFA was leased out in the corresponding
period in 2020.

Hotel operations

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from hotel
operations increased by approximately 86.8% year-on-year to
approximately RMB33.6 million, accounting for approximately 0.1% of
the total revenue of the Group. The increase was primarily attributable
to the increase of occupancy rate for the year ended 31 December
2021 as compared to the previous year.

14
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Investment properties REWE

The following table sets out a summary of the Group’s investment FERFIIRN2021F12 831 BAREERE Y E
properties as at 31 December 2021: ZHE

Total Rental Income

for the year ended

Total GFA December 31,
Held for Leased BER2ANNELFED
Investment (c] . HEWARE
BEREMN EHEE 2021 2020
BEEER [ 20214 20204
City Project (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
W A (FHK) (FAXK) | (AR%Fr) | (AR%¥FR)
Hangzhou
M
1 Artificial Intelligence Industrial Park 75,634 64,013 68,187 64,375
AEXE
2 Elegant Mansion 33,278 = - =
NEER
<) Sky City Phase | 41,422 36,664 - -
REZE-H
4 Hangzhou ONE 17,5636 17,536 9,553 =
IMONE
9 Hangzhou Wings 24,865 11,326 10,150 6,242
Mz &
6 Dexin Konggang City (Note 1) 107,345 - - -
Bz Em (1)
7 Sky City Apartment 11,224 - - -
REZERNE
8 Binwangzhichen (Note 1) 12,740 = - =
EEZR (FE)
9 Fuchunyunzhuang (Note 1) 2,062 = - =
EEZH (1)
10 Dexin Center (Note 1) 21,000 - - -
Bl (FE1)
Huzhou
M
11 Delan Square 13,082 7,828 3,598 3,871
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Total Rental Income

for the year ended

Total GFA December 31,
Held for Leased BE12AS1ALFEN
Investment GFA HeWARE
BEREN cHEHE 2021 2020
BEEER [ 2021 2020
City Project (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
W HH (FHK) (F5K) | (AR¥TR) | (AR%¥TR)
Xuzhou
12 Sky Scraper A 21,417 18,012 2,024 379
NEEBAR
13 Sky Scraper B 51,274 9,588 3,686 2,789
BB R
14 Sky Scraper Hongjun and Zijun 11,727 9,718 1,300 -
TBEIAL A R 5 ED
Taizhou
=0
15 Shenxian Garden (Note 2) 51,663 7,544 356 264
BB E LR (Pit2)
Shanghai
LE
16 Shanghai Songjiang Industrial Park 58,176 34,389 2,173 2,982
HEMITER
Nanjing
AR
17 Nanjing Xianlinzhigu Industrial Park 60,510 - - -
HRIHERERE
614,955 189,363 101,027 80,902
Other rental income 39,563 19,515
HipHelA
Total @t 140,590 100,417
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Note 1: As at 31 December 2021, the property was under development.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2021, part of the property was under
development.

The Group will further improve the efficiency in development and
operation of its investment properties to ensure stable rental income
growth, and to strengthen earnings sustainability.

Land reserves

Leveraging on the Group’s deep understanding of the property
markets in our key development areas and intensive studies on its
target cities, the Group continued to strategically select and acquire
parcels of land at strategic and advantageous locations in those
regions and cities in order to further develop the Group’s presence
in those markets. As of 31 December 2021, the Group (together with
its joint ventures and associates) had 163 projects with land reserves
amounting to approximately 19,130,180 sqg.m., of which 138 projects
were located in the Yangtze River Delta Region, and the remaining 25
projects were located in the Pearl River Delta, Chengdu-Chongging
economic areas, the economic belt of middle reaches of Yangtze River
and other regions.

The following table sets out the GFA of the Group’s land reserves
(together with its joint ventures and associates) by geographical
locations as of 31 December 2021:

BEE W N DT

Biit1: H2021F128318  ZWEERET -

Kiato: H2021%12831H @ SinmEERES -

AEERE - FPREREVENHERELK
LR BEESWARERE - MREFA

T it

IR BB R E IS AR LRI K
HERBRMAREARE  NEEBEBESE T
BEWWEZ SR R A HE M EE
BT EME—PHEAEERZETS
B - BIE2021F12A318 » K&EE (&
REASESEREENR))163EEE AL bRH
H#519,130,180F 7K » EAr138{EE B fu
REZAE - R TH25EEE HBINREK=
A REEREEERR TR FEES SR

TEREHAEE CEREALEDERBERA])
HE2021F12 A1 BEEHMIBEMNEE o i
M -
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Total Land Percentage of

reserves GFA total land bank

=+ b 1+t GE

BMEREER 4 8 L4

(sg.m.) (%)

City W (EFHK) (%)
Hangzhou AN 5,330,617 27.9%
Wenzhou BN 1,888,952 9.9%
Ningbo B 1,718,866 9.0%
Chengdu B ED 1,516,876 7.9%
Nanjing B 1,311,912 6.9%
Taizhou &M 1,096,364 5.7%
Xuzhou RN 1,001,947 5.2%
Jiujiang T 840,380 4.4%
Huzhou S 811,582 4.2%
Wuhan Oz 664,209 3.5%
Foshan @1 375,890 2.0%
Quzhou BN 368,982 1.9%
Guangzhou = 360,334 1.9%
Zhengzhou ZL N 311,132 1.6%
Jingjiang UpaN 242,981 1.3%
Wuhu N 212,875 1.1%
Shanghai ! 210,063 1.1%
Zhangzhou E N 201,039 1.1%
Kunshan B 156,153 0.8%
Zhoushan Al 129,161 0.7%
Xian [iig:3 124,221 0.6%
Suzhou ERIN 100,012 0.5%
WuUXi m55 87,390 0.5%
Shangrao i 44,317 0.2%
New Jersey, U.S. ZRUFTEF N 17,583 0.1%
Changzhou BM 5,609 0.0%
Jinhua I 735 0.0%
Total et 19,130,180 100.0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group (together with & E2021FE12A31HILFE » AEE (ER
its joint ventures and associates) acquired 32 parcels of quality land HAZPERBENT) AEFHKHOARE
primarily in Hangzhou, Wenzhou, Huzhou, Ningbo, Nanjing, Wuhan, 5,550.9 70K £ AR T = B A
Chengdu, Guangzhou, Taizhou, and Zhengzhou, providing a total N ~ &M ~ 3 « B3 « @R ~ BUZ -« BED -
saleable GFA of new land reserves of approximately 5,810,625 sq.m., B/ + &M REINK 2B EE 1R - 124 T4

at an average land cost of approximately RMB5,550.9 per sq.m.. Al EEEEEL5,810,625F 5 K # £ Hb
- FHAIRANRET T HKARKS,550.9
IT o
Particulars of the land parcels are set out in the following table: HIRE BB BEEHIIRN T

Average

Land Cost

The Group's Attributable ¥

Equity GFA Consideration THEA

Interest BEEE EERE (RMB/sg.m.)

Name of Project City AEEW (sq.m.) (RMB’ 000) (AE#7,/

R W Bz (EEK) (AR®TT) FHK)

1 Binwang Zhichen Hangzhou 66.69% 150,603 557,255 5,548.3
BEIR M

2 Chengdu Dayi Project Chengdu 60.00% 108,552 138,867 2,132.1
KEAREIER P

8 Hangzhou Dingajiao Project Hangzhou 34.65% 174,487 513,523 8,493.6
MMTHBER M

4 Tianjiao Zhichen Chengdu 50.00% 75,243 325,074 8,640.7
RBLR P

0 Hangzhou Beiganxi Project Hangzhou 20.00% 40,863 148,168 18,129.8
MM FAER M

6 Wenchen Mansion Ningbo 46.42% 85,605 421,942 10,618.1
XIRfF B

7 Taizhou Xin Fei Long Hu Project Taizhou 40.00% 236,370 975,200 10,314.3
AaMFRENER am

8 Yunchen Mansion Ningbo 87.50% 22,928 58,100 2,896.0

9 Wuhan East and West Lake Land Parcel Wuhan 49.24% 254,610 472,704 3,770.5
BRI BE

10 Changshan Land Parcel Quzhou 45.95% 201,132 337,273 3,649.3
HilR N
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Average

Land Cost

The Group's Attributable ¥

Equity GFA Consideration THRA

Interest BEER EERE (RMB/sq.m.)

Name of Project City KEEM (sq.m.) (RMB’ 000) (AR¥T/

BREH B i (FHR) (AR¥TT) F5HK)

il Zhongyi Ningbo Ecological Garden Ningbo 45.23% 578,973 207,153 791.1

Land Parcel

12 Tonglu Fuchun Future City Land Parcel Hangzhou 75.25% 181,571 1,097,296 8,031.0
HEEERRAR M

13 Qicai Weilai Community Project Hangzhou 70.00% 323,295 1,016,260 4,490.6
TR ARKIRIER M

14 Pingyang Kunyang Town No.AB Wenzhou 37.14% 193,226 336,637 4,690.9

Land Parcel

TIERGHEAB R B

15 Wuhu City Dongwanchun Land Parcel Wuhu 30.08% 212,875 349,624 5,400.5
EHRREFMR i

16 53 acres of Yuyao Zhongyi Land Parcel Ningbo 65.00% 97,566 76,053 1,199.2
RkP B3I IR 34

17 Yunzhi Chenli Quzhou 49.00% 157,758 463,393 5,994.6
EVRE (T

18 Dali Town Land Parcel, Nanhai District Foshan 27.44% 209,290 568,557 10,246.3
HEE A FHE MR Ll

19 Huangpu Knowledge City E2 Land Parcel Guangzhou 25.00% 95,777 299,055 13,030.2
B AMBE2 I8 BM

20 Suogian Unit XSCQ3005-25 Land Parcel Hangzhou 90.30% 183,571 1,431,797 8,637.5
FT A1 % JLXSCQ3005-253 % M

21 Wukang Street 2020-016 Land Parcel Huzhou 94.43% 219,211 1,319,782 6,088.5
B R AE2020-0161 5 M

22 Shizi Tianmu West Land Parcel Hangzhou 20.04% 113,587 164,000 6,498.3
TFREAMR M

23 Lishui Chengnan Land Parcel Nanjing 29.00% 171,726 300,150 6,153.3
BRI R MR

24 Zhangzhou Project Zhangzhou 28.70% 201,039 379,437 6,292.3
EINIER B
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Average

Land Cost

The Group'’s Attributable ¥

Equity GFA Consideration THRA

Interest BEER EERE (RMB/sq.m.)

Name of Project City KEE (sq.m.) (RMB’ 000) (AR%T,/

BR£H B i (FAR) (AR¥TT) F5HK)

25 64.4 acres of Qingbaijiang Project Chengdu 50.00% 98,660 109,515 24215
BEBI64.48IEE R

26 108 acres of Longquanyi Project Chengdu 50.00% 225,187 651,535 5,786.6
ERE108HIAE A

27 Zhengzhou Project Zhengzhou 32.50% 311,132 209,754 2,081.8
INER EH

28 Nanxun Land Parcel Huzhou 41.00% 240,365 360,390 3,666.9
2R M

29 Taizhou Guanlan Mansion Taizhou 34.00% 246,722 99,620 1,187.6
AMERRT aM

30 Wenling Land Parcel Taizhou 36.04% 206,682 720,800 9,676.7
BB A M

31 Xinhe Village Laoshifang Land Parcel 1 Hangzhou 100.00% 133,976 635,680 4,744.7
AR ETE 1R M

32 Qiaoxi Gongchengiao Unit GS0609-12 Hangzhou 60.00% 58,043 542,020 23,345.7

Land Parcel

B RE S TGS0609-123015% M

5,810,625 15,276,614 5,550.9

HONORS BRE

During the Reporting Period, the Group won many honors and
awards, including “China’s Top 10 Real Estate Companies in Annual
Financial Performance 2021” (2021 £ BEME D EFEHERIR 10
58), “China’s Top 10 Listed Real Estate Enterprises in Solvency 2021”
(2021 FHE FMEMREEEESND TOP10), “Leading ESG Companies
in Real Estate 2021” (2021 FEFMETTH ESG REKADRE) and
“China’s Top 50 Real Estate Brand 2021” (2021 HEE#E REEE
50 5%). The Group has won the title of “China’s Top 100 Real Estate
Enterprises” for nine consecutive years, ranking the 55th in 2021.
These honors and awards highlight the Group’s market position and
indicate that the Group’s business development and performance
have been widely recognized by the capital market and customers.

MEHAN  AEBLE2021FFREED
XFRUBRI108 ] - [2021FHE EHFER
BEEEHNTOPI10]  [2021 FEEHETTEESG
EAREADE | [2021 R EEHEREEES
WIEETHRE  WEENFRE[REFHE
AR IR - 2021 FAI[FEHEL5H o BLEE
BEBBTR T ASBNTMSHA - RALXE
EXBERREERAGIEATSERE,H
BZ R -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall performance

During the year ended 31 December 2021, total revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB23,109.1 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 45.6%. Gross profit was approximately
RMB5,010.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 22.0%. Gross profit margin was approximately 21.7%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 4.2 percentage
points. Net profit of the Group increased by approximately 5.1% year-
on-year to approximately RMB2,376.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 21.1% year-on-year to approximately
RMB941.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a total
revenue of approximately RMB23,109.1 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 45.6%. The increase was primarily
attributable to the growth in recognised sales of properties, driven by
an increase of the total GFA delivered to the buyers during the year.
Specifically, revenue from the sales of properties was approximately
RMB22,269.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 43.5%, accounting for approximately 96.4% of the
total revenue of the Group; revenue from property construction
and project management services was approximately RMB437.7
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
1,086.2%, accounting for approximately 1.9% of the total revenue
of the Group; revenue from management and consulting services
was approximately RMB227.8 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 11.0%, accounting for approximately
1.0% of the total revenue of the Group; rental income from the lease
of commercial properties was approximately RMB140.6 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 40.0%,
accounting for approximately 0.6% of the total revenue of the Group;
and revenue from hotel operations was approximately RMB33.6
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 86.8%,
accounting for approximately 0.1% of the total revenue of the Group.
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Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group primarily consists of the costs incurred
directly in relation to the property development and sales activities,
property construction and project management services, lease of

commercial properties and hotel operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of sales of the Group
was approximately RMB18,098.3 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 53.8%.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
Group was approximately RMB5,010.8 million,

the gross profit of the
representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 22.0%. The increase was
primarily attributable to the significant increase in revenue from
sales of properties while overall gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 25.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately 21.7% for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease in overall gross profit margin by approximately 4.2
percentage points was mainly due to the lower land and construction

cost incurred for projects delivered in 2020.

Other income

The Group recorded other income of approximately RMB159.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, as compared to approximately
RMB125.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The other
income mainly included interest income from related parties and third
parties of RMB103.2 million and income of guarantee provided for
the borrowings of joint ventures and associates of RMB25.8 million,
respectively (for the year ended 31 December 2020: interest income
from related parties and third parties of RMB97.7 million and income
of guarantee provided for the borrowings of joint ventures and
associates of nil, respectively)

BEE W N DT

AEBNHERATZERMERENEER
B WERENEBEERY BEVEAES
FBEEEERELRKA

HEC021FE12A31HILFE - REFEMNEE
A B ANE18,098.3AE T BILLIE AL
53.8% °

EF
HZE2021F12A31BIEFE > KEBWE
MEHARES 01088 T AELERY

22.0% - B MEZRARHEEMENKA
RIBIEINFTER - ERSERERNEHEZE2020F
12831 HIEFEML25.9% /M EEHE2021F
1231 BIEFEERND21.7% o BEEFNKR T
W42 BE D EZEHMN2020F XNIBRE
AR I RIEERANBRIEFTE o

Het g A

HZE2021F12A31BEFE » AEEESFSE
HBRALHAREE159.7EHE T - BE2020F12
A1 AIFERSEBHOARK1267TEET -
HthWAFZERIEREBEH RE=HAREBEA
RE1032EBTHFERARREELER
B N RERIRBERHORAARK2585E
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T)o
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Other losses - net

The Group recorded net other losses of approximately RMB99.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31
December 2020: net other losses of approximately RMB8.3 million).
The Group’s net other losses for the year ended 31 December 2021
mainly included losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately RMB68.2 million, disposal gains of subsidiaries
approximately RMB12.7 million and exchange losses of approximately
RMB37.5 million. The Group’s net other losses for the year ended 31
December 2020 mainly included gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB17.9 million, disposal gains
of subsidiaries approximately RMB24.5 million and exchange losses of
approximately RMB56.4 million.

Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties

The Group develops and holds certain of its commercial properties
such as commercial centres, office buildings, shopping malls, serviced
apartments and car parks for rental income or capital appreciation,
or both. Any increase or decrease in the Group’s investment property
value is recognised as fair value gains or losses in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded fair value
gains on investment properties of approximately RMB54.3 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2020: fair value losses on investment
properties of approximately RMB26.7 million), which was primarily
attributable to the fair value gains of Artificial Intelligence Industrial
Park (A.LEEZ[E) of approximately RMB71.4 million while offset by
the fair value losses of Hangzhou ONE (#1/NONE) of approximately
RMB12.2 million.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately 42.1% year-on-year from approximately RMB457.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB650.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Taking
the selling and marketing expenses that were capitalized in contract
acquisition costs into account, total selling and marketing expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2021 increased, compared to the
previous year. The increase was primarily attributable to rapid growth
in the Group’s contracted sales during the year.
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
19.6% year-on-year from approximately RMB746.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB892.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was primarily
attributable to (i) the increase in staff costs; and (i) the increase in
other tax expenses driven by the increase in the Group’s contracted
sales during the year.

Finance costs - net

Finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately 46.2% year-
on-year from approximately RMB481.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB258.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. The decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the
overall decrease in net finance costs of interest-bearing debts, as
increase in finance costs due to increase in interest-bearing debts was
offset by significant increase in capitalized interest due to increase
in number of projects under construction during the year ended 31
December 2021; and (i) the increase of finance income for bank
deposits from approximately RMB69.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB134.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The Group accounts for the results of joint ventures and associates
using the equity method, which mainly represent the share of profits
related to the projects delivered during the relevant period that have
been offset by losses incurred by other joint ventures and associates.

Share of profits of joint ventures and associates decreased by
approximately 50.9% year-on-year from approximately RMB592.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB291.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the decrease of average gross
profit margin of the properties delivered by the joint ventures and
associates during the year ended 31 December 2021 compared to the
previous year and hence the decrease of total net profits recognised
by the joint ventures and associates and (i) the decrease in average
percentage of the Group’s interests held in the joint ventures and
associates which delivered properties during the year ended 31
December 2021 compared to the previous year.
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Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group increased by approximately 46.4%
year-on-year from approximately RMB845.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB1,237.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was primarily attributable to the
increase in the profit before tax (after excluding share of results of joint
ventures and associates) during the year.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

As a result of the foregoing reasons, the Group’s profit and total
comprehensive income increased by approximately 5.1% from
approximately RMB2,260.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB2,376.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 21.1% from approximately RMB1,192.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB941.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company was
RMBO0.35 per share for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease of approximately 20.5% from RMBO0.44 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management policy
and actively manages its liquidity position with sufficient standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and any demands for
capital for future development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group funded its
operations, working capital, capital expenditure and other capital
requirements primarily from cash generated from its operations, mainly
including proceeds from the pre-sales and sales of properties, receipt
of rental income, income generated from investment properties, as
well as bank loans and borrowings from other financial institutions.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash of approximately RMB17,563.2
million as compared to approximately RMB15,648.2 million as of 31
December 2020. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
proceeds from sales of properties. Substantially all of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Renminbi (“‘RMB”), U.S.
dollar (“USD”) and HK dollar (“‘HKD”).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, addition of borrowings
from banks and other financial institutions obtained by the Group
amounted to approximately RMB27,009.1 million and reduction
of borrowings from banks and other financial institutions was
approximately RMB22,348.4 million. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group’s total borrowings from bank and other financial institutions
amounted to approximately RMB30,348.8 million, representing
an increase of approximately 18.1% compared to approximately
RMB25,688.1 million as of 31 December 2020. As of 31 December
2021, bank and other borrowings of the Group which were bearing
at floating rates amounted to approximately RMB12,524,409,950,
compared to approximately RMB9,694,957,323 as of 31 December
2020. Amongst the borrowings from banks and other financial
institutions, approximately RMB15,216.1 million (as at 31 December
2020: approximately RMB8,738.5 million) will be repayable within one
year and approximately RMB15,132.8 million (as at 31 December
2020: approximately RMB16,949.6 million) will be repayable after one
year.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had total facilities from banks
and other financial institutions of approximately RMB35,027 million
and unused facilities from bank and other financial institutions of
approximately RMB2,531 million.

Credit rating

Our international credit rating agencies endorsed the efforts of the
Company in sales execution, satisfactory cash collection record and
disciplined land acquisition. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Lianhe Ratings Global assigned the
Company’s issuer credit rating at “B” (with “Negative” outlook), “B2”
(with “Stable” outlook) and “BB-" (with “Stable” outlook) respectively.
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Senior notes

In January 2021, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$150 million due in December 2022 (the “2022 Senior
Notes II") which were listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
40497) on 14 January 2021. The 2022 Senior Notes Il, bearing interest
at a fixed rate of 9.95% per annum with interest payable semi-annually
in arrears, will mature in December 2022.

The issuance of the 2022 Senior Notes Il was for the purpose of
supplementing existing onshore indebtedness, refinancing working
capital purposes and repayment of existing offshore indebtedness.

Key financial ratios

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s net gearing ratio (calculated
as the total interest-bearing debts net of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents divided by total equity) was approximately 60.5%, a
decrease of 14.5 percentage points as compared with approximately
75.0% as of 31 December 2020. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the slight increase in percentage of borrowings for land
acquisition and property development while offset by more increase in
percentage of total equity during the year. The financial leverage of the
Group is currently at a stable and healthy level.

The Group’s current ratio was calculated based on its total current
assets divided by its total current liabilities as of the respective dates.
The Group’s current ratio had slightly decreased from approximately
1.38 times as of 31 December 2020 to approximately 1.31 times as of
31 December 2021.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates its business in China. Other than the
foreign currency denominated bank deposits, bank borrowings
and senior notes, the Group did not have any other material direct
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations for the year ended 31
December 2021. Although RMB depreciated against USD and HKD in
2021, the Directors expect that such fluctuation of the RMB exchange
rate would not have material adverse effects on the operation of the
Group.
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The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate risk regularly and
make foreign exchange hedging arrangement when necessary. The
Group considers that no foreign exchange hedging arrangement is
currently needed.

Pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s borrowings from
bank and other financial institutions were secured by its properties
held for sale, properties under development, land use rights
and investment properties, with carrying value of approximately
RMB42,976.3 million as of 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB31,585.7 million). The Group’s equity interests in
certain subsidiaries were pledged as security for borrowing as at 31
December 2021.

Commitments

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments that are
contracted but not provided as follows:
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December 31,
2021
20214

December 31,
2020

20204
12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AR T )

12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AR®T )

Property development activities VIR EESD 14,322,280 12,320,814
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB R 22,593 11,029
Investments in joint ventures and associates A& E 1 R L N RIKE 1,970,372 1,313,398
Investment properties REYE 87,708 198,992
Total &t 16,402,953 13,844,233
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Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities

HE2021F12A31 8 "EBNMBKIERE
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As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s total financial guarantees are
as follows:

December 31,
2021
20214

December 31,
2020

20204
12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AR¥T )

12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AR®T )

Guarantee in respect of mortgage METERNIZBERE

facilities for certain purchasers TR A EIR 17,182,006 14,605,341
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of L& &% KBS N A&k

joint ventures and associates R AR 5,100,166 3,181,893
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of  BLEA%E A IEHIM B EE £

entity controlled by Mr. Hu RLAER 80,000 =
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of ~ BL—ZE = H{EFIRHAER

a third party 550,000 =
Total &t 22,912,172 17,787,234

The Group has arranged bank mortgage financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided guarantees
to the relevant banks to secure repayment obligations of such
purchasers. As of 31 December 2021, the maximum amount of
guarantees provided by the Group to the relevant banks for the
mortgage arrangements of the Group’s purchasers amounted
to approximately RMB17,182.0 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB14,605.3 million). These include guarantees
which will be terminated upon the earlier of the following two dates:
() the date on which the property ownership rights are transferred
to the purchasers, and the related building ownership certificates to
which banks are beneficiaries are registered, or (i) the date on which
mortgage loans are settled between the mortgagee banks and the
purchasers, under the circumstance that the purchasers pay off the
purchase price in advance.
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Pursuant to the terms of these guarantees, if any of the Group’s
property purchasers default in their repayment obligations to the
banks, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principal together with accrued interest and penalty owed
by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and thereupon the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the relevant
property units. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the mortgage facilities to its purchasers by the relevant banks.

The Group provided guarantees for borrowings of its joint ventures
and associates, which amounted to approximately RMB5,100.2
million as of 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB3,181.9 million). The relevant borrowings were primarily from
banks to finance property development projects of these joint ventures
and associates, whereby the land use rights of the joint ventures and
associates were pledged to the banks and the Group’s guarantee was
provided in addition to the pledges. As the fair value of the relevant
land use rights pledged by the relevant joint ventures and associates
are generally higher than the borrowing amounts, the Group’s credit
risk exposure associated with such guarantee is contained.

As of 31 December 2021, save as disclosed above, the Group had no
other material contingent liabilities.

Significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures

As of 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any individual
investments with a fair value of 5% or more of its total assets.
Accordingly, the Group did not hold any significant investments during
the Reporting Period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into
the following material acquisitions and disposals:

On 21 May 2021, Zhangzhou Jingfa Properties Co., Ltd., (a
company established under the laws of the PRC with limited liability)
(“Zhangzhou Jingfa”), Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (a limited
liability company established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), Hangzhou Decheng Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd., (a company established under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Decheng”) and
Zhangzhou Wanjia Properties Co., Ltd. (a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Zhangzhou Jingfa (the “Project Company”’) entered into the
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which Hangzhou Decheng agreed
to contribute RMB37,140,000 to the registered capital of the Project
Company, after which the Project Company will be held by Zhangzhou
Jingfa and Hangzhou Decheng as to 35% and 65%, respectively.

On 29 June 2021, Dexin Property Commercial Group Co., Ltd. (being
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (‘Dothink Group”)
and Dexin Holding Group Limited (“Dexin Holding”) entered into
the Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Dexin Property
Commercial Group Co., Ltd. agreed to transfer 100% of the equity
interest in the Hangzhou Changying Commercial Management Co.,
Ltd. (the “Target Company”) to Dexin Holding at a consideration
of RMB56,799,000. Upon completion of the transaction, the Target
Company will cease to be a subsidiary of Dothink Group and the
Company.

On 29 June 2021, Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (“Dexin Real
Estate”) and Zhejiang Qingjiao Cultural Development Co., Ltd.
entered into the Guarantee Fee Agreement where the loan amounted
to RMB100,000,000 and being corporate guaranteed by Dexin Real
Estate.
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Pursuant to the Guarantee Fee Agreement:

(1) The parties agreed that the amount of the Guarantee will be
capped at RMB100 million; and

(2) Zhejiang Qingjiao Cultural Development Co., Ltd. will pay the
Guarantee Fee to Dexin Property Commercial Group Co., Ltd.
of 1.0% per annum of the outstanding bank balance of the
Guarantee until the Loan is fully settled by the said subsidiary of
Hangzhou Changying Commercial Management Co., Ltd..

For further details of the aforesaid material acquisitions and disposals,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 May
2021 and 29 June 2021, respectively. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same meanings
as defined in the aforesaid announcements.

Save as aforesaid, there was no other material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures by the Group
during the Reporting Period.

Future plans for material investments

The Group will continue to invest in its property development projects
and acquire suitable land parcels, if it thinks fit. These investments
will be funded by internal resources and external borrowings. Save as
disclosed above, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investments as of the date of this annual report.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group firmly believes that talent is the most important corporate
resource and always adheres to a people-oriented human resources
development strategy, creating a sound working environment featuring
harmonious development and positive interaction between the Group
and its staff. As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 2,476
(31 December 2020: 2,147) employees, around 60% of whom have a
bachelor’s degree or above, forming a team of young, highly educated
and high-quality personnel. Total expenditure on salary and welfare
of the Group’s employees for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately RMB860.6 million (for the year ended 31
December 2020: approximately RMB636.2 million).

Besides, the Group endeavors to establish an incentive system
aligned to the corporate development objective to improve employee
engagement. Meanwhile, with an aim to establish an open-ended
organization, the Group keeps optimizing the organizational structure,
empowering the base-level employees and improving efficiency.

The Group has adopted a system of determining the remuneration of
employees based on the performance of employees. In general, the
Group provides competitive remuneration packages to employees,
which include basic salaries, performance-based rewards and year-
end bonus. The Group also pays social security insurance for its
employees, including medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
endowment insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment insurance
and housing funds. In addition, the Group has formulated a project
co-investment scheme and has adopted a share option scheme on
11 January 2019 to fully enhance the enthusiasm of the Group’s
employees.

In respect of employee trainings, the Group provides consistent
and systematic trainings to employees according to their positions
and expertise in order to improve their expertise in the real estate
industry and related sectors. As of 31 December 2021, the Group
provided 228 in-class trainings or professional lectures, to a total of
approximately 2,476 employees.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2022, the real estate policy will continue to adhere
to the keynote of “housing is used for living, not for speculation” and
“stabilizing the land premium, house price and market expectations”,
and the real estate market will continue to develop in a healthy, stable
and rational manner. Led by the current housing policy, the leveraged
operation model with high debt over the past is no longer sustainable.
The Group will develop high-quality products as its goal, strictly
control relevant operational, financial and liquidity risks, and adhere to
the operating philosophy of marathon to achieve quality growth.

The Yangtze River Delta Region, as the largest economic circle in
China, accounts for approximately one-fourth of the country’s GDP.
The Group has been focusing on the Yangtze River Delta Region
for years, and will continue to seize the development opportunities
in the region by leveraging on its local brand advantages, while
expanding into other core and potential cities in China. The Group
will always adhere to the philosophy of high-quality and standardized
construction operation in the manufacturing industry, rely on years of
extensive experience in development, management and operational
capabilities, continue to expand into cities with diversified development
potential, support the future sales growth of the Company with high-
efficiency operation as well as sell-through and cash collection rates
outperforming the market level, and also respond to changes and
control risks with prudent judgment.

The Group will continue to emphasize the quality management concept
of “doing a good job of internal skills, developing steadily, sticking
to customer needs as the center, and creating value for customers”,
and adhere to the quality image of “Hangzhou workmanship”. Against
the backdrop of the central government’s general policy of stabilizing
housing price, land premium and expectation and centralized land
supply, the Group will persist in the steady development, adhere to
the layout of “based in Zhejiang, established presence in the Yangtze
River Delta Region and expanded coverage in the core cities of the
four metropolitan areas”, stick to prudent financing, optimize the
capital structure, continue to improve financing costs, deepen the
“selective and strategic” capital cooperation strategy, so as to achieve
a balanced development of scale, profit and brand, achieve quality
and steady growth, and bring long-term and stable investment returns
to all investors.
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The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the Group’s FXRHHIIAEE CERIAALDELBENT)
land reserves (together with its joint ventures and associates) by EZ2021F12A31HIZMIENEE St
geographical location as of 31 December 2021: B EEmERMA -

Held for
Under future Total
Completed development | development | land reserves

BRI B | BIERRAER | tHEELE

ENEL) (¢]
Saleable | GFA held for under Planned

GFA unsold investment | development GFA Percentage
EEREN
AETHE THE EET
BEER BEEE BEEE | RUBEER | 2R2%ER 4]
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FEX) (FEX) (FFEX) (FEX) (FFEK)

Real estate projects developed KB 2 FBEH

by our subsidiaries NEER
Hangzhou iRl 133,743 206,943 2,791,647 58,043 3,190,375 16.7%
Wenzhou M 65,608 17,071 1,328,819 - 1,411,498 7.4%
Ningbo BR 41,780 = 618,270 578,973 1,239,023 6.5%
Chengdu P 26 - - 571,647 - 571,647 3.0%
Nanjing BR 32,893 60,509 910,822 - 1,004,224 5.2%
Taizhou aM 30,870 15,755 759,716 = 806,341 4.2%
Xuzhou wM 32,251 64,821 518,294 - 615,366 3.2%
Huzhou A 14,554 44,984 487,830 - 547,368 2.9%
Wuhan B 31,306 = 400,571 = 431877 2.3%
Foshan il - - 88,903 - 88,903 0.5%
Quzhou BN - - 201,132 - 201,132 1.1%
Jingfiang BT = = 242,081 = 242,981 1.3%
Shanghai i - 58,176 77,702 - 135,877 0.7%
Kunshan = - - 156,153 = 156,153 0.8%
Zhoushan Fi - - 91,340 = 91,340 0.5%
Xi'an [iif:s - - 124,221 - 124,221 0.6%
Suzhou M - - 100,012 = 100,012 0.5%
Wuxi i3 = = 87,390 = 87,390 0.5%
Shangrao I8 44,317 = - - 44,317 0.2%
Sub-total Nt 427,322 468,258 9,557,449 637,016 11,090,045 58.0%
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Held for
Under future Total
Completed development | development | land reserves
E%I R | BERRER | tHREAE
Rentable (¢].
Saleable | GFA held for under
GFA unsold investment | development Percentage
FEREN
AETHE I :h- TR
BEER BEEER BEER | AUREER AREAR t Al
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FH*) (FH*) (FH*) (FHK) (F7K)
Projects held by our RELEREER
joint ventures
Hangzhou M 38,745 54,890 413,976 - 507,611 2.7%
Ningbo 0 = - 165,047 - 165,047 0.9%
Chengdu P 26 - - 98,660 225,187 323,847 1.7%
Nanjing MR - - 307,688 - 307,688 1.6%
Taizhou am 53,653 - - 236,370 290,023 1.5%
Huzhou il 10 - - - 10 0.0%
Guangzhou EM - - 150,832 - 150,832 0.8%
Zhengzhou LI = - - 311,132 311,132 1.6%
Zhoushan AL 23,746 - - - 23,746 0.1%
Sub-total PNt 116,154 54,890 1,136,203 772,690 2,079,937 10.9%
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Held for
Under future Total
Completed development | development | land reserves
B%I BT | BERRRE | thREELE
Rentable GFA
Saleable | GFA held for under
GFA unsold investment | development Percentage
BEREN
REFAHE g EER
BEAE BEHE BEEE | AAEENE | SAEEEER b Al
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(EHK) (FH*) (FHK) (FHX) (FHK)
Projects held by BeENREEER
our associates
Hangzhou M 115,265 - 1,517,366 - 1,632,631 8.5%
Wenzhou M 34,155 = 443,299 = 477,454 2.5%
Ningbo 0 - - 314,796 = 314,796 1.6%
Chengdu P 8 - - 621,382 = 621,382 3.2%
Xuzhou =M - - 386,581 - 386,581 2.0%
Jiujiang niL 92,131 - 748,249 - 840,380 4.4%
Huzhou A 12,956 - 251,248 - 264,204 1.4%
Wuhan g = = 232,332 = 232,332 1.2%
Foshan il - - 286,987 - 286,987 1.5%
Quzhou B 10,092 - 157,758 - 167,850 0.9%
Guangzhou M 26,327 - 183,174 - 209,502 1.1%
Wuhu g - - 212,875 - 212,875 1.1%
Shangha s} 32,963 3,376 37,846 = 74,185 0.4%
Zhangzhou M = = 201,039 = 201,039 1.1%
Zhoushan vl 14,075 - - - 14,075 0.1%
New Jersey, U.S. ZEHERM 17,163 420 = S 17,583 0.1%
Changzhou Al 5,609 - - - 5,609 0.0%
Jinhua ¥ 735 - - - 735 0.0%
Sub-total Nt 361,471 3,796 5,594,932 - 5,960,199 31.2%
Total Bit 904,947 526,944 16,288,584 1,409,705 19,130,180 100.0%
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The following table sets out a summary of the Group’s property F&RFIRR2021F12 31 HAEBEYHIEHR

projects as at 31 December 2021: ZHE
Existing Use of
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location the Project Lease Expiry
FrEsm B0 /& EARR R ERNRERE BRHHFH
Investment  Hangzhou Sky City Completed Xiao Znheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No.19 Residential and 2058
Properties commercial
R&NE M RE B $T BREL 0171955 Al
Hangzhou Hangzhou Wings Gompleted Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2013] No. 48 Commercial 2053
M iMzE %I TG L2013 588 [
Hangzhou Douhuigiantang Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No.17 Residential and 2057
commercial
il Beun %I MBEL 077 :f:d
Hangzhou Zheda Insigma (Yinhu) Innovation R&D  Completed Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2011] No.30 Commercial 2053
Park Project (Phase l)
il AR (50 B RER (C8) 4T EMEL[201)30% [
Hangzhou Hangzhou ONE Gompleted Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2013] No.71# Commercial 2057
il FAONE %I RBRLRO13TIHER [
Hangzhou Artificial Intelligence Industrial Park Completed Land Parcel 330108003029GB00031 Industrial 2052
M MEXE BT 330108003029GB00031 1%
Hangzhou Elegant Mansion Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 41 Residential 2087
M NEEH %I HBRERE[017)41 558 fiz
Wenzhou Dexin SSAW Boutique Hotel Completed Zongdi No. 3303040180040015 Commercial 2056
M BERERRE #I TE573303040180040015 [
Huzhou Delan Square Completed Land Parcel 001-106-000-00038-000 Residential and 2046
commercial
M BERS #I 001-106-000-00038-000 31
Taizhou Shenxian Garden Phase | Partially completed ~ Baitazhen Land Parcel 2015119 Commercial 2057
A BlIEX (L L EEE -5 FART AEE201511048 [
Xuzhou Sky Scraper A Completed Land Parcel 2010-08G Residential and 2050
commercial
Gl NEBALSR ®T 2010-08G Aft
Xuzhou Sky Scraper B Completed Land Parcel 2010-01G Residential and 2051
commercial
i MBS %I 2010016 i
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu (CJ) Phase | Completed No.Ning 2018GY04 Science education 2068
BR BRIEAC)—H %I NO.Z2018GY04 B
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu (GJ) Phase Il Completed No.Ning 2018GY05 Science education 2068
BR ERIMEAC) =S $®1 NO.Z2018GY05 B
Shanghai Dexin ¢ Zhizao 368 Project Completed Songjiang Land Parcel No.905 Industrial 2052
L& AR %I NI 5k I%
Shanghai Zhihui Gang Partially completed ~ Fengxian District Xiduzhen No.10 Jiefang 80/11 Qiu Industrial 2055
L& B2k FHRT EEREREI0HH8011E 1%
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Development
Properties

EES

40

City

Fresim

Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
fiM

Hangzhou

i

Hangzhou

i

Hangzhou

i

Hangzhou

fiM
Hangzhou
fiM
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou

i

Project/Phase

B8 /&

Montnorth

BALL

Majestic Mansion

I

Dexin Yunchuan Business Center

EE2IERRL

New Lanyue

i

Genter Hangzhou

B2

Dajiang One

RIEH

Huanyi City

REN

Yuerong, Jingping and Jinhua Dexin
Carparks

HR BT SEEREM

Time Mansion

BRAR

Shixin Palace

TR
Yin'aowan

GEE

Golden Mansion
tEER

Bay Cloud
EREREKN
Qiantang Mansion
gRZH

Project Status

BEAR

Completed
BT
Completed
®T
Completed
R®I
Completed
3T
Completed
®I
Completed
®I
Completed
%I
Completed

%1
Completed

%1
Completed

31
Completed

%I
Under development
i3
Under development
i3
Under development
g

Project Location

B A it

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 8
RBERL[2017) 858

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 14
RHEAL[2017) 14504058

Xihu District Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 20

EARAREL018205 0545 R

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 10
RREHEP017] 1053053

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2016] No. 31
FEEL[2016] 31530

Hang Dajiangdong [2017] Land Parcel No. 9
MAILR2017] 9%304

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 95
P L [2017] 95% 308

N/A

il
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 19

B [2018] 19%304
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 4

BRI 018 4501
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 22

BHRLR019] 205858

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 2

BR8] 285

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 12
AU L[2018] 1253038

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 34
MBFHL018] 34%

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERR
Residential
fr=
Residential
iz
Commercial
A%
Commercial
Bx
Gommercial
Bx
Residential
fiz
Commercial
[

Carpark

&l
Residential and
commercial
it
Residential and

commercial
it
Residential and

commercial
it
Residential
i
Residential
iz
Residential
fiz



City

Fresim

Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M

Hangzhou

i

Hangzhou

i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
fiM
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
fiM
Hangzhou
fiM
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou

i
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Project/Phase

BB/ K&

New Shixin Palace (Chinoiserie Mansion)

#mOf (WER)
Ganal Mansion
ENEH

Dexin Konggang City
ez

Time City

KR
Yuefenghua

bime
Yuehangfi

B

Chenguangli

RHE

Yunwang Puyuan
Z25F

Heping Dexin Center
HTEEDL

Lake View Mansion
iR

Yue City Mansion
Bz R

Oriental Lake Mansion
e

River Mansion
TLEkR

Comiche

HRIRE

Jingfang Triangle Land Parcel
SRR

Project Status

BEARR

Under development
i3
Under development
i3
Under development
k#
Under development
ki
Under development

i
Under development

ki
Under development
kg
Under development
kg
Under development
kR
Under development
i3
Under development
g
Under development
g
Under development
i3
Under development
i3
Under development
g

Project Location

Bt

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 24 Shushan Unit

BHE L2018 4R BB TR

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 2
RRELP019] 25855

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2013] No. 2
BHELL019) 250

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 6
S [2019] 6530

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 22

RET[2019) 225505
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 25

B L[2019] 25530

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 61
RBEL 019 615054

Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 9
EIEHP019) 9% shiR

Wenhui Unit XC0402-B1/B2-02
XEETLXC0402-B1/B2-02

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 8
ARG [2020)8%

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 9
RBRIER02019%

Fushan Unit XH2006-07 Land Parcel
FFILETTXH2006-0735%

Jian Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 27
R [201927%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 25
AL [2020) 265

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 39
L [2020)395

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERE
Residential
i
Residential
iz
Commercial
A%
Residential
frz
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential
frz
Residential
frz
Commercial
[
Residential
[z
Residential
fiz
Commercial
[E
Residential
=z
Residential
iz
Commercial

[
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City

Fresim

Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
fiM

Hangzhou

M
Hangzhou
M

Hangzhou

fiM
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
il

Hangzhou

i

Hangzhou

i

Project/Phase

B8 /&
Qingmanl

BEE

Genter Mansion
Changlin City
RMZR

Central One Mansion
LLEkk
Binwang Zhichen
BELR
Hangzhou Huayaoli
Re
Huayunchunjing

Tonglu Fuchunyun Village

Zhicaicheng

ba}

Wenchen Wangfu

XRER

Shizi Tianmu West Land Parcel

TEABEME

Plot No. 1, Lao Shifang, Xinhe Village Plot
XSLP0301-01, 33, Linpu Unit, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou

MIRZ TR IR RILRER
BTIXSLP0301-01 + 334433

(S0609-12, Gongchengiao Unit, Qiaoxi

BRLREETGS0600-12

Project Status

BEAR

Under development
i3
Under development
i3
Under development
ki
Under development
ki
Under development
ki
Under development
i3

Under development

kg
Under development
ki
Under development

i3
Under development
i3
Under development
g

Under development

ki

Held for future
development

Project Location

ER R

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 44
BHGE L [202044%

Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 22
BRI 020122%:

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No.33
RHERIL[2020133%

Jian Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 26
B [201926%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 6
B [2021)6%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 14
BHEL 2021145

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 77

MBEIL 20201775
Tong Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 05
MBI [2021]05%
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 27

B 2021275

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 35

BHEE 2021355

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parce! [2020] No. 16
RBEL[2020)16%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 50

BHEL 2021508
Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 38

B H2021]38%

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERE
Residential
iz
Residential
iz
Residential
frz
Residential
iz
Residential
frz
Residential
frz
Residential and

commercial
[
Residential
frz
Residential and

commercial
it
Residential
iz
Commercial
Bx

Residential

=z

Residential
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Primary

Intended Use
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project

BRIE
FrEsim 2R /KR HAMRR R RERE
Wenzhou Borui Palace Completed Land Parcel 2016XG004 Residential
M e %I 2016XG004% fiz
Wenzhou Nine Villa Completed Quhai District Wutian New District A-4-02a Land Parcel Residential
bl 15k RI B8R R BHTRA-4-02a12 frz
Wenzhou Gorgeous Palace Completed Qi Dou 04-C-14~18 Land Parcel Residential
M £ %I +#04-C-14-1885% fz
Wenzhou Cloud Class Completed Wautian New District D-1-06a Land Parcel Residential
il 22 3T BAHED1-06ai 5 frz
Wenzhou Philippe Cloud Completed Jinhaiyuan District Land Parcel C-09 Residential
il gl 3BT SEERC-094 frz
Wenzhou Ruian Mansion Completed Land Parcel 2018XG032 Residential
A B a 2018XG032%: £
Wenzhou The Riverside Completed Taohuadao T05-07 Land Parcel Residential
il fatig %I iz ST05-07585% iz
Wenzhou Central Mansion Completed Yongjia County 3303240022019006 Residential
bl ZRE #I K E53303240022019006 fix
Wenzhou Genter Mansion Under development Land Parcel 2018XG033 Residential
bl HE i3 2018XG033%: jids
Wenzhou City Lakeside Under development Wenzhou S1 Line Longxia Station A-12b Land Parcel Residential
il B i3 RATTEERS KEELA1 20458 [z
Wenzhou Jiangyuewan Under development Taohuadaopian District T05-14a Land Parcel Residential
M AR il HhTEB RETOS- 14288 fix
Wenzhou Fenghui Under development Land Parcel 2019XG016 Residential
il 2% g 2019XG0165 8 iz
Wenzhou East Fame Under development Wenzhou Economy Technology Development District Jinhaiyuan - Residential

District Land Parce! D-06b
bt RgE g RMEER R EESEEED-060 5% fiz
Wenzhou River Sparkle Under development Yongjia Oubei Urban New District Qianpai - Wangjiawu Residential
bl TEEH g AERATHEAE - T8 fiz
Wenzhou Eastern Mansion Under development Wenzhou Economy Technology Development District Jinhaiyuan - Residential
District Land Parcel C-08b

bl RRE g EMEERFEELEERC-080i A fE
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City Project/Phase

iz n BB /K&

Wenzhou Gentral One Mansion
i IILER

Wenzhou Tianfu Mingdi (South), Tianfu Mingdi (North)
el REAHESR  AREELH
Huzhou Yunxi Mansion

A EERA

Huzhou Yunxi Vila

bl EEiR

Huzhou Dothink Major

il it

Huzhou Majestic Mansion
bl RN

Huzhou Aesthetic Garden
M EE

Huzhou Central Mansion
il EETLA

Huzhou Gaofeng Village Project
bl REHER

Huzhou City Garden 1

b RE1

Huzhou City Garden 2

il RE?

Huzhou Deqing Shidai Yuno
il ERRRER
Huzhou Nanxun Xunchengfu
il HERRN

Ningbo Lake City Realm
£ e

Ningbo Huchengdajing

1 N

Ningbo Yunchengdajing
i N

44

Project Status

BEAR

Under development
i3

Under development

i

Completed

®T

Completed

%I

Completed

3T

Completed

%I

Completed

%I

Completed

%I

Under development
g

Under development
g

Under development
ki

Under development
i3

Under development
g

Completed

%I

Completed

BT

Under development

ki

Project Location

Bt

Wenzhou Binjiang Business District Land Parcel 03-02-21
BN TRITARR03-02-2145%8

Chengdong New District Land Parcel D18-1-AB located at

Kunyang Town, Pingyang County
TEERBANFNEDIS-1-ABLR
Land Parcel 2010-086
2010-086
Land Parcel 2011-078-2
2011-078-2
Land Parcel 2017-33#

2017-33#

Land Parcel 2017-335

2017-335

Land Parcel 2017-401-1
2017-401-1

Land Parcel 2018-038

2018-038

Land Parcel 2017-343

2017-343

Fuxi Street Land Parcel 2019-009-1
SEZHE2019-009-1

Fuxi Street Land Parcel 2019-009-2
821i82019-009-2

Wukang Street Land Parcel 2020-016
REE2020-016

Land Parcel 2021-21

2001-21%

Yongtuzigao [2018] No. 08006

B T (20181080065

Yinzhou District 06-03-02# Donggjan Lake Land Parcel
HE06-03-024 R M

Land Parcel 2019-85

2019-85513%

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERE
Residential
frz
Residential

iz
Residential
frz
Residential
iz
Residential
iz
Residential
fiz
Residential
[z
Residential
frz
Commercial
Bx
Residential
iz
Residential
fiz
Residential
i
Residential
iz
Residential
=z
Residential
=z
Residential
fixz



City

iz 1
Ningbo
1
Ningbo
B
Ningbo
el
Ningbo
ER
Ningbo
e
Ningbo
e
Ningbo
ER

Ningbo

B
Taizhou
an
Taizhou
i

Taizhou
i
Taizhou
4

Taizhou
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Project/Phase

2R /KR

Xiaofeng Yinyue Mansion

BERAAR

Mountain Village

WZEEH

Center Mansion

RioE

Oriental Mansion

75

Wenchen Mansion

XRf

Yunchen Mansion

ZRM

Binxueli

222

Zhongyi Ningbo Ecological Garden Land
Parcel
BERLRAMSE

Jiangshan Mansion Phase I

il

Shenxian Garden Phase Il

BlEUEEE -5

Xihu Yunzhuang

it
Jiangshan Yunhe

TUER
Guanlanfu

4 i

Taizhou Xin Fei Long Hu Project

ANFRENAE

Project Status

BEARR

Under development

i

Under development

i3

Under development

ki

Under development

ki

Under development

i

Under development

kg

Under development

ki

Held for future
development

f

Completed

3T

Completed

%I

Partially completed

BRI
Under development

it

Under development

i3
Held for future
development

fif

Project Location

Bt

Haishu District Land Parcel HS17-03-07
BREHSIT-03-07

Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-005
F #H12020-0055%

Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-024
B L12020-04%

Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-103
i H12020- 10358

Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-152
B GEH12020-1525%

Land Parcel 2020-123

2020-123

Land Parcel 2020-7

2020- 7554

Land Parcel 2021-3

2021-3% 154

Beichengjiedao Puxi No.1
JBAERE R

Land Parcel G2018160

(62018160

Yuhuanxincheng (Xuanman Phrase 1)

Jiankangyangshengxiaozhen Phrase | Land Parcel
TR (RFI-5) RER LB -t
Land Parcel Located at the Palace East to the Tongjiang Road
and North to the Xiandai Road, Lugiao District
BBRAIRNE  RRAEM -8

Land Parcel 331082113229132

331082113229132
Taitugaozi [2021] No. 001

ALET021)001%

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERE
Residential
fr=
Residential
iz
Residential
frz
Residential
i3
Residential
frz
Residential
[z
Residential
frz
Residential

frz
Residential
[z
Commercial

Residential
frx
Residential
iz
Residential and
commercial

i3

Residential

=

45



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

RETERRARLH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRN&

City

Fresim

Taizhou

Zhoushan
Al
Zhoushan
Al
Zhoushan
Al

Zhoushan

Al
Quzhou
L
Quzhou
il
Quzhou

BN
Quzhou

BN

Jinhua
Xuzhou
3l
Xuzhou
Gl
Xuzhou

Gl

46

gl

Project/Phase

BB /K&

Land lot no. XQ050101-01, Wenling

BETXQ050101-01384%
Majestic Mansion
Celebrity Mansion

ER

Hancheng

B

Putuo Donggang Project

Efn

Oriental Residence
R

Celebrity Mansion
R

Jiangwancheng

T
Yunzhi Chenli

ELRE

Yu Xihu

(el

Imperial Cullinan

RER

Meidi Dexin Academy Mansion
ENEEHHE

Wings of Future

RRZE

Project Status

BEAR

Under development

i3
Completed
BT
Completed
®T
Completed
R®I

Under development

i
Completed
3T
Completed
3T

Under development

kR

Under development

i

Completed

%I

Completed

3T

Under development
g

Under development
i3

Project Location

Bt

Wenling Land parcel XQ050101-01

SBEXQ050101-01504%
Daishan 2017-11
il2017-11%

Daishan 2017-10
f1l2017-10%

Zhoushanshi Putuogu North Piangu B-07

Al EREL R EB-075%

Zhoushanshi Putuogu Donggang New District Land Parcel No.

42-5

RLTERRRATE42-65 R
Qujiangqu Dongjidadao Land Parcel No.5

EIERIABS AR

Qujiangqu Dongjidadao Land Parcel No.7

BIRRGAET AR

Land Parcel Located at East of Manyuewan, Chengdong New

District, Changshan County
BERRHE RN ER bR

Granted Land Parcel of Reserve Land Located at West of
Hehua West Street, South of Pingan West Street, Railway
Station District. Land Parcel Quzhou Chu [2021] 1

NESRRHEERRATRERBARE LR BT

B [021]1%

Jinhua Land Parcel [2017] No. 20

SED017)20% 5%

Land Parcel 2017_11G, Land Parcel 2017_11G

2017_11G - 2017_11G
Land Parcel 2019-21
2019-21 5452

Land Parcel 2019-45
2019-4550 5%

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
e
RERE

Residential and

commercial
Al
Residential
i
Residential
iz
Residential
frz
Residential

fiz
Residential
iz
Residential
frz
Residential and
commercial

At

Residential

=z

Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential
%
Residential
fiz



City

Fresim

Xuzhou
M
Xuzhou
M
Xuzhou
M
Xuzhou
&M
Nanjing
AR
Nanjing
BR
Nanjing
ER
Nanjing
AR
Nanjing
AR
Nanjing
ER
Nanjing
AR
Nanjing
AR
Shanghai
L&

Kunshan

2l
Jingjiang
B
Jingjiang
B
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BEENWE D

Project/Phase

2R /KR

Chinoiserie Mansion

NER

Online City

ARLR

Peace Mansion

IR

Yunxi Elegant Courtyard

Oriental Courtyard

EEZH

Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (FG1)
BRUAEAFGH)

Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (IG2)
ERIAHEAIG)

Jiuxi Mansion

UER

Xingchen Jinyuan

ERBE

Jiugihe Mansion

YENR

Lishui Chengnan Land Parcel
FroE

Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (E)
BRIMEAE)

Yinxiu Yunlu

BAZHE

Dexin Park Vision

BEAEARIE

Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase |
SN

Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase I
TERE_H

Project Status

BEARR

Under development
i
Under development
i3
Under development
ki
Under development
ki
Under development
i
Under development
i3
Under development
ki
Under development
ki
Under development
i3
Under development
ki
Under development
ki
Under development
kg
Under development
ki

Under development

kg
Under development
idd
Under development

i3

Project Location

Bt

Land Parcel 2020-4

2020-455 358

Land Parcel 2020-19
2020195053

Land Parcel 2020-20
2020-20% 0%

Land Parcel 2020-32
2020-32%: 5%

Land Parcel 2019G11

2019G11

Land Parcel No.2019G40
NO.2019G40

Land Parcel No. Ning 2019GY14
NO.Z2019GY14

Land Parcel No. Lishui 2019G15
NO.}E7k2019G15

Land Parcel No. 2020G41
NO.2020G41

Land Parcel 2020N0.G49
2020NO.G49I %

Land Parcel No. Lishui 2021G09
NO.7Z7k2021G09

(Temporarily) Land Parcel No. Ning 2013GY31
EENO.E2013GY31

Land Parcel 202012601
202012601

Kun Di Wang[2019]Land Parcel Guazi No. 2-3

BiAP019)8Fo-35 R

Jing Chu Land Parcel 2019 Gua No. 31, 32
2019831 - 32%

Jing Chu Land Parcel 2019 Gua No. 31, 32
Ef#2019831 - 325

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERE
Residential
fr=
Residential
i
Residential
frx
Residential
i
Residential
frz
Commercial
A%
Commercial
Bx
Residential
frz
Residential
frz
Residential
iz
Residential
[z
Commercial
Bx
Residential
fiz
Residential and

commercial
it
Residential
=z
Residential
frz
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EEENRN&

City

Fresim

Wuxi
&1
Suzhou

&M
Changzhou
B
Wuhu
b
Chengdu
!
Chengdu
w#
Chengdu
B
Chengdu
w#
Chengdu
w#
Chengdu
i
Chengdu
g
Chengdu
w#
Chengdu
B
Wuhan
BE
Wuhan

HE

48

gl

Project/Phase

BE /K&
Elegant Yunxi
EERE
Wanglanting

e

Changzhou Celebrity Mansion
FNERR

Wuhu Jinlinfu
E:yiie i

Guanlan Courtyard

) N
Jinxiutiancheng
LN

Kings Lake

HHER

Cloud Villa

Bizd

Meishan Dongpo Project
ENAR

Chengdu Yicheng Dayuan
RARHAR

Chengdu Tianjiao City
REBRELR
Yinjiangchen

BIR

Dongyue Jiuyuan
R

Courtyard in Jiangnan
TAAR

Chenguangli

REE

Project Status

BEAR

Under development
ki
Under development

ki

Completed

RT

Under development
i

Under development
ki

Under development
kg

Under development
il

Under development
ki

Under development
g

Under development
g

Under development
i

Under development
i3

Under development
g

Completed

%I

Under development

i

Project Location

Bt

Land Parcel Xi Guo Tu (Jing) 2019-12
$aEL T (48)2019-12

Wjiang Gaoxin District (Shengzezhen) Bailongaiaolu East Land

Parcel (WJ-J-2019-023)

SIETE (HEE) RERRE R (WJ-J-2019-029)

Land Parcel JZX20180702
JZX20180702

City Dong Land Parcel 2105
HR21065 R

Tianfu New District Shigao Land Parcel No. 34

AFHEREMTIE

Tianfu New District Shigao Land Parcel No. 16, 19, 20

RFHERR16° 19 205458
Land Parcel TF2020-10
TF2020-1045%

Land Parcel TF (07) 2020-09
TF(07)2020-0932 5%

Land Parcel D-232

D-232

Land Parcel DY2020-016 (252)
DY2020-016 (252): 5%

Land Parcel JN20 (251): 2020-065
JIN20 (251): 2020-065

Land Parcel QBJP2020-10 (252)
QBJP2020-10 (252)

Land Parcel LQO2 (252): 2021-02
LQ02(252):2021-02

Wuhan Land Parcel P (2018) No. 48
REP018)485 014

Wuhan Land Parcel P (2019) No. 100

HIEP (2019100858

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERE
Residential
iz
Residential

frz
Residential
frz
Residential
frz
Residential
iz
Residential
frz
Residential
fiz
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential
fiz
Residential
fiz
Residential
iz
Residential
iz
Residential
=z
Residential and
commercial

i3



City

Fresim

Wuhan
Wuhan
HE
Guangzhou
Bl
Guangzhou
B
Guangzhou
B
Foshan
Ll
Foshan
Ll
Foshan
il
Zhengzhou

Ll

X'an

[
Zhangzhou
B
Shangrao
I&::

Jivjiang

pihii
Us.

27
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Project/Phase

2R /KR

Starry Park

Wuhan Time City

RER LR

Golden Mileage

PEER

Genter of Bay Area, Guangzhou
ENERER

Huangpu Knowledge City E2 Land Parcel
BRARNEILR

Langging Yuan

GilEp

Jiangnanyin Mansion

)l

Foshan Santangyuan
BU=ER

Zhengzhou Project

#iEE

Xichen Mansion
il

Zhangzhou Project
EMER

Celebrity Mansion
ER

Jivjiang Mansion

il
One Park

One Park

Project Status

BEARR

Under development

i

Under development

i3

Partially completed

PRI

Under development

ki

Under development

i

Under development

i3]

Under development

ki

Under development

ki

Held for future
development

#

Under development

i3

Under development

i3

Completed

31

Partially completed

B%IT
Completed

BT

SR

Project Location

Bt

Land Parcel P (2019) No. 017

P (2019) 0175748

East and West Lake Land Parcel P (2020) No. 187
P (20001187 E R L1

Land Parcel 83101265A19001
83101265A19001

Land Parcel 2020NJY-7

2020NJY-7

Knowledge City ZSCN-E2 Land Parcel
HEHZSON-E2 3R

Land Parcel TD2019 (GM) WG0018
TD2019 (GM) WG0018

Land Parcel TD2019 (CC) XG0004
TD2019 (CC) XG0004

Land Parcel TD2021 (NH) WG0009
TD2021 (NH) WG0009

N/A

TER

Land Parcel HX1-(28)-124

HX1-(28)-124

Tai 2020p03 Land Parcel

£2000p03

Land Parcel DEB2018014, DEB2018015

DEB2018014 - DEB2018015

Land Parcel DGD2017027, DGD2017028-A, DGD2017028-B

DGD2017027 - DGD2017028-A - DGD2017028-B
N/A

oy i

S8R

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRIE
RERE
Residential
fr=
Residential
i
Residential
frz
Residential
frz
Residential
frz
Residential
frz
Residential
iz
Residential
frz
Residential

frz
Residential
frz
Residential
fiz
Residential
frz
Residential and
commercial
[
Residential and
commercial

[:4
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Notes:

62

Data on site area have been excerpted from the information contained in
the relevant land use rights certificate and housing title certificate (or real
estate title certificate) or, if there is no relevant land use rights certificate,
from the data on site area in the land grant agreement.

With respect to the GFA, the data on a completed project have been
excerpted from the housing title certificate (or real estate title certificate)
or documents of acceptance; the data on a project under development
or planning shall be excerpted from the information (with a deviation of no
more than 3% from the actual GFA) contained in the relevant construction
work planning permit or construction work commencement permit or,
if there is no construction work planning permit, from the data on the
capacity building area in the land grant agreement.

Leasable GFA refers to the area from which rental income can be
generated.

A property is considered as “sold” after the Group entered into the relevant
purchase agreement with and has delivered it to the customer. A property
is deemed to have been delivered to the customer after it has passed the
acceptance check. A property is considered as “pre-sold” in the event that
the Group has entered in the relevant purchase agreement but has not yet
delivered it to the customer.

Refers to the date on which the Group obtained the construction work
commencement permit or the date estimated by the Group.

Refers to the date on which the Group obtained or is expected to obtain
the pre-sale permit of the project, based on the internal records of the
Group.

Refers to the date on which acceptance examination upon completion is
obtained or the expected date of completion.

Based on the actual equity interests held by the Group in the relevant
project companies pursuant to PRC laws.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREERNEEFE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of 7 Directors, of whom 3 are executive Directors,
1 is a non-executive Director and 3 are independent non-executive
Directors. Our Board is responsible for and has general powers for the
management and conduct of our business.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (#—F), aged 55, is the founder of our Group and
has been our Director since 16 January 2018. He was re-designated
as an executive Director and the chairman of our Board on 14 August
2018. He is the chairman of the nomination committee. He was also
appointed as a director of Tak Yick International Limited (“Tak Yick”)
and Dexin Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Dexin HK”) on 7 February
2018 and 22 March 2018, respectively. He is also a director of certain
members of the Group. Mr. Hu Yiping is the father of Mr. Hu Shihao,
our non-executive Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders.
He is also one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Hu Yiping is
primarily responsible for overall development and investment strategies
and major business decisions of our Group. He has around 26 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He established Dexin
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd (“Dexin Real Estate”) on 1 September
1995 and has been the director and chairman of the board of directors
since then. He is currently an executive director and chairman of Dexin
Services Group Limited (stock code: 2215) which is listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Hu Yiping is the president of the Zhejiang Province Real Estate
Industry Association* (31T & FEHE R ). He is also the chairman of
Huzhou Chamber of Commerce in Hangzhou* (fiM M E€) and
the president of the New Urban Industry Committee of the General
Association of Zhejiang Entrepreneurs* (MEE € HMEEXE S
). Mr. Hu Yiping graduated from Zhejiang School of Construction*
I ARETEER) in Zhejiang, the PRC in January 1987 with a
diploma degree (R EE[F) in Civil Engineering Specialty (L RiEH %),

Exg
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EENEREEBNEERFS

and from Zhejiang Yu Cai Workers’ University (3TIE A BT KE) in
Zhejiang, the PRC in June 1995 with an associate degree (X2 Z[F)
in Architecture. He also obtained his bachelor's degree (ANFLEZE) in
Financial Management (online course) from Tianjin University (K& X&)
in Tianjin, the PRC in 2013. He also obtained his executive master of
business administration (EMBA) from Xiamen University in Xiamen, the
PRC in September 2018. He also obtained a qualification for senior
economist issued by Zhejiang Human Resources and Social Security
Department* (41L& AN ERMEEIRIEE) in December 2007.
He also obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Personnel
Department of Huzhou* (#8/1TH AZE /@) in September 1996.

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (E2#8) (“Mr. Fei”), aged 52, has been our
Director since 16 January 2018. He was re-designated as an executive
Director and was appointed as our president on 14 August 2018. He
is responsible for business operation, day-to-day management and
daily business decisions of our Group. He is also a director of certain
members of the Group. He has over 25 years of experience in the
PRC real estate industry. He joined our Group as a project manager
of Dexin Real Estate in August 1997. Since then, he served various
positions in Dexin Real Estate and other subsidiaries of our Company,
including vice president, executive vice president, president and
director, during which his responsibilities included participating in the
formulation of our Group’s strategy and the day-to-day management.

Mr. Fei graduated from Zhejiang Yu Cai Workers’ University* (/T &
A B T KE) in Zhejiang, the PRC in January 1995 with an associate
degree (KEZF) in Architecture. He also obtained his executive
master of business administration (EMBA) from Shanghai Jiaotong
University (_E/&32 8 KXE2) in Shanghai, the PRC in June 2013. He also
obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Personnel Department
of Shaoxing* (42# T A% /B) in November 2006.

64

BT IESBRIAS  BEEEBRELE-
HIFR2013F G EIREM R ERZBEFHH
B (TLRRIE) ABIEFE - HR2018F9 A
BEFEEMNEMASZESSREEAEBLR
EIRIE T B0 (EMBA) - BT R 2007 F12 A%
BITEANBERALSRERERENSRL
BERIE R o IR 1996F 9 BEB MMM AE
BB R TIZATEHS -

BASEE ([BEE] 5258 - B201845F1 A
16ARE—ERHEMMNES - HN20185F8 A 14
HATANTES  UWEZEARMNEH -
HEEASEMNERKES  AEPEERATE
BRE - ANMAAEBETHEATINES -
HEUEREEMETEEBRIB2SFHNLR - &
M1997 F8 AMAREKE - EEEEMEIRE
KR o b1k - HBTEEEHE RARRA A H A
BAREAZERMN - 2EIEH  FHa8
H- -BHERES TUHAE HBREeELH
FIEREBMRBRBEERE -

BAREMR1995F1 AZERPBINIANIE
THIKE BIEREEBRXFEER - HTR
2013F6 AEHE BN L ERBAAEESS
BERABIHERELEBAM(EMBA) - EIFR
200611 AESAEM ASRMEMN TIEMNE
1& o



2021 FE kS ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERSREERNEEFE

Ms. Shan Bei (%) (“Ms. Shan”), aged 37, was appointed as the
Executive Director on 25 August 2020 and was appointed as the
Assistant President and General Manager of Financial Management
Center. She was appointed as vice president on 8 February 2021.
She was also appointed as a director of Dexin HK on 9 March
2021. She is mainly responsible for the management of the financial
affairs of the Group. She has more than 14 years of experience in
the real estate industry in China. Ms. Shan graduated from Zhejiang
University of Finance and Economics in June 2007 with a bachelor
degree in management majoring in accounting. She also obtained the
qualification of certified public accountant in March 2010.

Ms. Shan joined Dexin Real Estate Group in May 2011 and
successively served as the Project Finance Manager, Deputy General
Manager of Fund Management Center, Deputy General Manager of
Financial Management Center, etc. Prior to joining Dexin Real Estate
Group, from May 2010 to April 2011, she served as the accountant of
a real estate development company in China. From July 2007 to May
2010, she served as an auditor of an accounting firm in China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Shihao (#5 %), aged 27, was appointed as our
non-executive Director on 14 August 2018. He was also appointed
as a director of Dexin HK from 22 March 2018 to 9 March 2021. Mr.
Hu Shihao is a member of the audit committee. He is the son of Mr.
Hu Yiping who is our executive Director and one of our Controlling
Shareholders. He is also one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Hu
Shihao is primarily responsible for providing advice on the financial
affairs of our Group. He has over 7 years of working experience in the
real estate industry.

Mr. Hu Shihao graduated from Boston College in Massachusetts,
the United States in May 2018 with a bachelor’s degree in Finance.
He also graduated from Columbia University in New York City, New
York, the United States in May 2019 with a master degree in Property
Development.

Bzt ([Bxt]) 375 - HiX2020F8A4
5HEZTANITES  UEZEARMME)
HEHRTEEREROBLRE - HR2021F2
RA8REZEREIEE - HMN2021F3 H9H
BZAREEEENES -HFXZAEETER
EENMBER HETEEHETEHRERE
B14FREE - B2 7200746 B EEMNIT
IS BB EE8 24 - Hf

R2010F3 AR BEMETEMEER -

BRIR2011F5AMAZEHESE @ %&
BEEEYVBHBLE BE2EEPLAIBKRE -
PHEERLABCESEES  c EMAZE(ESH
ESBE A - R2010F5F2011F4H » f£
RE— R EMEARIEISE - R20074F
7THZE201065H  BEFRE—XE: 278
ZEAD ©

FHTES

BARFER L. 2758 ' 2018 F8 H14HEZR(E
BIEMITESE - EIMR20184F3 A22HE2021
FIRAORBZEREEFEBTANES - FREL
EREBFLZEEHKE c HRBMOAITES
FIERBRR s A —FRENZEF - EMARK
PIIERRR 2 — - IR RAEZTZEERAE
EENMBEBRMAESR  HERBERBEMETT
EBBRBIBTFOLES -

HRRAEER2018F5 ARENERFEAE
NOETIES  BEEEMEBT 26 - AR
2019F5 RE XN ERANINA LTI w2
RE  HBYHEFEETEA o

65



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEBNEERFS

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Ex#) (“Dr. Wong”), aged 70,
has been our independent non-executive Director since 11 January
2019. He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice
on the operations and management of our Group. Dr Wong is the
chairman of the audit committee. He has 28 years of experience in
accounting. Dr. Wong is the principal consultant of KND Associates
CPA Limited, Hong Kong, a private professional auditing firm in Hong
Kong, and is responsible for administration, operation, audit and
corporate taxation since January 2018. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of APAC Resources Limited (stock code:
1104), Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 757), China
Merchants Land Limited (stock code: 978), China VAST Industrial
Urban Development Company Limited (stock code: 6166), China Wan
Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 6966), Capital Finance
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8239) and China Medical & HealthCare
Group Limited (stock code: 383), all are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Dr. Wong has resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Capital Finance Holdings Limited (stock code: 8239) which is listed on
the Stock Exchange with effect from 1 January 2022.

Dr. Wong was the managing director of Charise Financial Planning
Limited, a private professional consulting firm in Hong Kong, and was
responsible for administration and operation from October 2005 to
January 2014. He was the principal consultant of KND & Co., CPA
Limited, a private professional auditing firm in Hong Kong, and was
responsible for administration, operation, audit and corporate taxation
from January 2014 to December 2017.
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Dr. Wong obtained his bachelor’s degree in Commerce from a joint
program held by Shenzhen University (ZJIX2) in Shenzhen, the
PRC and Clayton University in Missouri, the United States of America
in May 1990. He also obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Business
Management (online course) and a master’s degree in Business
Administration (online course) from Nottingham Trent University in
Nottingham, the United Kingdom in December 2005 and December
2007, respectively. He also obtained his doctoral degree in Philosophy
in Business Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic
of the Philippines in December 2010.

Dr. Wong was elected or admitted and has remained as member
of a number of institutions, including being a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since January 1999, a fellow member
of The Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland since August
2000, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries) since February 2002, a member of The Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators since May 2002, a fellow member of The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) in United Kingdom since September
2002, a fellow member of Association of International Accountants
since September 2005 and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute since November 2012.

Mr. Ding Jiangang (T #HRl) (“Mr. Ding”), aged 58, has been
our independent non-executive Director since 11 January 2019.
He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group. Mr. Ding is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. He has over
7 years of research experience in the PRC real estate industry. He
graduated from Xi'an Metallurgy and Architecture College* (FAZ /A&

#EEPT) in Xi'an, the PRC in June 1983 with a bachelor’s degree in
Civil Engineering Specialty (T RiEZE %). Since May 2014, Mr. Ding has
been the director* (Ftf) of Zhejiang Daily Media Real Estate Institute*
O iE i E R 0B,

analysis of real estate industry, and is responsible for research on real

which is engaged in provision of market

estate policy and real estate market. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Binjiang Service Group Ltd. (stock code:
3316) and Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2599),
both are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Ding was the director* (ftf) of
A5 ZCkE), which is engaged
in provision of market analysis of real estate industry, and was

Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Transparent Market Institute* (&

responsible for research on real estate policy and real estate market
from March 2013 to May 2014. He was the assistant manager (&%
fE) of the economic department of, and the deputy editor (Bl4247%8)
of the website Live in Hangzhou* ({E7E#TM) of, Zhejiang Online News
Website Co., Ltd.* (HIEEFEBILBR D),

in online news publication and he was responsible for researching

which is engaged

financial properties and providing commentaries thereon from
September 2008 to March 2013. He was the journalist and producer
of Zhejiang Radio & TV Group* (I EEEREME), which is engaged
in publication and sales of newspaper, magazines and video, and he
was responsible for production of property programs from April 1989
to September 2008. He was the teacher and the leader of teaching
and research group of building structure of Zhejiang Construction
CITEBETEER) and was responsible for
teaching building structure courses and management of the teaching

Industrial College*
and research group from November 1985 to April 1989.

Mr. Chen Hengliu (“Mr. Chen”), aged 67, has been our independent
non-executive Director since 11 January 2019. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. Mr. Chen is a member of each of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. He has 15
years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Since November
2006, Mr. Chen has been the vice president of Sunac China Holdings
Limited (B4R BIIER AR A
on the Stock Exchange which is engaged in property development,
and the chairman of its Southeast regional branch, and he is
responsible for the group’s human resources and the development

7)) (stock code: 1918), a company listed

strategies of the Southeast regional branch.
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Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was the general manager of
the United States subsidiary(ies) of China Sciences Group (Holding)
Co., Ltd.* (PRIEEEEFEMR)GRAR]), which is engaged in the
procurement and sales of technological products, and he was
responsible for corporate development and human resources from
1994 to 1997. He was the assistant to the general manager (#B4%32
BhI®) and the manager of the development department (Z%/E ZB453E)
of Legend Holdings Corporation (¥t8#% 2% 0 B PR A F]) (stock code:
3396) (previously known as Chinese Academy of Sciences Computer
Technology Research Institute Technology Development Company*
(FREIRI BT ST E AT R TR 3B A 7)), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange which is engaged in research and development
and manufacture of computer products, and he was responsible for
corporate development and human resources from 1988 to 1990. He
was the assistant researcher of the Research Center of Contemporary
Science History of the Institute for History of Natural Sciences of
Chinese Academy of Sciences* (BRI B ARIZ P HFTATAIRR
FIE P HIITE), which is engaged in research in science history, and
he was responsible for research of history of contemporary technology
development from 1985 to 1987.

Mr. Chen graduated from Beijing Normal University* (1t ZRAT#05 A E2)
in Beijing, the PRC in July 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in Science
(F2E). He also obtained his master’s degree in Science (3££2) from
Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (B R} £z 55
A4 BR) in Beijing, the PRC in May 1985.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management
of our business. The biography of each of our senior management
member is set out below.

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (E&#8), aged 52, is our executive Director and

president. For details of his biography, please refer to “—Board of

Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Shan Bei (¥7), aged 37, is our executive Director and vice
president. For details of her biography, please refer to “—Board of

Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Fang Jing (5 %) (“Ms. Fang”), aged 47, was appointed as
our executive vice president on 14 August 2018. She is primarily
responsible for marketing and sales, customer services and business
management of our Group. She was the vice president of Dexin Real
Estate from February 2012 to July 2014, and has been serving as
the executive vice president of Dexin Real Estate since July 2014,
primarily responsible for marketing and sales and customer services
management. In addition, Ms. Fang was the sales director (& f548E5),
project general manager and general manager of Hangzhou region of
Dexin Real Estate, primarily responsible for sales, customer services,
project management and regional company’s operation management
from February 2006 to February 2012. She was the director of Dexin
Real Estate (Quzhou) Co., Ltd.* (fB{ZHE#EM)BR AT, primarily
responsible for major business decisions from April 2016 to May 2018.
She has 21 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.

Prior to joining our Group in February 2006, Ms. Fang was the
operational manager of Hangzhou Woaiwojia Real Estate Agent
Co., Ltd.* (MMBEEBRREMELLHBRAE]), which is engaged in
agency service of sale and purchase of commodity properties, and
she was responsible for management of property leasing and sales
from October 1999 to December 2002. She was the head of sales
management department of Hangzhou Shengshi Weiye Real Estate
Agent Co., Ltd.* (FTM g8 2 EFE HEREBR A 7)), which is engaged
in agency service of sale and purchase of commodity properties,
she was responsible for sales management from December 2002 to
February 2006.
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Ms. Fang graduated from Zhejiang University* (4T)T X£2) in Zhejiang,
the PRC in June 1996 with a bachelor’s degree in Inorganic Nonmetal
Material Engineering. She also obtained her executive master of
business administration (EMBA) from Zhejiang University* (1T XE) in
Zhejiang, the PRC in December 2015.

Mr. Zhang Ce (&) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 51, was appointed as our
vice president on 14 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for daily
design management of our Group and in charge of our product centre.
He has been serving as the vice president of Dexin Real Estate since
February 2012, primarily responsible for product design, research and
development. He has over 23 years of experience in the PRC real
estate industry.

Prior to joining our Group in April 2010, Mr. Zhang was the chief
engineer of Lianyungang Xiangyi Group Co., Ltd.* (BEEEGEE
BB AR (formerly known as Lianyungang Xiangyi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.* (EEEHF&FEHERZEFR AT, which
is engaged in property development and property leasing, and he
was responsible for property design and engineering management
from October 2007 to September 2009. He was the deputy general
manager of Zhongyi Group Co., Ltd.* (FZEBBRAF]) (formerly
known as Zhejiang Zhongyi Investment Co., Ltd.* (I EREBR A
7)), which is engaged in industrial investment* (& ¥#%4), and he was
responsible for design work management from May 2005 to December
2009. He was the director* (FTf) of Lianyungang Architectural Design
Research Institute Limited Liability Company* (B & &L
7t AR & T2 A]), which is principally engaged in design drawings,
and he was responsible for architectural design and department
management from July 1992 to March 2005.
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Mr. Zhang graduated from Wuhan Urban Construction Institute* (&%
W R ERR) (currently known as Huazhong University of Technology*
(FEFRRHEAE)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in Architecture Profession. He also obtained
his master’s degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School (FEIEIFE TrEERL) in Shanghai, the
PRC in August 2016. He has also obtained the qualification for senior
architect issued by Human Resource Bureau of Jiangsu Province in
November 2004 and qualified as the State’s Registered Class One
Architect (B — a2 EEAD) issued by The National Administration
Board of Architectural Registration in March 2009.

Mr. Shi Binbin (FEXE3E) (“Mr. Shi”), aged 44, was appointed as our
vice president on 14 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for the
entrusted construction service of our Group. He has been serving as
the vice president of Dexin Real Estate since February 2017, primarily
responsible for market research and strategic investment. He has over
19 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.

Mr. Shi joined our Group in October 2001 and served as the deputy
general manager of the engineering department of Dexin Real Estate
from October 2001 to December 2007. He is also a director of certain
members of the Group. He also served as the general managers of
a number of subsidiaries of our Company, including Wenzhou Dexin
Real Estate Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Dexin Wutian Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
Wenzhou Dexin Guangjing Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Wenzhou Dexin
Ecological Park Real Estate Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Dexin Mingcheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Dexin Jintian Real Estate Co., Ltd.
and Wenzhou Dexin Kaicheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. from July 2013
to February 2017. He then served as the manager of the engineering
department of Guangde Sanshihede Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (E{E =
MEEZEARAT) (a joint venture company of our Company which
is held by Dexin Real Estate, Shanghai Hechen Investment Co., Ltd.*
(EBREHREBRZATR) (an Independent Third Party) and Hangzhou
Erjian as to 40%, 35% and 25% and engaged in property development
and sale) from January 2008 to December 2010. He served as the
deputy general manager of Changxing Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
(REEEEEAMRAF) from January 2011 to March 2013. He then
served as the general manager of Wenzhou Dexin Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. and a region company in Wentai (& &R/ 7)) of Dexin Real
Estate from April 2013 to December 2016.
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Prior to joining our Group in 2001, he was the construction officer
of Zhejiang Yuexing Construction Engineering Co. Ltd.* (#7/T &
ERIEAMR AR (formerly known as Zhejiang Changxing No. 3
Construction Engineering Company* (31T & KBS = ZE T2 R A))),
which is engaged in industrial and civil construction engineering, and
he was responsible for project construction management from July
1997 to February 2001.

Mr. Shi graduated from Zhejiang Construction Industrial College* (4
TERBETEER) in Zhejiang, the PRC in July 1997 with a diploma
degree (FEEZF) in Industrial and Civil Construction (T % 8 R F 2 £5).
He also obtained his bachelor’s degree (ANELEFF) in Civil Engineering
(online course) from Chongging University (EE AX£) in Chongging,
the PRC in July 2011. He also obtained a qualification for engineer
issued by Personnel Department of Shaoxing* (REMWAER) in
December 2005.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chau Hing Ling (FE#) (“Ms. Chau”), aged 47, was
appointed as the company secretary of our Company on 18 May
2018. She joined Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK)
Limited since June 2013, and now serves as an executive director
of Corporate Services, where she leads a team of professional staff
to provide a full range of company secretary services. Ms. Chau has
over 21 years of experience in the corporate services industry. Prior to
joining Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, she was the associate
director of corporate secretarial of an international corporate services
provider.

Ms. Chau is also currently the company secretary or joint company
secretary of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms.
Chau received a master of laws majoring in corporate and financial law
from The University of Hong Kong in November 2007. She has been a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) since
May 2013.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC are primarily engaged in the property
development and construction services, property investment and hotel
operations in the PRC.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 279
to 281 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
net results for the year by principal activities is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators and an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. The review and discussion form part of this
directors’ report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.
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The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity
to our staff, provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career
development opportunities based on their merits and performance.
The Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings
and development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their
positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide the products in a way
that satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group
enhances the relationship by continuous interaction with customers to
gain insight on the changing market demand for the products so that
the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also established
procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to ensure
customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. We reinforce business partnerships
with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication in a
proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely
delivery.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance for the
year ended 31 December 2021 will be included in an environmental,
social and governance report to be published by the Company and will
be uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
within five months after the financial year-end.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out on pages 144 to 283 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.0875 per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 28
June 2022, subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 17
June 2022 (the “2022 AGM”).
that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on or before Friday, 30
September 2022.

If conditions fulfiled, it is expected

No interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2021, the
total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounts to
RMBO0.0875 per share, which represents a payout ratio of 25% of the
profit attributable to the shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2021.

No Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
details of which are disclosed as follows:

Purpose
This Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the

Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends to the shareholders of the Company.
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Principles and guidelines

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from
time to time in a general meeting declare dividends in any currency to
be paid to the shareholders of the Company but no dividend shall be
declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the shareholders
of the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company.

The Board has the discretion to declare dividends to the shareholders
of the Company, subject to the Articles of the Association of the
Company (the “Articles”) and all applicable laws and regulations,
taking into account the factors set out below:

e financial results;

e cash flow situation;

e business conditions and strategies;

e future operations and earnings;

e capital requirements and expenditure plans;

e interests of shareholders;

e taxation considerations;

e any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions on payment
of dividends; and

e any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Review of the Dividend Policy

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

(A) For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and

Vote at the 2022 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 14 June 2022 to Friday, 17 June 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2022 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 13 June 2022.

(B) For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed

Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 23 June 2022 to Tuesday, 28 June 2022, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 June 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set

out on page 284 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 279 to 281 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note
14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 235 to 236 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 259 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
Notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
260 to 261 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders are set out
in Note 42(a) of the consolidated financial statements on page 283 of
this annual report. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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BORROWINGS FROM BANK AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year, the Company issued senior notes with details set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Senior
notes” in this annual report. Details of borrowings from bank and other
financial institutions of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 262 to
265 of this annual report.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not made
any loan or provided any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to
the Directors, senior management of the Company, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

On 6 August 2021, the Company has redeemed the senior notes
(the “2021 Senior Notes”) in full in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the 2021 Senior Notes at their outstanding principal
amount of US$258,180,000.00 together with interest accrued to the
Maturity Date.

On 8 October 2021, Tak Shin International Limited (“Tak Shin”)
purchased in the open market the US$200,000,000 11.875%
senior notes due 2022 (the “2022 Notes”) issued by the Company
in an aggregate principal amount of approximately US$1,000,000,
representing approximately 0.29% of the initial principal amount of the
2022 Notes.

On 11 October 2021, Tak Shin purchased in the open market the
2022 Notes issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount
of approximately US$1,200,000, representing approximately 0.34% of
the initial principal amount of the 2022 Notes.
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On 12 October 2021, Tak Shin purchased in the open market the
2022 Notes issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount
of approximately US$700,000, representing approximately 0.2% of the
initial principal amount of the 2022 Notes.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of the following seven Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

Ms. Shan Bei

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Shihao

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

Mr. Ding Jiangang
Mr. Chen Hengliu
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages
63 to 73 in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” to this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin being the executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing from 26 February 2019 (the
“Listing Date”).

Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin, being the executive Directors,
have renewed the service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 26 February 2022.

Ms. Shan Bei, being an executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 August 2020.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has renewed the
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 26 February 2022.

Each of Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen
Hengliu, being an independent non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen Hengliu,
being the independent non-executive Directors, have renewed the
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years

commencing from 26 February 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed
to have entered into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with any member of the Group (excluding agreements expiring or
determinable by any member of the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Connected Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 274 to 278 of this annual report, no contract
of significance was entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at the end of
the year and no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31
December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTOR'’S INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Connected Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 274 to 278 of this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director or any entity connected with such a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments (including the discretionary bonuses) of the Directors
and senior management of the Group are decided by the Board
with reference to the recommendation given by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 226 to 230 of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme as incentive
for Directors and eligible employees. Details of the said scheme are
set out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
annual report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or
are payable, for the year ended 31 December 2021, by the Group to
or on behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 1 February 2019, each of the controlling shareholders entered into
the deed of non-competition in favor of the Company (the “Deed of
Non-competition”), pursuant to which, among other things, each
of the Controlling Shareholders has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken, jointly and severally given certain non-competition
undertakings to the Company. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the prospectus of the
Company (the “Prospectus”).

The controlling shareholders confirmed that they have complied with
the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31 December
2021. The independent non-executive Directors have conducted
a review for the year ended 31 December 2021 and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the Deed of Non-
competition has been fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters
as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ service contracts”
in this annual report, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Group was entered into or in existence as at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceedings during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 11 January 2019, the Company adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”), which falls within the ambit of, and is
subject to, the regulations under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Directors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will enable the
Group to reward employees, Directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group. Given that the Directors are
entitled to determine the performance targets to be achieved as well
as the minimum period that an option must be held before an option
can be exercised on a case by case basis, and that the exercise price
of an option cannot in any event fall below the price stipulated in the
Listing Rules or such higher price as may be fixed by the Directors, it
is expected that grantees of an option will make an effort to contribute
to the development of the Group so as to bring about an increased
market price of the Shares in order to capitalize on the benefits of the
options granted.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
Shares commence on the Stock Exchange, such 10% limit represents
263,200,000 Shares (i.e. approximately 9.74% of the issued shares as
at the date of this annual report), but excluding any Shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue for the time being.
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The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years from 11 January 2019 and the options granted have a 10-
year exercise period. Options may be vested over such period(s)
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to
compliance with the requirements under any applicable laws,
regulations or rules.

The exercise price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will be
a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant
(provided that in the event that any option is proposed to be granted
within a period of less than five business days after the trading of the
Shares first commences on the Stock Exchange, the new issue price
of the Shares for the Global Offering shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before Listing); and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of an option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report and there
were no outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

A summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme has been set out
in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VI of the
Prospectus.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFQO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Long/short position in ordinary Shares

Name of Director Capacity

BEEfR

54

Mr. Hu Yiping® Interest in controlled
corporation

HH—F g REEE R

Mr. Fei Zhongmin Beneficial owner

BREEE BEREAA

Ms. Shan Bei Beneficial owner

BHEat EnEAA

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 2,701,341,000 shares
in issue as at 31 December 2021.

(8) The entire issued share capital of Tak Yuan International Limited (“Tak
Yuan”) is held by Mr. Hu Yiping, therefore Mr. Hu Yiping is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by Tak Yuan by virtue of the SFO.
Since Mr. Hu Yiping owns 92% of Tak Shin International Limited (“Tak
Shin”), Mr. Hu Yiping is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Tak Shin by virtue of the SFO.
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NEIREEZFIERIOAB T

() REBRIPNER KR

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
issued share capital®
EALQRE #1T
BRANBAT DL

Number of
ordinary Shares
interested"
BEERERW
ZERHEAM

1,916,886,000 (L) 70.96%
39,164,500 (L) 1.45%
5,131,900 (L) 0.19%

P&
(M FEILIEZALRBOFNEE -
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(ii) Interests in associated corporations of the (i) R ARMEBSEE N ER
Company

Percentage of

Name of associated Capacity/nature Number of shareholding

Name of Director corporation of interest shares!" interest

S WHEEE SR 5/ ERME RAEE® REBAL

Mr. Hu Yiping Tak Shin® Beneficial owner 460 (L) 92.00%
H—FrE g ExBEA

Mr. Hu Shihao Tak Shin® Beneficial owner 40 (L) 8.00%
LEEY g R EHBERA

Mr. Fei Zhongmin Deqing Jinxiao Corporate Beneficial owner 2,000,000 (L) 20.00%

Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

BARLE BELBREEAELE (ERER) ERBEA

Notes B+

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares. (1) FERILEZATRBOFHITR -

(2) Tak Shin is the holding company of the Company and therefore an (2) EMARRANERAR AR ARQF
“associated corporation” of the Company within the meaning of Part WIEBEE ] (EE R(EHMAEERDD
XV of the SFO. Tak Shin held 1,841,936,000 Shares of the Company EXVEL) - BIRFAEAR A ZHBRALD
which accounted for approximately 68.19% of the total share capital 68.19%#) /R 2 7]1,841,936,000 B i 17 ©

of the Company.
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Interests in debentures of the Company
The 9.95% senior notes due 2022 in the aggregate principal

amount of US$350 million issued on 4 December 2020 and 14
January 2021:

Name of Director

Capacity in which debentures were held

RAE L AjEREA

A2020FE12 A4 K2021%E1 A14A & H
172022 F 2| BAM) A € 4881 350,000,000
EITO.95%EHREE ¢

Amount of
debentures of
the Company held

BENEQF
EEZEB BEEEENS G EEESH
Mr. Hu Yiping Corporation interests (Interest in controlled corporation) US$2,900,000 (note 1)
HH— st NRERD (RIEHIR A2 ) 2,900,000

T (FsE1)
Note: Wiz -

(1) The US$2,900,000 debentures were held by Tak Shin, which is in turn
92% directly owned by Mr. Hu Yiping and 8% directly owned by Mr.
Hu Shihao, respectively.

Save as disclosed above in this annual report and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests and/
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,

as at 31 December 2021, the following corporations/persons (other

than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests

of 5% or more in the issued shares of the Company according to the

register of interests required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

Name

Capacity

B A &6

Tak Shin Beneficial owner
= EREAA

Ms. Wei Peifen® Interest of spouse
BWMS2Zte B R

Notes:

M

@

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

The calculation is based on the total number of 2,701,341,000 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2021.

Ms. Wei Peifen is the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping. Under the SFO, Ms. Wei
Peifen is deemed to be interested in Mr. Hu Yiping’s interests in Tak Shin
and Tak Yuan.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,

as at 31 December 2021, no person (other than the Directors or

chief executives of the Company) had registered an interest or a

short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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TERRAEZHHERS

BARARIAEMESIESITRAERAM - B
2021512 4318 - RBARAIR(BFRHPE
165 ) 336K AT EMBBSZRM - LLTE
B, AT (RAREFAHZESTBRABRIN) R
RNARE BTN EE5% KA _EAIRER

Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares the Company’s
interested™

BEERN
HEERBEM

1,841,936,000 (L)

issued share capital®
HAE AR E BT
RAMNBAE S L
68.19%

1,916,886,000 (L) 70.96%

GEX

(1 FEILIEZALRBEOFNEE -

(2 #EMR2021F12A31BEETRMNEE
2,701,341,000 /%1 & -

@) BASFZLTRB—FEENET - RE(EFR
HEERL)  BRAFLEIRER/ER - FERER
I REIRE S A o

B EXFTIEEEIN  MEZARA - 2021 F
12A318 ' IEEMAT (ARREFIES
THRABBIN ERARRRE(ES RBEK
Bl) 336 BT E M E LM R AR A R R
DB R R SOA R EITER °
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, the Group’s largest customers accounted
for 1.72% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 2.09% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s largest suppliers accounted
for 5.35% of the Group’s total purchase. The Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 22.92% of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers or the Group’s five largest customers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF
HOLDERS OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their respective holding
of the Company'’s securities.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the employees of the
Hong Kong subsidiaries are required to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The employees of both Hong
Kong and the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to this
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any forfeited
contributions that were utilised to reduce the level of contributions
under its defined contribution scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in Note
8 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 226 to 230 of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had not
entered into any equity-linked agreements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All
the connected transactions during the year that need to be disclosed
herein are conducted in compliance with the Listing Rules. Reference
is made to the various announcements of the Company as referred
to below. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used in this
subsection shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
announcements.
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Details of the connected transactions are set out below:

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 29
June 2021. On 29 June 2021, Dothink Group (being a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Dexin Holding entered into the
Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Dothink Group agreed
to transfer 100% of the equity interest in the Target Company to Dexin
Holding at a consideration of RMB56,799,000. Upon completion of
the transaction, the Target Company will cease to be a subsidiary of
Dothink Group and the Company.

As at 29 June 2021, Dexin Real Estate and Zhejiang Qingjiao entered
into the Guarantee Fee Agreement where the loan amounted to
RMB100,000,000 and being corporate guaranteed by Dexin Real
Estate. Pursuant to the Guarantee Fee Agreement:

(1) the parties agreed that the amount of the Guarantee will be
capped at RMB100 million; and

(2) Zhejiang Qingjiao will pay the Guarantee Fee to Dothink Group
of 1.0% per annum of the outstanding bank balance of the
Guarantee until the Loan is fully settled by the said subsidiary of
the Target Company.

Dexin Holding is owned as to 91.61% by Mr. Hu Yiping (an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder) and as to 8.39% by Ms. Wei
Peifen (the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping), respectively.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 29
July 2021. On 29 July 2021, Shanghai Dejiao (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Ms. Shan Bei (as one of the
Purchasers) entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, pursuant
to which Shanghai Dejiao has agreed to sell, and the Purchasers have
agreed to purchase, the Property at a consideration of RMB7,185,200.

Ms. Shan Bei is an executive Director and vice president of the
Company.
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The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. All the continuing connected transactions during the year
that need to be disclosed herein are conducted in compliance with
the Listing Rules. Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 28 November 2019, 13 December 2019, 28 May

2020, 3 September 2020 and 3 May 2021. The transaction amount of
the continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2021 is set out below:

Connected Person

BEAL

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions
TR IFEFEL S
Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as “Shengquan Property
Service Co., Ltd")
(“Shengquan Property Service”)"
EEREMERBERAR
(R EEMERBERLRF])
([EBE2YEREE]) O
Zhejiang Geya Decoration Co., Ltd.
(“Zhejiang Geya Decoration”)?
AT IER A AR AR ([ AT TS ]) @
Huzhou Geya Doors and Windows Co., Ltd.
(“Huzhou Geya”)®
WNEHEFIEBRAT (AMER]©
Dexin Services Group Limited
(“Dexin Services”)®
EERGSEERRAR ([EEERED®
Dexin Services Group Limited
(“Dexin Services”)®
EEREEERRAR ([EEEREDO
Dexin Services Group Limited
(“Dexin Services”)®

RERBSEEFRAR ([RBERK])O

FIEAT

Nature of Transaction

ReEME

Provision of property management service

R EEERE

Provision of decoration and
related services
TR 8 K AR A AR 75
Provision of decoration and
related services
TR 8 S AR A AR 75

Smart community solution services

BEMEBRT RIR
Commercial consulting and related services

EES:ECEE) T

Property sales assistance services

FS EE 15 SH AR 75

12A31 AL FENFERER SN HLEE

Transaction Amount
for Year Ended

31 December 2021
H=20215F12H31H
LEENRZEH
(RMB’000)
(AR®T )

91,981

238,636

16,364

16,988

6,775

15,848
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Notes:

M

96

ShengQuan Property Service is a company established under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability and is principally engaged in providing
property management services. ShengQuan Property Service is owned
as to approximately 81.79% by Shengquan Holding Co., Ltd. which is
wholly-owned by Dexin Holding Group Limited, a company owned by Mr.
Hu Yiping (the Chairman, an executive Director and controlling shareholder
of the Company) as to 91.61% and Ms. Wei Peifen (the wife of Mr. Hu
Yiping and a controlling shareholder) as to 8.39%, respectively.

On 1 February 2019, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service
entered into the framework property management service agreement to
govern the provision of property management services by ShengQuan
Property Service to the Group for its property development projects for a
term up to 31 December 2021.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service
entered into the supplemental framework property management agreement
to amend the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB73.0 million. The annual caps for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2021 were RMB51.0 million and RMB65.9 million, respectively.

On 28 May 2020, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service
entered into the Supplemental Framework Property Management Service
Agreement to revise the existing annual caps under the Framework
Property Management Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2021. Save for the amendment to the existing annual caps, all
other terms and conditions (including the pricing policy and basis) of the
Framework Property Management Service Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

The revised annual caps under the Supplemental Framework Property
Management Service Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2021 were RMB124,000,000 and RMB190,000,000, respectively.

On 3 September 2020, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Second Supplemental
Framework Property Management Service Agreement’) to further
revise the proposed annual caps under the Framework Property
Management Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2021.

M

Miat
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The Second Supplemental Framework Property Management Service
Agreement replaces and supersedes the Supplemental Framework
Property Management Service Agreement in its entirety. Save for the
amendment to the existing annual caps, all other terms and conditions
(including the pricing policy and basis) of the Framework Property
Management Service Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

The revised annual caps under the Second Supplemental Framework
Property Management Service Agreement for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021 were RMB106,000,000 and RMB179,000,000,
respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Shengquan Property entered into the
New Framework Property Management Service Agreement to (i) amend the
existing annual caps under the Framework Property Management Service
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021; and (ii) determine the
proposed annual caps for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2023.

The revised annual cap under the New Framework Property Management
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB93,600,000, the proposed annual caps for the two years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023 will be RMB99,200,000 and RMB108,400,000
respectively.

Zhejiang Geya Decoration is a company established under the laws of the
PRC with limited liability and is principally engaged in providing decoration
services. Zhejiang Geya Decoration is owned as to 91.43% by Mr. Hu
Yuegen, the brother of Mr. Hu Yiping.

On 1 February 2019, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the framework decoration service agreement to govern the provision
of decoration and related services by Zhejiang Geya Decoration to the
Group for its property development projects for a term up to 31 December
2021.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration
entered into the supplemental framework property management agreement
to amend the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB200.0 million. The annual caps for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2021 were RMB160.0 million and RMB200.0 million,
respectively.
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On 28 May 2020, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the Supplemental Framework Decoration Service Agreement to
revise the existing annual caps under the Framework Decoration Service
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and for the year ending
31 December 2021.

The revised annual caps under the Supplemental Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 were
RMB260,000,000 and RMB320,000,000, respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the New Framework Decoration Service Agreement to determine the
proposed annual caps for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
20283, in order to regulate the transactions between the Group and
Zhejiang Geya Decoration in relation to the provision of decoration and
related services for the Group’s properties.

The proposed annual caps under the New Framework Decoration Service
Agreement for the two years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023 will be
RMB336,000,000 and RMB353,000,000 respectively.

Huzhou Geya is a company established under the laws of the PRC with
limited liability and is principally engaged in providing decoration services.
Huzhou Geya is owned as to 90% by Mr. Hu Yuegen, the brother of Mr.
Hu Yiping.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into
the framework decoration service agreement to govern the provision of
decoration and related services by Huzhou Geya to the Group for its
property development projects for a term up to 31 December 2019.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB30.0
million.

On 28 May 2020, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into the New
Huzhou Framework Decoration Service Agreement, whereby Huzhou Geya
agreed to provide decoration and related services to the Group.

The proposed annual caps under the New Huzhou Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the two years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021
will be RMB53,000,000 and RMB45,000,000, respectively.
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On 3 May 2021, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into the New
Huzhou Framework Decoration Service Agreement to determine the
proposed annual caps for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2023, in order to regulate the transactions between the Group and Huzhou
Geya in relation to the provision of decoration and related services for the
Group’s properties.

The proposed annual caps under the New Huzhou Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the two years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023
will be RMB47,000,000 and RMB50,000,000, respectively.

Dexin Services Group Limited, a company established under the laws of
the Cayman Islands with limited liability.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Dexin Services entered into the
Framework Agreement for Smart Community Solutions Services to govern
the provision of smart community solution services by Dexin Services to
the Group for its property development projects for the three years ended/
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The proposed annual caps under the Framework Agreement for Smart
Community Solutions Services for the three years ended/ending
31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 was/will be RMB17,700,000,
RMB19,700,000 and RMB20,600,000, respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Dexin Services entered into the
Framework Agreement for Commercial Consulting and Related Services
to govern the provision of commercial consulting and related services by
Dexin Services to the Group for its property development projects for the
three years ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The proposed annual caps under the Framework Agreement for
Commercial Consulting and Related Services for the three years ended/
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 was/will be RMB6,800,000,
RMB6,800,000 and RMB6,800,000, respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Dexin Services entered into the
Framework Agreement for Property Sales Assistance Services to govern
the provision of property sales assistance services by Dexin Services to
the Group for its property development projects for the three years ended/
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The proposed annual caps under the Framework Agreement for Property
Sales Assistance Services for the three years ended/ending 31 December
2021, 2022 and 2023 was/will be RMB16,400,000, RMB17,200,000 and
RMB18,100,000, respectively.

(4)
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On 7 August 2020, Hangzhou Wuhe (a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company) as lessor and each of Hangzhou Changyu and
Hangzhou Kangyu as lessee entered into the Lease Agreements for a
term of three years from 15 December 2020 to 14 December 2023.
The Proposed Annual Caps under the Lease Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB7,404,800 and two years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023 will be RMB9,353,500 and RMB8,963,800,
respectively.

The Transactions allow the Group to increase the occupancy rate
and make efficient use of its investment properties and increase its
revenue from leasing.

Each of Hangzhou Changyu and Hangzhou Kangyu is owned as to
100% by Hangzhou Suiyu, which is owned as to 58.0% by Dexin
Holding. Dexin Holding is owned as to 91.61% by Mr. Hu Yiping (an
executive Director and a controlling Shareholder) and 8.39% by Ms.
Wei Peifen (the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping and a controlling Shareholder).

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The independent
non-executive Directors further confirmed that the annual caps in
respect of the above continuing connected transactions are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole and that the transactions were conducted in accordance
with the pricing policies disclosed in the Prospectus or the relevant
announcements.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor of the Company has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that nothing has come to its
attention in relation to the above continuing connected transactions
with regard to the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such
transactions.

The Group entered into certain related party transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2021,
are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements on

details of which

pages 274 to 278 of this annual report. Save as disclosed above,
none of related party transactions constituted connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors
and the Group’s senior management who, because of his/her office
or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2021. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the
Model Code by the senior management of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

1) PricewaterhouseCoopers has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 14 April 2022 and Elite Partners
CPA Limited as the new auditor of the Company with
effect from 14 April 2022, to fill a casual vacancy following
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ resignation, the term of office will be

until the end of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

2) The Company has redeemed the US$200,000,000 11.875%
Senior Notes due 2022 in full in accordance with the terms
and conditions at the outstanding principal amount of
US$183,010,000.00 together with interest accrued to the Maturity
Date, with a total redemption amount of US$188,443,566.90 paid
by the Company at maturity.
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Save as disclosed above, there are no important events after the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the public float as required under
the Listing Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for all Directors and senior management. These insurances provided
protection to the liability incurred from related cost, fees, expense and
legal actions resulting from corporate activities. Pursuant to Article 192
of the Articles, the Directors, managing Directors, alternate Directors,
auditors, secretary and other officers for the time being of the
Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective executors or
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or
any of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or
trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their
own fraud or dishonesty, and none of them shall be answerable for
the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other of them, or for
joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers
or other persons with whom any moneys or effects of the Company
shall be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for the insufficiency
or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of the Company
shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or
damage which may arise in the execution of their respective offices
or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same shall happen by
or through their own fraud, dishonesty or recklessness. The Company
may take out and pay the premium and other moneys for the
maintenance of insurance, bonds and other instruments for the benefit
either of the Company or the Directors (and/or other officers) or any
of them to indemnify the Company and/or Directors (and/or other
officers) named therein for this purpose against any loss, damage,
liability and claim which they may suffer or sustain in connection with
any breach by the Directors (and/or other officers) or any of them of
their duties to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
105 to 136 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to RMB3,949,830.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management
and external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 April
2022, PricewaterhouseCoopers has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 14 April 2022 and Elite Partners CPA
Limited as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 14 April
2022, to fill a casual vacancy following PricewaterhouseCoopers’
resignation, the term of office will be until the end of the next annual
general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be proposed at the
2022 AGM to re-appoint Elite Partners CPA Limited as the auditor of
the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD AND THE
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the changes in the Board and the information of Directors are as
follows:

() Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (our independent non-executive
Director) resigned as independent non-executive director of
Capital Finance Holdings Limited (stock code: 8239) which is
listed on the Stock Exchange with effect from 1 January 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that no information

is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Hu Yiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 May 2022
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since the Listing
Date. The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Board believes that the Company has fully complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD
(1) Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board Committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.
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(2) Directors’ and senior management’s liability
insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors and senior management of the Company
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

(3) Board composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)
Mr. Fei Zhongmin

Ms. Shan Bei

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu Shihao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Except that Mr. Hu Yiping is the father of Mr. Hu Shihao, no other
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) between the Board members.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times
met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10(A) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Among the
three independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen
Albert has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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(4) Board diversity policy

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination
committee (or the Board) shall have a policy concerning diversity
of board members, and shall disclose the policy on diversity or
a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report. The
board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) specifies that in designing the composition of the
Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The appointment of Directors will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be evaluated against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report every year and the Nomination Committee
will supervise the implementation of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will review the effectiveness of this policy, as
appropriate, discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

As at 31 December 2021, the diversity of the Board is illustrated
as below. Further details on the biographies and experience of the
Directors are set out on pages 63 to 69 of this annual report.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the membership,
structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion that
the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and
skills of the Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the
Company to maintain high standard of operation.

(5) Measurable objectives

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

() Independence: The Board should include a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so that
there is a strong element of independence in the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors shall be of sufficient
calibre and stature for their views to carry weight.

(i) Skills and experience: The Board possesses a balance of
skills appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and
management backgrounds that taken together provide the
Company with considerable experience in a range of activities.

Apart from the above objectives, the Board Diversity Policy has
the following objectives to comply with the Listing Rules:

1. at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

2. at least three of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

3. at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise; and

4. at least one of the members of the Board shall be female.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the Board
Diversity Policy.
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(6) Confirmation of independence by the

independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

Except that Mr. Hu Yiping (an executive Director) is the father of
Mr. Hu Shihao (a non-executive Director), none of the Directors
has any personal relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
respective identity of the public companies or organisations
and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed
to disclose, and already disclosed their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

(7) Induction and continuous professional

development

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 (which has been re-
numbered as C.1.4 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.1 (which has been re-
numbered as C.1.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code, each
newly appointed Director should be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors, namely HZE2021F12A31BLLFE  28BEFH
Mr. Hu Yiping, Mr. Fei Zhongmin, Ms. Shan Bei, Mr. Hu Shihao, (BIHA—F ks  BRKLE BT
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen HFREE - FokEREL - TEBLEER
Hengliu, have been updated with the latest developments BRIENLTE)HMEERBEMHERESH
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory CEMHARAD) REAMBEREEHE D EH &K
requirements through reading materials to ensure compliance and F#ERBA  UWHEREHAREARSEE
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. RIFMGEETRER - 1IN MESHE
In addition, continuing briefing and professional development to PMEEEERGEVERKET AL -

Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

The individual training record of each Director received during the EEENAFEREXEIZ DMy 0
Year is summarised below: T:

Directors Reading materials
= B R A A
A
\
\
y
y
\
3

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Hu Yiping
H—FEE

Mr. Fei Zhongmin
BREEE

Ms. Shan Bei
BELtL

Non-executive Director
FHITES

Mr. Hu Shihao
TR L

Independent Non-executive Directors
BAFHTES

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

EoxiEE L

Mr. Ding Jiangang

TEmIEE

Mr. Chen Hengliu

BRIBINSEAE
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(8) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered
as C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
performed by different individuals. Under the current organisation
structure of the Company, Mr. Hu Yiping is the Chairman of the
Company and Mr. Fei Zhongmin is the president of the Company
(namely, the chief executive officer of the Company).

The Board and the senior management, which comprises
experienced individuals with high calibre, can ensure the balance
of power and authority. As at 31 December 2021, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors.

(9) Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin, being an executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date.

Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin, being the executive
Directors, have renewed the service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 26 February 2022.

Ms. Shan Bei, being an executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 August 2020.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has renewed the
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 26 February 2022.

Each of Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr.
Chen Hengliu, being an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen
Hengliu, being the independent non-executive Directors, have
renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 26 February 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is
proposed to have entered into any service agreement or letter of
appointment with any member of the Group (excluding agreements
expiring or determinable by any member of the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself/herself for election by shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company after appointment and any new Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by the Shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

(10)Board meetings and committee meetings

112

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee shall meet at least once every year and the Audit
Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Notices of not less
than fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The
agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
intended date of the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
meeting. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to
the chairman of the Board or the committee members prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
with copies circulated to relevant Board or Board Committee for
comments and records.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Board or committee members
and dissenting views expressed. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are sent to the relevant Board or
committee members for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, six board meetings
were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these
meetings is set out in the table below:

Directors

=

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman and Executive Director)
HA—FEE(ZFHRNTES)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (Executive Director)

BOBSEE (RITES)

Ms. Shan Bei (Executive Director)

BRELL (ITESR)

Mr. Hu Shihao (Non-executive Director)
AR E GERITES)

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Independent Non-executive Director)
EoxkiEE L OBLIFRITESE)

Mr. Ding Jiangang (Independent Non-executive Director)
TER%E BIZIERITES)

Mr. Chen Hengliu (Independent Non-executive Director)

BRIE/NSEE OB IFNITES)

(11)Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made of all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board to ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s
needs. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management on the
Company’s behalf.

Corporate governance function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and has delegated the
corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include:

(@) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors of the Group; and

(e) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Group and the disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report to be contained in the
Company’s annual reports.

BOARD COMMITTEES
(1) Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2021, the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) comprised three
members, namely Mr. Hu Yiping (the chairman and executive
Director), Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen Hengliu (each being
an independent non-executive Director). The majority of the
committee members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Hu Yiping is the chairman of this committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

e To review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

e To develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

e To identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a
member of the Board and to select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

e To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;
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e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular, the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company; and

e To develop a policy concerning diversity of members of the
Board and to disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in
the corporate governance report.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. Their written terms of reference are
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

During the year under review, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held and the attendance record of the Nomination
Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors

5=

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)
HA—F AL (EF)

Mr. Ding Jiangang

T 2RI E

Mr. Chen Hengliu
BRIE/NE A4

In the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed and
discussed the policy, procedure and criteria for nomination of
the Directors, reviewed and discussed the Board Diversity Policy
and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the
policy and the progress made towards meeting the measurable
objective in the policy, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, considered the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors, reviewed the time commitment required from the
non-executive Director and fulfilled required duties as aforesaid.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the following policy with regard to
nomination of Directors.

1. Objective
The Policy aims to:

e set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company;

e ensure that the Board the Company has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company; and

e ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.

2. Scope

The Policy applies to the Directors of the Company and where
applicable, senior management prepared for Board positions
under the succession planning of the Company.

3. Nomination and Appointment of Directors
3.1 Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

e Character and integrity.

e Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are
relevant to the business and corporate strategies of
the Company.
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Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules
and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for
achieving diversity on the Board.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
business of the Company.
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3.2 Nomination Procedures 3.2 REEF
3.2.1 Appointment of directors M EAES
(i) The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s) () REZESLHEZER
suitably qualified to become Board members, RAEFGEZTIBERK

RAREK  WESEBMNK
REFEREMAL A
B 15 & (5 B B FE AT

having due regard to the board diversity policy
and the nomination policy of the Company, and
assesses the independence of the proposed

independent non-executive director(s) as BEEMIBILE -
appropriate.
(i) The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) iy RBEZEERESTERE

to the Board. HEEE -
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(vi The Shareholders approve the election of
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(ii)

recommended by the Nomination Committee,

having due regard to the board diversity policy

and the nomination policy

of the Company.

(iv)

individual(s) as director(s) or recommends the

individual(s) to stand for
meeting. Individual(s) ap
to fill a casual vacancy

election at a general
pointed by the Board
or as an addition to

the Board will be subject to re-election by

shareholders of the Company at the next annual

general meeting after i

nitial appointment in

accordance with the articles of association of the

Company.

shall attend the annual general meeting of the

Company to answer the questions raised by the

shareholders on the nomi

nation of directors and

other matters in relation to the Policy.

individual(s), who stand(s)
meeting, as director(s).

3.2.2 Re-appointment of directors

(i)

(i

The Nomination Commi

(vi)

for election at general
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ttee shall review the (i)

overall contribution and service to the Company

of the retiring director including his attendance of

Board meetings and, where applicable, general

meetings, and the level of participation and

performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and

(if)

determine whether the retiring director continues

to meet the criteria as set

out in 3.1.
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(i) The Board considers each retiring director
recommended by the Nomination Committee,
having due regard to the board diversity policy
and the nomination policy of the Company.

(iv) The Board recommends the retiring directors
to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

(v) The shareholders approve the re-election of
directors at the annual general meeting.

Review and Monitoring of the Policy

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis at least annually and diversity of
the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall keep under review the
leadership needs of the Company, both executive and
non-executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of
the Company to complete effectively in the marketplace.

The Nomination Committee shall keep up to date and fully
informed about strategic issues and commercial changes
affecting the Company and the market in which it operates.
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(2) Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2021, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) comprised three
members, namely Mr. Fei Zhongmin (an executive Director),
Mr. Ding Jiangang (an independent non-executive Director) and
Mr. Chen Hengliu (an independent non-executive Director), the
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Ding Jiangang is the chairman of this committee.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in paragraph B.1.2(c) (which has been re-numbered
as E.1.2 since 1 January 2022) under Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (i.e. make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management members).

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

e To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors of the Company;
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To consider factors such as the level of remuneration paid
by comparable companies, the time commitment and
responsibilities of directors and senior management, and the
employment conditions of the Company and its subsidiaries
and consolidated affiliated entities;

To consider the level of remuneration required to attract and
retain directors to manage the Company successfully;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

To ensure that no director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration. For the
avoidance of doubt, members of the committee must not be
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration;

To review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

To advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote in
respect of any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules,
and as to whether the terms are fair and reasonable, and
whether such contracts are in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.
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Their written terms of reference are available on the respective
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year under review, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held and the attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors

BE=x

Mr. Ding Jiangang (Chairman)
TEmEE (XF)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

BhgtE

Mr. Chen Hengliu

BRIE7SEAE

In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, assessed performance of executive
Directors, and fulfilled required duties as aforesaid.
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BEFEZRERAF

EERME

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 226 to 230 of this
annual report. Details of the remuneration by band of the members
of the senior management of the Company (except for Directors)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

Remuneration band
N E

Nil to RMB817,600 (equivalent to nil to HKD1,000,000)
& AR¥817,6007T (18E MR Z%£1,000,000#7T)

ERESHFINFBEBERNAFTRE226
F230EMERE SRR ES - L E2021
F1I2AMAEFEARG R REEENE
(BEERIN IRGE S 5 F BB a0
™

Number of

individual(s)

RMB817,600 to RMB1,226,400 (equivalent to HKD1,000,000 to HKD1,500,000) =
AR¥817,6007t 2 AR 1,226,400 7T (FHE #21,000,0007% 7T £ 1,500,000 7T )

RMB1,635,200 to RMB2,044,000 (equivalent to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000) —
AR¥1,635,2007c 2 AR #2,044,0007T (A& 722,000,000/ 70 £ 2,500,000% 7T )

RMB2,044,000 to RMB2,452,800 (equivalent to HKD2,500,000 to HKD3,000,000) 1
AR ®2,044,0007T= AR ¥ 2,452,8007T (FHE 72,500,000/8 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T.)
RMB2,452,800 to RMB2,861,600 (equivalent to HKD3,000,000 to HKD3,500,000) 2

AR¥2,452,8007t 2 AR¥2,861,6007T (#HE 73,000,000/ 7T % 3,500,000 7T)

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2021, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) comprised three members, namely Mr.
Hu Shihao (a non-executive Director), Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
(an independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Ding Jiangang
(an independent non-executive Director), the majority of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
is the chairman of this committee. The main duties of the Audit
Committee include the following:

e To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(3) B EEE
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To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should
discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

To develop and implement policies on engaging an external
auditor to provide non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

To monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, accounts, half yearly reports and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;
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Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ and
consolidated affiliated entities’ operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices;

To review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the Terms of
Reference;

To review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action;

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;
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e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

e To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors;

e To review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code from time to time adopted and disclosure in
the corporate governance report;

e To review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure compliance with terms approved by shareholders
of the Company; and

e To perform the Company’s corporate governance functions
with details set out in the paragraph headed “THE BOARD -
(13) Corporate Governance Function” above.

During the year under review, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members at these meetings is set out in the table
below:

Directors
Ex
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Chairman)
EREEL(EF)
Mr. Hu Shihao
AR EE
Mr. Ding Jiangang
TEmIEE

ERERRE

s EENEREEREREEABMNE
IIRFEEXRER

s EBERERARAEBTERNEE
MENENBRNER

. %i BENERRERERESNERT
R R ARTFM (mE)
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b
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B e
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Attended/Eligible

to attend
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2/2

2/2

2/2
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In those meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s
policies on corporate governance and discussed the same with
the Board, reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions) and
associated processes and the re-appointment of the external
auditor and fulfilled required duties as aforesaid. The Board
had not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed (i) the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2021 as well as the audit’s report prepared by the external auditor
relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of
audit; (i) the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 as well as the review
report prepared by the auditor relating to accounting issues and
major findings in course of review; and (iii) the audit scope and
audit plan prepared by the auditor relating to the audit for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

There are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. Their written terms of reference
are available on the respective website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 which give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of
the Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report in this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Group updates and reports the key risk areas,
including any remedial plans, if deemed necessary or appropriate, to
the Audit Committee for consideration. The identified key risk areas
and the appropriate risk mitigation strategies were reviewed and
commented by the Board at its meeting annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review of both
design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021, covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, our internal control
department performed internal control review and carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in
internal control and risk management measures as recommended
to enhance the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board.
Based on the findings and recommendations as well as the comments
of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Company has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2019. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an internal
control system to manage all kinds of risks facing by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board
receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that oversees
risk management and internal audit functions.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2021 was conducted by
our internal audit department. The review is conducted annually. The
Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major
risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register is
updated by management as the risk owners with addition of new risks
and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after
the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review process
can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in
the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that
they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on an
ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management framework
will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management meeting
is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily
business operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.
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HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), procedures including
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions to relevant Directors and employees, identification of
project by code name and dissemination of information to stated
purpose and on a need-to-know basis have been implemented by the
Group to guard against possible mishandling and/or unauthorised use
of inside information within the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, an analysis of the fee
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Company (including
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Elite Partners CPA Limited) in respect of
audit services and non-audit services is set out as follows:

Service Category

BREREHE

REREBEVESTIECEF LB KD
MRERR RERBMARTELE  AEED
EwiEf  ERANEHESRETARER
ZHHLBHRRZXZRE - ARIRBERIEB Rk
[(FEANEIREAREBRALERER - A
BrEREE 2 ARTRETE R SR E K EE
ABHEE °

o B 3 BN

BHZE2021F12A31BIEFE - RBFARB R
FEBITRBEN A ARQRINEZEED (R
REERKEGHMEBEMERATEEEEA
EBERAR) MBEASMHIWT

Fees Paid/Payable

et ENEA R 7 %8 Bl

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Audit services B IR 11,400
Non-audit services HEE RS

— Senior notes issuance related fee —BERBHITIHHEER 550

- Others — HAth 200

Total st 12,150

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

The Company engaged Ms. Chau Hing Ling, the director of Corporate
Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited (a company
secretarial service provider), as the company secretary of the
Company. Her primary contact at the Company is Ms. Shan Bei, an
executive director of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chau Hing Ling
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
update their skills and knowledge during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two general meetings,
being the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company (“2021 AGM”)
and an extraordinary general meeting were held on 4 June 2021 and
25 June 2021 respectively.

Name of the Directors

EEEW

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Hu Yiping
HH—FEsE

Mr. Fei Zhongmin
BRgUEE

Ms. Shan Bei
BELt

Non-executive Director
FHTES

Mr. Hu Shihao
HFREE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

FoxrEE L

Mr. Ding Jiangang

T ML

Mr. Chen Hengliu

PRIE/SEE

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. The chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive, and the
chairmen of Board Committees, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee attended the 2021 AGM to answer questions
and collect views of shareholders.
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Directors’
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2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the shareholders and potential investors on the
Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Directors. The chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the annual general
meeting to answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of
the Company will also attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company and
its shareholders and maintains a website at http://www.dothinkgroup.
com, where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may at any time contact the
Company’s Investor Relations Department at 852-31509914 or
email to ir@dexingroup.com. The Board will review the shareholders’
communication policy regularly to ensure its effectiveness.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings, including nomination and
election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each shareholder meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with Article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

(2) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands. However, shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles for requisitioning
an extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at
such meeting. The requirements and procedures of Article 64 of
the Articles are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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DA~ ¥ A~ e
TEERTMS
(3) Enquiries to the Board B) IEESRLESR
Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests BERERIEEEAIZ T @ EmARRED
to the Company as follows: EREHAXEK
Address: Room 2813, 28/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Ak - HEFIREFREFIQRFIRF L
Central, Central, Hong Kong 281E2813 %
Attention: Investor Relations Department BEA  REEBR
Tel: 852-31509914 FEiE : 852-31509914
Fax: 852-31509900 fEH : 852-31509900
Email: ir@dexingroup.com BE AL : ir@dexingroup.com
Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner by RARHEEEEESRTREEBESR -

the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL HBEEXHEE
DOCUMENTS

The Articles has been amended and restated with effect from the 4HBIE&LIEFIRE - B L HERAERI A
Listing Date, and are available on the respective website of the Stock  REE P R AA BIFEEM UL E R K E STl
Exchange and the Company. Save as disclosed above, there was no FE&E4D ° HZE2021F12 A31 HILFEHEY
change to the Articles during the year ended 31 December 2021. AHANELEE -
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To the Shareholders of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dexin China
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 144 to 283,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Classification of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures

and asscoaites
MEAR - GECERBERRNDLE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
TP ET N RIE FRET B

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 19 and Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2RGRaMBEmRRMT4c) » MEE19RMIEE39 -

The Group co-operated with other parties to invest in a
large number of property development projects, which were
classified as subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.
EXREEAMSESERENASENFEMEIRR - WIKEERAFA
DERMBLAR EEREIBELNT] -

We focus on the classification of investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associates as it is determined based on
whether the Group has control, joint control or significant
influence over the investees. The assessment involves
significant judgements through the analysis of various
factors, including constitution of decision making authorities
of an investee, such as shareholders’ meetings and board of
directors’ meetings, decision making process, the Group’s
representation on the decision making authorities of an
investee, as well as other facts and circumstances.
BMEIRESDBERMBEALAR 82 CEXMERT - BH
R BESERBHREUSEGIEGE REZHIEIERY
ENERREDENHE - RENSEI S RERAE - F
EREONMZEER  BRREHRIBERREREBERR
ABLEBEEFEHNRE  AREY X BEEEEREHKOIE
RRERENRERFEL - UWREMEERIFE
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In assessing the classification of new investments or
changes to existing investments during the year, we
have performed the following procedures:
REHEAFIENRESIAFELEBNFERE &
BT ATETER :

1. We obtained and examined the legal documents
in relation to the investments (“Investment
Documents”), including the cooperation
agreements with other co-developers and
articles of associations of the investees, with
particular focuses on, including but not limited
to the terms and conditions in relation to the
rights of investors, cooperation arrangements,
termination provisions, management structures
and profit-sharing arrangements, and assessed
management’s judgement by analysing these
key terms against accounting standards. Where
there have been subsequent changes to the
codevelopers’ agreements, articles of association
and management structures, we critically
assessed management’s re-assessment on
whether those changes would affect the initial
classification; and

1. BMESIEE TREHRNEEXH ([REX
1) BIEEEMRES RN IEREBREMKR
BHRNER  TEIRTRFZERR  BEKRE
ERREN - SERENTH - RILER  RBAE
MABEL L WiBBDITEE T BERESE
ERMRENTEEREOHE - HREERER
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BPTTBRETEEREBELNER  UWEBREE
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Classification of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures

and asscoaites How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
MEAR - aEERBEARNS A TP ET N RIE R T B

2. We examined the documents related to decision
making of property development, including
minutes of shareholders’ meetings and board
of directors’ meetings of the investees, and
evaluated the detailed project management and
approval processes on a sample basis, including
the authorities in determination and approval of
project budgets, financing plan, selection of main
constructors and vendors of the projects and the
determination of sales and marketing plan.

2. BMESTHEERBAEXY  BEREHRNK
RARGNEFTGgRLE  UHKTGHERNIESR
EEMELRARE BEEERENEIRE 428
R R FEHEREAER - EERE RS S HE

= o
=T

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
management’s judgements applied in determining
the classification of the Group’s investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates were
supported by available evidence.

WBPTATEAR T RMBREEEERE BEEER
MEAR  aLhRIBMERRNKREDERERNA
BT RGRBE R
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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We

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We

also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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2021 FE kS ANNUAL REPORT 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZH RS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE2021F 12 A1 HILFE

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Leung Man Kin with Practising Certificate
number PO7174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Hong Kong,
13 May 2022

fERE EEBMNERT - RIEEWLEIR
HAYPGEAMBBRERNEARSER  AME
PREASEE R F I - RATER A S HAE
2R RIDERERTATARREELS
B RESRRERNBERLT MRESEEHE
BARSHEBRERENNEERRBBE
ERRRME - RORE T EERSETEEBZ
=

HEARB I ZEAMRENEAEEEER RN
2 HPEEZRTAPOT174 -

WA RERH SR AARAT
BIE B AT

EB A

2O

AKX ZE8R101E

BB
202245 13H

143



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e RER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTIT
Revenue WA 6 23,109,068 15,874,124
Cost of sales $HE&E KA 7 (18,098,281)  (11,766,517)
Gross profit £l 5,010,787 4,107,607
Other income E MU 9 159,714 125,699
Other gains or losses — net E bk 25 sk 518 F 58 10 (99,173) (8,264)
Selling and marketing expenses $#5% & & $55 % 7 (650,897) (457,854)
Administrative expenses 17 X 7 (892,915) (746,665)
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties &M% A 2 EBE
Wz (E8) 15 54,343 (26,666)
Operating profit &% 558 3,581,859 2,993,857
Finance income & WA 11 134,197 69,502
Finance costs Bl& A7 11 (392,962) (550,787)
Finance costs — net B & KA F 58 (258,765) (481,285)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates D1E & &% K
e NS 19 291,079 592,888
Profit before income tax Fri5 % A1 /8 3,614,173 3,105,460
Income tax expenses FT5H:FH 2 12 (1,237,433) (844,965)
Profit for the year R F/E 2,376,740 2,260,495
Profit attributable to: A N & A E/ERIE :
Owners of the Company A EI#A A 941,456 1,192,502
Non-controlling interests FE#ZE G HEZS 1,435,284 1,067,993
2,376,740 2,260,495
Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
(expressed in RMB per share) A2 B AELEREZR
(BRUARYSIR)
- Basic and diluted — E AN #58 29 0.35 0.44

The above consolidated income statement should be read in VA E4RE Uz 2% 8 B2 B BT B 3T — OFBARE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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20215 E$R%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EENmE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLEEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTIT

Profit for the year £ R 7|8 2,376,740 2,260,495

Other comprehensive income H b & E W - =

Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZH W48 2,376,740 2,260,495
Attributable to: A T & FEML :

Owners of the Company AR RIHEA A 941,456 1,192,502

Non-controlling interests FE{2 M4 5 1,435,284 1,067,993

2,376,740 2,260,495

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should LA F4RA & EUREE TR 8 EARER s —BFRIGE
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERRER

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
ASSETS ¥ &
Non-current assets JERBIEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - & &% & 14 1,102,784 511,369
Investment properties & ¥ 15 5,003,804 3,478,381
Intangible assets #&F & &= 566 956
Investments accounted for using the equity method {# A 2A 5 BRI E 19 5,787,674 5,402,191
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IZ AR BEFEHEHEH
ABRHNEREE 21 110,123 93,157
Deferred income tax assets #EIEFT1S 5 & & 17 793,881 772,325
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 & £ it & U 55 78 LA &2
T RIE 23 32,909 79,301
Amounts due from related parties [& U B854 75 218 47,631 =
12,879,372 10,337,680
Current assets REEE
Properties under development B2/ ¥ % 22 62,419,190 49,429,752
Completed properties held for sale ¥ {EH & 1% T3 22 1,253,282 1,524,348
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 & E b & U 5118
WA R FEA /I 23 3,171,965 4,637,845
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & U FE#% A #E 28 FR 18 33 12,455,464 8,695,353
Amounts due from related parties J&UR B8k 75 3118 38 4,870,700 5,033,402
Contract acquisition costs & %4k B K 2 6 355,227 190,517
Prepaid income taxes TEfJ P15 81 1,564,196 996,416
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & A B{ETE
BEEEHTABERNEREE 21 200,918 109,768
Restricted cash X [E#IR & 24 1,453,000 928,980
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & N8 & B 25 16,110,197 14,719,240
103,854,139 86,265,621
Total assets EE#%E 116,733,511 96,603,301
EQUITY #%%
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Company
KAREBEAEEELRREHE
Share capital B 26 9,200 9,200
Reserves f#1# 27,28 6,065,015 5,836,082
6,074,215 5,845,282
Non-controlling interests JE#5 A% #E 25 15,993,290 10,765,522
Total equity =458 22,067,505 16,610,804
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20215 E$R%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
neEEERRER

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

LIABILITIES & &
Non-current liabilities JERE & &
Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions B 877 K& H b

BRI R E R 30 15,132,764 16,949,610
Amounts due to non-controlling interests [& 5 JE#E I 25 B 33 99,990 26,318
Deferred income tax liabilities IEIEFTSF A& 17 273,336 208,528
Lease liabilities FAE& & 16 9,898 471,566

15,515,988 17,656,022

Current liabilities R E) & &
Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions B 877 & H b

TRIEBRRER 30 15,216,081 8,738,454
Trade and other payables & 5 & i & {< 7118 31 8,263,881 7,182,058
Amounts due to non-controlling interests fE{< JE 122 A% #E 25 7018 33 2,730,472 5,748,068
Amounts due to related parties F&1{<BAH: 5 518 38 6,941,681 7,082,019
Contract liabilities &4 & & 6 44,577,856 32,309,337
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFF 155 & (& 1,387,038 1,269,148
Lease liabilities f & & (& 16 3,361 7,391
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss R AR BETER

HEt A ABEazremaE 39 29,648 =

79,150,018 62,336,475

Total liabilities 8 E# % 94,666,006 79,992,497

Total equity and liabilities 3 R & &4 %8 116,733,511 96,603,301

The consolidated financial statements on pages 144 to 283 were $144%E283 B MG M EMEN2022F5 A4
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 13HESEZSF e ERRETE  WRERES

May 2022 and were signed on its behalf by: BEE -
Hu Yiping Shan Bei
#—F B
Director Director
EFE EF

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction A _E4RE EE B ERFEEFEMMF— 050 -
with the accompanying notes.
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARRBBE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARTRE AR

Non-
Share Other Statutory LEETE controlling Total

capital reserves reserves earnings Total interests equity

BA& Hitfhte HE RS RE K @z | FERER EREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARMTT ARBTr AR%TR AR®Tn | AR%TR | ARETx
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28)
(K£26) (H&t2r) (Kzt28)

Balance at 1 January 2021 #2021 51 1B &4 9,200 1,218,988 1,066,592 3,550,502 5,845,282 10,765,522 16,610,804
Comprehensive income 2 AUz
— Profit for the year — FERFE = =

941,456 941,456 1,435,284 2,376,740

Total comprehensive income 2 HMz 45 - - 941,456 941,456 1,435,284 2,376,740

Transactions with owners in their

capacity as owners EEE A AEEBEBAN

) HRS
Capital injections from non-controlling interests

FERERTE - - - - - 4798283 4,798,283
Return of capital to non-controlling interests 542

BATHITEES - - - - - (595,561)  (595,561)
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

(Note 37) Ukt & 2 m&V B 5MER: (FizE37) - (389,335) - - (389,335)  (1,102,713)  (1,492,048)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yt85 /1B 2 7l - - - - = 1,161,663 1,161,663
Distributions to non-controlling interests 43E2 %

ERH 7K - - - - - (541,979)  (541,979)

Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without
change of control (Note 37) 7 RZ A 12 g

MER T LEMBARES (H337) - 3,608 - - 3,608 95,605 99,213
Put option granted to non-controlling interests (Note 39)
BT IERRERE R HE (M739) - (29,648) - - (29,648) - (29,648)

Dividends paid for the year ended 31 December 2020

(Note 13) HZ2020F 12 31 HILFEE MR A

(F3E13) - (297,148) - - (297,148) - (297,148)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41) HEMBA A (FizF41) - - - - - (22,814) (22,814)

Total transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners BB A UAHEARBANSH) NRZEE - (712,523) - - (7112,523) 3,792,484 3,079,961

Transfer to statutory reserves B Z =R E -

348,364 (348,364) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2021 #2021 5128311
ife 9,200 506,465 1,414,956 4,143,594 6,074,215 15,993,290 22,067,505
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20215 E$R%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARRBDE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Non-

Share Other Statutory Retained controlling Total

capital reserves reserves eamings interests equity
B Bt B REWE FEEIRER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETn ARETn AREFL | ARETT
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28)
(Fisoe)  (Mia2n) (Mi328)
Balance at 1 January 2020 20205171 H K&t 9,200 1,679,693 742,128 2,682,464 5,013,485 5,721,243 10,734,728
Comprehensive income 2 AUz
— Profit for the year — FRFE o -

1,192,502 1,192,502 1,067,993 2,260,495

Total comprehensive income 2 Az 45 - - 1192502 1,192,502 1,067,093 2,260,495

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

BERA CHEAREANSR) HRS
Capital injections from non-controlling interests

FFERERITE = = = =
Retumn of capital to non-controlling interests i

BRTHARER - - - -
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

(Note 37) EINB A R#EIMER (Fi15E37) - (146,775) - - (146,775) (182,069) (328,844
Acquisition of subsidiaries 4B M B2 7] - - - - 1,568,941 1,568,941
Distributions to non-controlling interests 47E#2H%

ERNDIk - - - -
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without

change of control TERE A HIEHE

3,516,500 3,515,500

(97,500) (97,500)

(349514)  (349514)

WERTHERBARER - 2,177 - - 2,177 38,070 40,247
Dividends paid for the year ended 31 December 2019
HZ20195 12831 LEEEMEE = (216,107) = = (216,107) = (216,107)

Disposal of subsidiaries &M B2 7] - - - - (517,142) (517,142)

Total transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners E2EE A (UEfERERA
WEH) NRHEHE - (360,705) - = (360,705) 3976286 3,615,581

Transfer to statutory reserves B Z =R E - 324,464 (324,464) = = =

Balance at 31 December 2020 7420205128310
iofeS 9,200 1,218,988 1,066,592 3,550,502 5,845,282 10,765,522 16,610,804

)

op
:

H 7 B B 5K 8 ER B P B i — O BOAE o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  PA_LE#R
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERER AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERTRER

Cash flows from operating activities & ZHNHEESHRE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEEE

2021
20214
RMB’000
AR%T T

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

Cash generated from operations &iZEFT15IR & 32(a) 9,677,485 2,626,306
Income tax paid 2 ATEH (1,689,766) (986,525)
Interest paid 2t F.8 (2,732,412) (1,674,102)
Interest received B F & 149,250 125,393
Net cash generated from in operating activities &£ & BB FT5IR & /F 5 5,404,557 91,072
Cash flows from investing activities REFBHHNRERE

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment st E 9%

B E R EEZ N RIA (493,806) (203,660)
Payments for purchase of investment properties #t8& B 1% &4 % 7 N 7B (695,989) (327,337)
Investments in joint ventures ¥ & &M ERE (599,693) (2,137,436)
Investments in associates ¥fHf &N 7R E (1,280,238) (1,202,951)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & &

BRAREBEFEEHEHTABENEREE (321,587) (143,379)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss HEZ AR BEFEAHZE T AERZN

TRVE EFTSIE 202,461 229,871
Advances to non-controlling shareholders [ 3F1% A% A% B8 24 3¢ (5,758,293) (4,859,308)
Repayment of advances from non-controlling shareholders 3% % i% 58

&R BN 2,145,232 757,164
Advances to third parties 65 =5 8.3k (170,179) (455,605)
Repayment of advances from third parties 5 =5 {BE 5 344,443 296,410
Advances to joint ventures and associates [A1& &b 2 R B & A B2 (3,751,111) (4,549,194)
Collection of advances from joint ventures and associates H[al & & > %

N E R BB 3,968,601 2,364,119
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries Y& B A FIFTE

FEETIMA 1,344,274 59,893
Advances to other related parties [7) £ b BEES 75 2450 (7,154) -
Collection of advances from other related parties Y [@l E {th BB 75 £ 3% - 19,423
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates & W& &1 ¥ &

NS 357,836 867,682
Others-net HAth - JF%8 (7,700) (3,429)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) for disposal of subsidiaries & E A 7]

FRERA G 26,648 (378,152)
Return of capital from joint ventures and associates & &M% &

BERNRBEER 511,271 488,004
Prepayment for investment in a joint venture &R —R& & (X TR K18 - (26,000)
Net cash used in investing activities & & /& E)FT IR & /F 58 (4,184,984) (9,203,885)
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20215 E$R%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘l-ﬁ Iﬁﬁ/}lbi?—%

Cash flows from financing activities BIEEBHHNRERE

Proceeds from borrowings from bank and other financial Institutions
BIR1T R E M & BB R (B PTG RIAE

Repayments of borrowings from bank and other financial Institutions

B BRITREM S BEENER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLEEE

2021

20214
RMB’000
ARET T

24,773,092

(22,056,494)

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

24,766,443

(17,547,643)

Repayments of loans to third parties &&= HEWE X (878,554) (437,498)
Advances from third parties & B % = IR 333,274 878,554
Advances from joint ventures and associates K 8 & &> % N B2 N &)

GOk 3,125,380 4,372,872
Repayment of advances from joint ventures and associates

BEKRBEERENRBENTNHRR (3,227,950) (641,427)
Advances from other related parties 2% &5 H th B8 77 H) £ 3% 70,280 22,497
Repayment of advances to other related parties [A]E b B8 B 75 (838 2 (4,735) (3,351)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests JE#E MRS £ & 4,798,283 3,515,500
Capital returns to non-controlling interests & [@ E12 A% #E 25 & AR (595,561) (97,500)
Distributions to non-controlling interests ¥f3F# i% # %5 69 9 K (541,979) (349,514)
Payments for acquisition of non-controlling interests &t U B FF % AL #E 25 15 5% (1,492,048) (328,844)
Advances from non-controlling interests 2% & FE12 A% A 25 HO B3R 1,244,680 4,495,560
Repayment of advances from non-controlling interests

&R K B FF I R BV B R (4,592,107) (3,184,510)
Principal elements of lease payments T & i ZH) = E 5K 5 (24,688) (37,979)
Payments for dividends of the Company {5t 2822 5% & (297,148) (216,107)
Proceeds from disposal of interests in subsidiaries without loss of control

FERKEZEHEN TR T B EH B R RER S HRIEA 99,213 40,247
Restricted cash for borrowings & Z &) 52 BR #1138 & (524,019) (923,183)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bt & BB FTS5IR & F 5 208,919 14,324,117
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & &R & S E YL HNFHE 1,428,492 5,211,304
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ¥ & L& EEY 14,719,240 9,564,316
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents IR & &I & EEY

b H E518 (87,535) (56,380)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRARERELZEEY 25 16,110,197 14,719,240

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BIRNE B R IELREHT T — G50 -

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A L#&
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BETEZERERATH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-.r\ (= /\Zl-i%#&’%% Bﬁ-?

1.

152

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 16 January 2018 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
KY1-1111,
holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries (the

Grand Cayman
Cayman lIslands. The Company is an investment

“Group”) are principally engaged in the property development and
construction services, property investment and hotel operations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 26 February 2019.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousand
Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

() Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“HKCQO”)

These consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and
disclosure requirements of the HKCO Cap. 622.

—REHR

EErEERER A ([ARE]) RE
FHEHEARENR2018F1 A16HER
EHEAMKIAEREEBRAA - A5
it == R ik A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° N2 8] &%
BERAR - AREl REWB AR ([ A%
B xZERPEARKLNMBE ([FHE])HE
MEREREERY  MERERBIEE

# .

(AN
P

KRB 2019F2 A26 HEFH
RBPEABRAR ([BERAT]) £ e

BRIERBRY  BRIZFEATHRERNA
ARETT(TARETT]) 25 -

ERETHREE

A R 0 4R B S 4 B A 9 55 AR
W2 ERQIRAFE - BBEHB
WA RFA W E B -

MBBRDIR/AEE (BARBREMB R
BIMER) fRE -

21 RREE

() EBTEEBHEHREER ([EFEH
BHEEA]) REERAED
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2021 FE kS ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16
ERMBRELRIFE165% (EFTAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BBV EWMELRFEOW - B ERFEI95R
BERMBHRELRNETS BBV BRELRE4K R
EBMBRELERIF165% (BFTAR)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

e PR R

2. EXEFBERBE (F)

21 RBEXE (&)
(i) ELEAZE

iR A M IMR IIRIRE LR AL R
B UREHRAALEBEFER
HEPHABSNEREE BEQ
REEFELEZHHABRENS
BAEERKREME (RAAEET
BR) MAEERT

(if) AEZ B H LR BB R
AIERTA

NEE - AEBEEHXAEBUTH
BEAGHMAE ([BASHMAA
@) BEHIR2021FE1 A1HEZ
18 7 06 B0 F [ B 08 Bl AE A B
B EE ERNEET AN - RBARE
ISR

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
2019 F AR S mAEHE S ZR
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

MREENE —F R

RAFERBEBY GRS ELNE
RIAHARERNAF R BEFE
MEBRRRRBRL SR EeH
AR BRRMBNREENLEE

24
N2
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ea by £ el e

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERETTBERME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mREE (&)
(iv) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet (iv) B8 E R LLAIFE] BB
effective HREER R BB IR EEANEET
x
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEYEEFRAATEEME
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are AR AE MR BB W TS 2R
not yet effective: NEBVBREEINSETA ¢
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®
BB BWELERE1THR RbgE K RABAEETS
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
BB B HREERF I (BETA) SRR SELE?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

BRWHMEERE10R RBE BT ERFE 28 (BFTA) REERHEBEQNRHIALCEZANEELE

FHE

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 20211

BBV EwEERE165 (BETR) 202146 A30H 2 & #2019 F Wik ik 5 i 48 7
HEER

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

ARG ERFE 1R (BFIAX) BESERRBICERB LB EREFLR
(20204 ) 2 HEAERT®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
BEGHERF1REEEVBRELNEBREFE 25K BT BRI EES

(BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®
BEGHERIFESTE (BFTA) AT E RS
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction®
BEGHERIFE 1298 (BFTA) HE - HEANEERBBERBNREERIE
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16

BB ERFE 165 (BT A)
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB SEHERIFEI75 (BRI A)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BEPBWEER (BFTA)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

The directors of the Company are in the process
of assessing the potential impact of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs but are not yet in a position to
determine whether the new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have a material impact on the Group’s performance
and financial position and on the disclosures. The new
and amendments to HKFRSs may result in changes to
how the Group’s performance and financial position are
prepared and presented in the foreseeable future.

e PR R

2. EXEFBERBE (F)

2ARBEZE (4F)

(iv) B8 E R LK AIFE] BB
e BRI R BB R 8BRS AT
(%)

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

M - BB KRR — R E BIR RIS FRIA?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

EiEAR — BITa RIAKAR?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202

BRI E LR 2 FREBGE -
2018F F 202042

T R2021F4 A1 H 214 FA
R FEEAM AR -

2 202291 A1 B2 EMAA
R FEEAM AR -

S R2023%F1A1BEZEMAA
R FEEAM AR -

f R TEE R BN ZRFAAN
FREMBRAER

ARBAEZRIEFEHT TR BRESE
AIRBEVBRELENETAZBESR
E EHARBEEN BBV HHREEN R
BEMBHRELENETAHAEEHRIA
RFBRRARBRBEEN G EEREAY
&M EEVBREENRB BN R
SEABITAXNEGERARAEHERE R
MBRR 2 mBE N 25T A HIREE -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREHHEME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RAEEE (1K)
(v) Comparative figures v) HEEF

The Group has changed the presentation of certain AEEDEHREE2020%12 A31
financial statement line items in the consolidated income AitFEMGEaRmRAE THB%
statement for the year ended 31 December 2020 so as HWERIBEMRY - EAMBRE
to provide more relevant information to the understanding FRETHRASEENEBREHRES
of the financial statement users to the Group’s business. HEEER - Bt - ERSECEN
Accordingly, the comparative amounts have been DEWBHNT o BRERRATEN
reclassified and re-presented as below. No further AIAET MERTE WA EES
information is presented as there is no significant impact E—HER -

to the profit before income tax.

For the year ended

31 December 2020 For the year ended

Originally 31 December 2020

presented Reclassification Re-presented

EHZ2020F B £20204F

12A31HLEFE 12A31HLEFE

REZ251 ENSE E]]

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR%ET T AR®TT

Revenue YA 15,668,775 205,349 15,874,124
Other income H AU A 331,048 (205,349) 125,699
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations
Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been consolidated from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income include the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control consolidation.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or business are eliminated on consolidation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2Subsidiaries (continued)

158

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations not under common control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interest and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 B AR (4)

(@) EHEO (B)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations not under common control
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

(c)

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category if equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(d) Structure entities

(e)

For structured entities, the Group assesses whether they
should be consolidated based on the contractual terms
as to whether the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Third-party beneficiaries’
interests in the consolidated structured entities with
a limited life or puttable instruments issued and are
classified as liabilities in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheets, and net profits or losses attributable to third-
party beneficiaries are recorded in consolidated income
statement as “finance costs”.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment and is being either the cash
consideration amount or the amount of net asset value
of the subsidiaries for share-settled transaction under
reorganisation and business combination under common
control. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associates (continued)

2.4

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of results of associates” in
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depend on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than
the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

164

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24 Joint arrangements (continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Dividends received or receivable
from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between
the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the joint
venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of results of
joint ventures” in profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”), who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

(b)

()

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Group entities

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group entities (continued)

e income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and any impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 27 ¥ - BMERRE (E)
WERERENE  UREMGEFAIE
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 20 years
BFLMEEMERERE 204
Office equipment 3-5 years
NS ] 3ESF
Motor vehicles 4 years
k=] VRS

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other gains or losses — net” in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment less
any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time the relevant assets
are completed and ready for use. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

The carrying amount of an asset under construction is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

ﬁ%ﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ%fﬁ@&Tﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁAﬂi&
SHARETRMALFE (WER)

MEENREAESNEMFGFT RS
B BIHBREEANRHAZTKE S
B o

HEELAMER BB BHMEHIAR
FREEMREE - WREZE T EMK
sk EEFEE ] AR o

ERIRELDE BERRBELE
BB R ERKAREFRERE - £
BIRECHBEER T RARAR
BB ST RITERE -EEIRE
BRTIRARACERBEERDERY
% BELRERENEZER -

WAEREENKREERREMGF AT K
Ol & 78 - BRI H Bk (B AN & 3O £ AT UL
BEH -

167



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BETEZERERATH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB MR
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2.8

2.9

Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (2 to 5 years). Costs associated with
maintaining computer software programs are recognised as
an expenses as incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties, such as right-of-use assets, are held
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the Group. They also include
properties that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the
rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as
if they were finance leases. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value, representing
open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are presented in
profit or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
20 FERMEERE

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
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cash flows (“cash-generating unit”). Non-financial assets other BB BEEXBENFESREE
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for TEEMREBHEFRERSE A AL
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. HEITER -

2.11 Properties under development 2N BRI

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing

conditions.

Development cost of property mainly comprises cost of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised
for qualifying assets and professional fees incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle. The normal operating cycle is usually between
2 and 3 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Properties under development (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract comprise the development cost and
land use right cost directly related to an existing contract
that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in the
future. The costs to fulfil a contract are recorded in properties
under development if they are expected to be recovered. The
amount is amortised on a systematic basis, consistent with
the pattern of revenue recognition of the contract to which the
asset relates.

2.12 Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at reporting period
end are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.

2. EXE

ATEUCREEE ()

BiTA DEMRAREREARETR
REOEAENTA SO E BB
B AR M8 PR - 0 RS
g3l - RIRTTA WA R A
EELEEREEY EESESS
# 0 EAEMMT A 00 RAER
=5 -

NEEHENRIYE

REEMRERTEDARLENYE
KR B R B3R FHE A M BEE SRR o

RABEAEMREBIGEHORBERA -

ARRREZ2ER -—REBBRETE
EVMENFEEMSRE  BEERN

AEHERXET  XHEEEBRE
ERTISMRAGET °



2021 FE kS ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
an\ P jﬁ%#&% BT—.I-

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial assets 2IEWMEE
2.13.1Classification 2181748

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.132Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated income statement.
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

213 Financial assets (continued)
2182Recognition and measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the asset
is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

e Fair value through profit or loss: assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘other gains or losses
— net’ in the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in the ‘finance
income’.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

213 Financial assets (continued)
2182Recognition and measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the consolidated
income statement as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in ‘other gains or
losses — net’ in the consolidated income statement as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheets when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised
cost and debt investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. Note 3.1.2 details how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over
the expected life of the financial assets.

For contract assets and all trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the assets. The provision matrix is determined
based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the contract assets and trade receivables with similar
credit risk characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables are measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Land use rights 216 T HbfF FARE

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual ownership right exists. Land use rights are
acquired by the Group for development of properties. Land
use rights held for development for sale are inventories and
measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, of which
those within normal operating cycle are classified as current
assets and included in properties under development or
completed properties held for sale, while those out of the
normal operating cycle are classified as non-current assets.
Land use rights to be developed for hotel properties and self-
use buildings, are non-current assets, which are stated at cost
and subsequently amortised to the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18

2.19

176

Contract assets and liabilities and costs for
obtaining contracts

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or
services to the customer. The combination of those rights
and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net
liability depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. The contract is an
asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of
the remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the
satisfied performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is
a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure
of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a
contact with a customer within contract assets if the Group
expects to recover these costs.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less. Bank deposits which are restricted
to use are included in “restricted cash” of the consolidated
balance sheets. Restricted cash is excluded from cash and
cash equivalents.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.21 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.22 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Borrowings and borrowing costs (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, like properties under development, assets under
construction and investment properties under construction,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax

payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the

applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by

changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to

temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Group’s entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using the tax
rates(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

180

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the joint venture’s or associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. EXEFBERBE (F)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 223 ENEARIEEFTS 81 (4])

(c) Offsetting (c) # 34

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.24 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The group companies incorporated in the PRC contribute
based on certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees to a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan organised by relevant government authorities in the
PRC on a monthly basis. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees under
these plans and the Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

Contributions to these defined contributions plans are
expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

182

224 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social

(c)

insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate
in various government-supervised housing funds, medical
insurance and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes to these funds based on certain percentages
of the salaries of these employees on a monthly basis.
The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited to
the contribution payable in each period. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LUEERF (&)

224 Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.25 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of properties in the PRC
and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown, net of discounts and after eliminating sales
with the Group companies. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of

the Group’s activities, as described below.

(i)  Sales of properties and construction services

184

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
asset is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the
terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the asset may transfer over time or
at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the purchaser; or

e creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the purchaser obtains control of
the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXEFHEME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued) 226 WA TERR (48)
() Sales of properties and construction services (continued) () HEYERZZRE (B)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the BHBEETHHEEIZAEBTKE
performance obligation is measured based on the Group’s HRBASIIRAN R ZEH EZREH
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance REEENEHKRIEEEHRGE
obligation, by reference to the contract costs incurred up SHACARILE I ET 2 -

to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract.

For property development and sales contract for which BTG EN K — R EE Y
the control of the property is transferred at a point in ¥REMEEEOME - WAEE
time, revenue is recognised when the purchaser obtains RERBEAINEERIMENS
the physical possession or the legal title of the completed %%%HZKE@ A B REE R
property and the Group has present right to payment and AJRERE S Bl X (B RS TR o

the collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts ERERSEBR AEEg3RE
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of a BHEKEIBOZE (MBEKR) M
financing component if it is significant. ARAERESR -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

186

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(1)

Sales of properties and construction services (continued)

For construction services, the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time. Revenue in respect of
the construction services is recognised over time on a
cost-to-cost method. It is measured by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year/period in connection
with future activity on a contract are excluded from
contract costs in determining the stage of completion. The
directors consider that this input method is an appropriate
measure of the progress towards complete satisfaction
of these performance obligations under HKFRS 15. The
Group becomes entitled to invoice customers based on
achieving a series of performance-related milestones.
The Group recognises a contract asset for any work
performed, and the amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised
to date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. There
is no significant financing component in construction
contracts with customers as the period between the
recognition of revenue under the cost-to-cost method and
the milestone payment is always less than one year.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREHHEME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued) 226 WA TERR (48)
(i) Hotel operation (i) Bk EE
Revenue from hotel operation is recognised in the B JE B W AR AR RE AR TS P A
accounting period in which the related services are SEER AR o
rendered.
(i) Rental income (iii) WA
Rental income from properties leasing under operating KEHE T YEHEERMEANE
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease SWAKREREETHAANER -
terms.
(iv) Management and consulting services income (iv) EHEREGRBELA
Income from rendering of management and consulting RMEIE R ARBEEEHRAR
services is recognised in the accounting period in which REEHERBAESTHAMARE
the related services are rendered. R o
2.27 Interest income 221 R 2 WA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using F B M B PR ) 2 0% 1 I [ B
the effective interest method. EEMR o
2.28 Dividend income 228 B E WA
Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive AR B P WS B AT R B N e L B TR R R
payment is established. WA o
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.29

188

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of joint
ventures and associates are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

2. EXEFBEREBE (H)

220 MBIERELD

MHEERANERLERKER S
ZBEBENFERAAEES

A -
B HERATRSEIE

o REFABMBHREENLREH
TAETHEMEERREAEE

e - &

o VIMERNTBEREREFTEM
BHREENFEISHEREEFAH
MU A TR R WA SR (WE

A e

MBEROLCABEDIREEF LA
THANNKEEFERNNKZME
MRS REEZEMIERE - IBAER
BEEMERINTHE =70l %

BET -

WA SbERBERRERIEM

e BORIE L FE R I S 4R ME

REEARIEHRRLERDREK

R —ED °



2021 FE kS ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
an\ P Zrﬁ&#&%% BT—.I-

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.30 Leases 230 S

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.30 Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing,
and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.30 Leases (continued) 230 FHE (&)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against
the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.30 Leases (continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(Note 16). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

192

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk.

The Group’s principal activities are conducted in RMB, except
that certain cash in banks, other receivables, other payables
and borrowings are denominated in USD and HKD. As at
31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in USD amounted
to RMB405,680,000 (2020: RMB1,942,731,000) and
RMB3,616,502,000 (2020: RMB4,481,214,000) respectively, and
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in HKD amounted to
RMB488,543,000 (2020: RMB151,052,000) and RMB84,366,000
(2020: nil). If there is a 6% increase/decrease in RMB against
USD, the effect of increase/decrease in the profit for the year
is RMB192,649,000 (2020: RMB152,309,000), If there is a 6%
increase/decrease in RMB against HKD, the effect of decrease/
increase in the profit for the year is RMB24,251,000 (2020:
RMB9,063,000).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

The directors are of the opinion that the Group’s activities
do not expose it to any significant foreign exchange risk.
The Group’s overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

311 Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group closely monitors trend of interest rate
and its impact on the Group’s interest rate risk exposure.
The Group currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate risk
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2021, bank and other borrowings
of the Group which were bearing at floating rates
amounted to approximately RMB12,524,410,000 (2020:
RMB9,694,957,000). If interest rates on borrowings at
floating rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
with all other variables held constant and without taking
into account interest capitalisation, interest charges for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB62,622,000 higher/lower (2020: RMB48,475,000
higher/lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk

3. MBERERE (F)

M BERBEE (E)

312 IERE R

194

The Group has no concentrations on credit risk. Cash
transactions are limited to high credit quality institutions.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets is the carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), restricted
cash, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, in order to manage
this risk, the Group’s bank deposits are mainly deposited
with reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions incorporated in the PRC.

For the trade receivables arising from sales of properties,
the Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving
cash or properly arranging the purchasers’ mortgage
loans financing procedures before delivery of properties
unless strong credit records of the customers could be
established. The Group closely monitors the collection of
progress payments from customers in accordance with
payment schedule agreed with customers. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and
appropriate percentage of down payments.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued)

Meanwhile, the Group has the right to cancel the
contracts once repayment from the customers is in
default; it also has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
balances. In addition, the Group regularly reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment provisions are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. Detailed disclosure of such guarantees is
made in Note 34. If a purchaser defaults on the payment
of its mortgage loan during the guarantee period, the
bank holding the guarantee may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding principal of the loan and any
interest accrued thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to forfeit the customer’s deposit and resell
the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued)

3. MBERER (&)

1 B EREE (&)

312 1B (48)

196

For other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, the Group assessed the credit quality of the
counter parties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Management
also regularly reviews the recoverability of these
receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any. The directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by counter parties is low.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating

e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or the
borrower
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. iR ERE (§)

(CONTINUED)
1 BB ERER ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued) 312 B (48)

e significant changes in the expected performance

and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in

the payment status of borrowers in the Group and

o ERAFEHMRERITA/ANERXN
L BREERARANEER
ST FRAR L L Ko fE R A B 4

changes in the operating results of the borrower. ERER -
The Group uses four categories for those receivables RE BB Z S EKFUEN M ELE
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision A RBEEERREEESER
is determined for each of those categories. These internal MEBBEBN IR - 25N EE
credit risk ratings are aligned to external credit ratings. [2\ B A AR B SNERAE AR AR — 3K o

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category

o)l

Group definition of category

FRBHHEENER

AEEBEHEEEREAEZNOR

RABREWT

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

RAENFEBRRRENER

Performing Customers have a low risk of default and 12 months expected losses. Where the expected
a strong capacity to meet contractual lifetime of an asset is less than 12 months,
cash flows expected losses are measured at its expected

lifetime

I EPENERTER B NELSNERNRERE RR12EANERER - SRERFERE12EA2

NEEE  BEBRERBESFESHE

Underperforming Receivables for which there is a significant increase in Lifetime expected losses

credit risk; as significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or principal repayments are
more than 1 year past due
B EERRBEEEMOEYTE : MHSR/ FALETAE FENEHHA

BE—F ARTAGERBREZEM
Non-performing Interest and/or principal repayments are more than 2 years ~ Lifetime expected losses
past due
TR MER/ SAGEFBHBBME FESEHER
Write-off Interest and/or principal repayments are more than 3 years ~ Asset is written off
past due and there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery
3] FER/SAeEFBE=FIU L - BABEHTHEKE MHEE
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3.

198

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
312 Credit risk (continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of receivables and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data. The loss allowance provision for
the Group’s financial assets were not material for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

(i) Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables from
third parties and related parties.

Expected loss rate of trade receivables from related
parties and trade receivables from government
authorities are assessed to be 0.1% (2020: 0.1%).
The loss allowance provision for these balances was
not material for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: same).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M E b EE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BiXEEE (E)
412 Credit risk (continued) 312 15E/Ef (48)
() Trade receivables (continued) () B ZENIE (&)

In calculating the expected credit loss rate of the trade RETEE SR RIBNTERE
receivables, the Group has considered the historical BEEEXE  AEEREEB
credit loss experience to incorporate relevant, current ?EEE’J%EF?TE’Eiﬂ CAREE
and more forward-looking information for different B REBFIEER ME B A
class of trade receivables which grouped based on ?’\EE’J il é(ﬂ i & 5 &
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past WERTER R HIRIBEEAESR
due. The loss allowance provision as at 31 December s ERR S ke BAXEE
2021 and 2020 is determined as follows. 7 o 120214 K% 2020%12 A

BTHEMERBEHETEWT -

Over Over
1 year 2 years

Within and within and within
1 year PACEE 3 years

1R 1525F 2Z3F

At 31 December 2021 742021F12H831H
Trade receivables (RMB’000) Z 5 FElX
HE(AR®TR) 224,185 11,081 13,017 1,495 249,778
Less: receivables from related
parties (RMB'000) & : J&E 4 Bt
HE(ARETT) (182,429) (1,581) (18,017) (430) (147,457)
receivables from government
authorities (RMB'000) fE UL E AT

KEFE(ARETT) (26,545) - - - (26,545)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BR[H
@am(ARETR) 65,211 9,500 - 1,065 75,776
Expected loss rate TEEIE B % 0.72% 1% AEA 100%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) 518
BE(ARETT) 468 95 - 1,065 1,628
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. IR ERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 Bi¥EEE (E)
312 Credit risk (continued) S12 1B ()
(i)  Trade receivables (continued) () EZENIE (E)

Over Over
1 year 2 years
Within and within and within

1 year 2 years 3 years

1R 1228 2E3F

At 31 December 2020 7420205125318
Trade receivables (RMB’000) & 5 FELX
HE(AR®TT) 57,688 24,896 4 33,809 116,397
Less: receivables from related
parties (RMB’000) Jil : FEULBIEE 7
HE(ARETT) (7,631) (19,632) = (430) (27,693)
receivables from government
authorities (RMB’000) FEUREFF

BETE(ARETT) (15,069) = = (31,286) (46,355)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BRTH
BE(ARETR) 34,088 5,264 4 2,093 42,349
Expected loss rate TEEIE B R 1% 5% 20% 50%-100%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) /518
BE(ARETT) 350 263 1 2,030 2,644
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B ERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BiXEEE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 (5EEf (48)
() Trade receivables (continued) () B ZENIE(E)

The closing loss allowance provision for trade M2021F12H31HMKRES
receivables from third parties as at 31 December ZHWNE SRR 2 FRE
2021 reconcile to the opening loss allowance for that BRHEFINZEBEEY
provision as follows: BRANT ¢

Trade receivables

(excluding receivables

from related parties
and government
authorities)

B ZEWRIE

(R EEERES A K

BUFHEBHRRIE)

RMB’000

ARMET T

At 1 January 2020 #2020F1 818 1,797

Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net A 1B % F R E 18 B 5 B 58 847

At 31 December 2020 742020512831 H 2,644

At 1 January 2021 }42021F181A8 2,644
Reversal of provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net #RBIR1EzH

REERE R R (1,016)

At 31 December 2021 #2021 %F12H31H 1,628

201



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

RETERRARLH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-.r\ (= /\Zl-ﬁ%#&’%% Bﬁ-?

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

202

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued)

()

(i)

Trade receivables (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the provision for loss allowances were recognised in
profit or loss in administrative expense in relation to
the impaired trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount
of trade receivables excluding receivables from
related parties and government authorities was
RMB75,777,000 (2020: RMB42,349,000), and thus
maximum exposure to loss was RMB74,149,000
(2020: RMB39,705,000).

Other receivables

Other financial assets at amortised cost include other
receivables from third parties, related parties and non-
controlling interests.

To measure the expected credit losses of other
receivables, other receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.

3. MBERER (&)

1 B EkREE (4F)
312 1B (48)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M E b EE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BiXEEE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 (5EEf (48)
(i) Other receivables (continued) (i) FE bR LIE (88)
The closing loss allowance provision for other M2021F 12 H31 HME b fE
receivables as at 31 December 2021 reconcile to the IWERIE 2 R SRR B 1)
opening loss allowance for that provision as follows: RIZEBEBEEERNT

Other
receivables
H{b PE KRB
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2020 7420201 81H 52,205

Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net 7 8z AR fERHY
EREEE R 8,355
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12H31H 60,560
At 1 January 2021 420211 81H 60,560

Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net A 8 zsF fERH
E R A E R 30,627
At 31 December 2021 742021 F12H31H 91,187
All of these financial assets are considered to have FEZES S EENZERK
low credit risk, and thus the impairment provision HHR AE - AR IR RS EA
recognised during the reporting period was limited to B REREL12{E A
12 months expected losses. Management considered FBHEE AR  c BEERAK
other receivables from third parties to be low credit BE=AMEMEKTEEZE
risk as they have a low risk of default and the issuer RIK - EAZEZRIENEYD
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash RSB EBBETABBEEEST H
flow obligations in the near term. BHEMHMAAOHESREESE

7% o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M EERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 Bi¥EEE (E)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 =B (B)

(i)  Other receivables (continued) (i) E bR LIE (88)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the #HE 20214 K£2020F 12 A 31
provision for loss allowance were recognised in profit AIEFE - BEBERNERT
or loss in administrative expenses in relation to the ELE (B MY E At FE R IE B BB R

impaired other receivables. TR PR -
As at 31 December 2021, the maximum exposure R2021F12A31H » RKEF
to loss of other receivables for third parties, related =77 - B RIEERER
parties and non-controlling interests were as follows: H A fE W IR ) B KBS i D

DRI
As at 31 December
MW12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Amounts due from related parties [& Us BB 75 28 4,870,700 5,033,402
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & FE3% A% 48 %5 208 12,455,464 8,695,353
Amounts due from third parties (including deposits and others) [ Ug

FE=FE (BEERE REAM) 932,833 1,623,282

18,258,997 15,352,037
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

313 Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents or have available funding
through proceeds from pre-sale of properties and an
adequate amount of available financing including short-
term and long-term borrowings and obtaining additional
funding from shareholders. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining adequate amount of cash and
cash equivalents and through having available sources of

financing.

The Group has a number of alternative plans to mitigate
the potential impacts on anticipated cash flows should
there be significant adverse changes in economic
environment. These include reducing land acquisition,
adjusting project development timetable to adapt
the changing local real estate market environment,
implementing cost control measures, promotion of sales
of completed properties, accelerating sales with more
flexible pricing and seeking joint venture partners to
develop projects. The Group will pursue such options
basing on its assessment of relevant future costs and
benefits. The directors consider that the Group will be
able to maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its

operation needs.

The table below sets out the Group’s financial liabilities
by relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

e PR R

3. MBEMRER (&)

1 MEERER (&)

313 RBETER

AEEEEEEEARARNRE
EREeFEEYRBBEENEAN
SHRIEESIRES  UHERH
MABARE (BREEHERBE
K)o ARERREBEINES
BHREEERBNBESE - ARE
BREREANRE RS EEY
PAR BB R 8 R B B B B IRIARES
BEMEANE -

M ERIBHIRERTHNES) - K
SEBEERL MR SRR
EHEHRERENEETE - &
BRI - ARIERRE
R AEE T B B EHE
EMHRE - BN EGIER -
RIFERTIYE  RBFEEENT
EBMREERSIRKEERESER
HHRAZER - AEEKENE LA
BRI A R A s B aT A e AR 1R
BE - EERRAEE KBS
FTENHBERKBTEEES

TREIINEEERBERAAEE
ZRBIMARNE S NEREE -
KT BRBENEERSANRMERSE

==
JILEE °
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. iRk ERE (§)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 Bi¥EEE (E)
313 Liquidity risk (continued) 313 mEE AR (&)

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year | and 2 years | and 5 years | Over 5 years Total
1E LR 1228 2Z5%F 5& L @st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARBTR | ARW®TR | ARBTR| AR%TxR

As at 31 December 2021 722021412 A31H
Non-derivatives JE{TET A
Borrowings from bank and other financial
institutions B 17 R H it & BB HE K 17,070,483 10,928,144 3,984,568 1,463,143 33,446,338
Trade and other payables, excluding accrual
for staff costs and allowances, and other
taxes payable B % R E MM FIE (TE1E

FEEHB TR AN R 2B A R E A B 7708 ) 4,917,280 - - - 4,917,280
Amounts due to non-controlling interests f&{F

RS UR 2,749,954 102,456 - = 2,852,410
Amounts due to related parties FE{ EAEE 77

IR 6,943,575 - - = 6,943,575
Lease liabilities FHE & & 4,267 - - 38,425 42,692

Derivatives T4 T &
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss IR AR BEIEHEE
Bt AR REE 29,648 - - - 29,648

31,715,207 11,030,600 3,984,568 1,501,568 48,231,943

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year | and?2years | and5 years | Over 5 years
1EAR 1226 2FE5%F 5% AL

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTRL| ARETRL| ARBTR

As at 31 December 2020 72020412 £31H
Non-derivatives kT4 T A
Borrowings from bank and other financial
institutions B 1T R H fth & BB HE K 10,900,117 9,723,407 7,624,008 1,514,724 29,762,346
Trade and other payables, excluding accrual
for staff costs and allowances, and other
taxes payable B 5 KA MM FIE (T E1E

fEEHB TR R 2B A R A B R 08 ) 4,676,135 = = = 4,676,135
Amounts due to non-controlling interests &t

RS RUR 5,799,815 28,330 = = 5,828,145
Amounts due to related parties fEfBIE A

HE 7,083,319 = L 3 7,083,319
Lease liabilities HHE A& 48,745 52,390 151,000 570,991 823,126

28,508,131 9,804,127 7,775,098 2,085,715 48,173,071
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. iR ERE (§)

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BiXEEE (&)

3138 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group also provides guarantees to secure repayment
obligations of certain purchasers of the Group’s property
units and the principal of borrowings of the joint ventures,
associates and third parties, which will have contractual
cash flows only if the guaranteed purchasers, joint
ventures, associates or third parties default the repayment
(Note 34).

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the owner and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the owner, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total
capital. Net borrowings are calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheets) less total of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash.

318 B E LR (B)

AEBTRHERAERAEEY
XETHETERNEREEIRA
BHE BERARKE=TTHMER
Ag o HEEEXERNER - &
BE BERARRE=TEXRE
FTOBERT - TEELERNBRDR
B (M15E34) ©

32 EAXAERE

AEBMEAEEZBNAREAEE
FELENRE N UREAARMD
BANRAEMAMEEEERHANE - 7
4 5 IR B AN B DAURVE B AR
o

RRTAABRERNGERE  AEET A
ERBXNTHEAANRE SR - ¥
TR R EEE AR ET ©

AEBENEEABLRERERER
MEE - BEREL RREFOFRR
NERBRE - (ERUFRRETRE
B (ERGEEEERARBKRAIIRAEE
KIFBNHIEF) BER S MRS EHEY
HFREIREAEAE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

3. MBERERE (F)

32 EXREE (&)

As at 31 December
MW12A31H

2021

20214
RMB’000
AR® T

Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions (Note 30) B #£77 &

Hitb & BB A5 3 (HHEE30)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) J& : 3 & R & EEY (B1:E25)

30,348,845

2020

20204
RMB’000
AREET T

25,688,064
(16,110,197) (14,719,240)

Restricted cash (Note 24) R #1IR & (P5E24) (1,453,000) (928,980)
Net borrowings f& % 58 12,785,648 10,039,844
Total equity HEzS %8 22,067,505 16,610,804
Total capital & A 42%8 34,853,153 26,650,648
Gearing ratio EE BB X 37% 38%

3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AAEBEME
(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value (@) BRI EBESIRNEFEER D/

208

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at fair value include financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. The different levels of the financial
instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method,
have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

BE

AEBZAABEIENEREE
keRAaEeREanBEFER
HEFF AEaNEREENRER
REEFELEZHHIABENS
BAE - EREBEXZAAEES
RN TATRERATHT

E—EBH HERTS ERZINE
BTE PN 2RARSHITETA
RERES) NAREBEERRS
HROMHHRE - LAKEIFE
BMEEMERNTISRESE R
RER - ZFTEFAE—ER -

F_BR  MERRMS ERXHH
ERIAENAABEEAZRKL
F& R ] B IS SR RO (B Bl e
o WRAREDMKBE EERBM
ERRGE - WS TAAREE
BENMEEABARES B
2 AZTAFAS B -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MKEMRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AABEEMAE (&)
(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value (@ HAEEIKRNEHEER S

(continued) EfE (&)
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not FoER WE-HEXZHEERH
based on observable market data, the instrument is ABUE I IEE R A B R T 5 EUE
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity AIZZT At AFE=ZEBH - LT
securities. REHABIHEBMR -
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TR AREEK2021F K£2020
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December 2021 FI2A3 1 HEAABEAERENSE
and 2020. BTA-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F-ER| F-ERK| H=ER Ast

RMB’000 | RMB’000 [ RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTRE | ARBTR

At 31 December 2021 742021 $12H31H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BEAnBHEFEAHEENTAEENESRHEE 174,955 = 136,086 311,041
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
EAnBEAEAEZYTAEZNEREE - - 29,648 29,648

At 31 December 2020 742020512831 H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BAnBEFAEAEEDHABRENCRMEE - - 202,925 202,925

Range of unobservable inputs

TUEERARBHE

Significant unobservable inputs Valuation approach 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
EATUBRBAHE fRER* 2021F12H31H 202012 A31H

Expected rate of return T8 Hi [ ¥k = Return approach [@3R% 2%-8% 2%-8%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

210

(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss include listed securities
in Hong Kong. Their fair value is based on their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
included in level 1. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

3. MBERERE (F)

33 D ABEEME (F)

@)

BARBEAEOEBEEREH
B ()

M2021F12A31H @ AEEZEA
AEEFEEEZHAABEZNE
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MRBERSD - XPH - K42
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. iR ERE (§)

(CONTINUED)
33 DABEME (F)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value @) HAAIEEIIRGTBEEREH

(continued)

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value: the
higher of expected rate of return, the higher the fair value.

The Group manages the valuation of level 3 instruments
for financial reporting purpose on a case by case basis. At
least once every reporting year/period, the Group would
assess the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments by
using valuation techniques.

The valuation of level 3 instruments mainly included
investments in wealth management products issued by
banks or other financial institutions. As these instruments
are not traded in an active market, their fair values have
been determined by using applicable valuation techniques,
which mainly include discounted cash flows.

If the fair values of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss held by the Group had been 10%
higher/lower, the profit before income tax for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been approximately
RMB31,104,100 higher/lower (2020: RMB20,292,500
higher/lower).

The Group’s policy was to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period. There were no transfers between
levels during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
same).

BiE (%)
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NERE =R TENGHE - RE—
BEFEHE A5EERA
HERMEEEF="RTENARE
E#ETEL— IR -

FE=RTANGEIZEEHRT
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

212

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(b) Investment properties

Investment properties of the Group were measured at fair

value.

()

Fair value hierarchy

This note explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of investment
properties that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the consolidated financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has
classified its non-financial assets into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standards.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

3. MBERER (&)

33 AAEEMLE (&)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. iR ERE (§)

(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AABEEMAE (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) REYZE (&)

(i) BEF=BRIAEEFHIG

(i) Valuation techniques used to determine level 3 fair

values

The directors determine a property’s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. Fair values
of the Group’s completed investment properties are
derived using the income capitalisation approach. This
valuation method takes into account the net rental
income of a property derived from its existing leases
and/or achievable in the existing market with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

Fair values of the Group’s investment properties under
development are derived on the basis that they will
be developed and completed in accordance with the
latest development proposals provided to us by the
Group. It is assumed that all consents, approvals and
licenses from relevant government authorities for the
development proposals have been obtained without
onerous conditions or delays. In arriving at the fair
values, the direct comparison approach is adopted by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the market and also taken into account
the costs that will be expended to complete the
developments to reflect the quality of the completed
developments. The “market value as if completed”
represents the opinion of the aggregate selling prices
of the property assuming that it would be completed
as at the valuation date.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment
properties are included in level 3.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B ERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 DABEEMLE (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) "EYZE (E)
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) & HEX T A B A B 15
unobservable inputs (level 3) (B=/ER)ETAALBEITE
Detailed disclosures of the changes in level 3 items BHEEZE2021F &2020F 12
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 ABTBIEFELKEUHAAE
for recurring fair value measurements are disclosed B EMNE-BREEEHN
below. WEFIEHWEN T
(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (v) 15 1EABHR R B 7 1B EH)
E

The following table summarises the quantitative TRBIAEEEE=ZBF LR
information about the significant unobservable inputs BEFAEMAERTITERE
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. See EMELER - SRRy

(i) above for the valuation techniques adopted. RS20 LX) -

Fair value at 31 December

R12A31 BN AREE
Properties status 2021 2020
MEAMRRE 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
Completed B 3% T 3,749,620 2,863,181
Under development 2% 1,254,184 615,200
5,003,804 3,478,381

Range of unobservable inputs

ARSI A BUE
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
Properties status Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
LUE 3N FTHBRBABE 20214 20204
Completed 2% T Term yield FHHU 25 & 1.3%-6.5% 3.5%-6.5%
Reversionary yield 18 & Utz 2 1.8%-7.0% 4.0%-7.0%
Monthly rental (RMB/sg.m./month) 19-550 19-124
A& (AR T,/ FHX/H)
Occupancy rate H = 80%-95% 75%-95%
Under development B2/  Unit rate (RMB/sq.m.) B & X 6,863-12,478 6,367-19,943
(AR®TT/FFHK)

Accommodation value (RMB/sqg.m.) 4,190-17,095 4,808-18,526
BEE(ARBT FHK)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(b) Investment properties (continued)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

v)

(continued)

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:

1 The higher rate of term yield and reversionary
yield, the lower the fair value;

— 2 The higher monthly rental, the higher the fair
value;

— 3 The higher the occupancy rate, the higher the
fair value;

— 4 The higher the unit rate, the higher the fair
value; and

— 5 The higher the accommodation value, the higher
the fair value.

Valuation processes

The Group’s investment properties were valued by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, who holds
a recognised relevant professional qualification and
has recent experience in the locations and segments
of the investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest
and best use.

3. B E5 [

P EIE (4E)

33 AAEEMLE (&)
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3.

216

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(b) Investment properties (continued)
(v) Valuation processes (continued)

The Group’s finance department has a team to review
the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. This team reports
directly to the executive directors. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held amongst the
executive directors, the valuation team and the valuer
at least once every six months for the Group’s interim
and annual reporting process.

At each reporting period end, the finance department:

e verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

e assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report; and

e holds discussions with the independent valuer.

3. MBERER (&)

33 AAEEMLE (&)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the year in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

218

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
The Group has not finalised its PRC land appreciation
taxes calculations and payments with local tax authorities
in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the land appreciation and
the related land appreciation taxes. The Group recognised
the land appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax rules. The
final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the years in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.

Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate is based on whether the Group
is determined to have control, joint control or significant
influence over the investee, which involves judgements
through the analysis of various factors, including the Group’s
representation on the chief decision making authorities
of an investee, such as board of directors’ meetings
and shareholders’ meetings, as well as other facts and
circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their
assets, liabilities and transactions are included line-by-line in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, whereas the
interests in joint ventures and associates are equity accounted
for as investments on the consolidated balance sheet.

Accordingly, any inappropriate classification as a result of
recognition or derecognition of the investments could have a
material and pervasive impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(d) Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties including those completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction,
are carried at their fair value. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations
conducted on these properties by an independent professional
property valuer using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors, which are used
to allocate resources and assess performance. The Group is
organised into three business segments: property development
and construction, property investment, and other businesses.
Other businesses mainly include hotel operations. As the CODM of
the Group considers most of the revenue and results of the Group
are attributable to the market in the PRC, and only an immaterial
part (less than 10%) of the Group’s assets are located outside the
PRC, no geographical segment information is presented.

No revenue from a single customer that contributed over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

The directors of the Company assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment results,
which is a measure of revenue and gross profit of each operating
segment.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2#&% (&)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for MATESRENE A2 WD HEE2021
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2021 is F12A31ALEFEMNDHBEROT ¢
as follows:

Property
development
and Property Other
construction investment businesses Unallocated Total
NERRRER NERE Hit¥H FEAE -

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Revenue from contracts with customers EBEBH A LEERH YA 22,934,848 = 33,630 - 22,968,478

Revenue from other sources - rental income EfAFEMA —

BERA - 140,590 - - 140,590
Segment revenue 2K 22,934,848 140,590 33,630 - 23,109,068
Inter-segment revenue 7SR - - - - -
Revenue from external customers MR FESHIRA 22,934,848 140,590 33,630 - 23,109,068
Gross profit £ 4,881,713 120,341 8,733 - 5,010,787
Other income E A 159,714
Other gains or losses - net Eft =B FE (99,173)
Selling and marketing expenses % k& H#HEX (650,897)
Administrative expenses {THE X (892,915)
Fair value gains on investment properties % %1 7 BEYH - 54,343 - - 54,343
Finance costs - net BEXAF (258,765)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 2158 € £ &

EUNTES 291,079 - - - 291,079
Profit before income tax B3 41758 3,614,173
Income tax expenses FT5%i5 % (1,237,433)
Profit for the year F R 2,376,740

Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

STENEFERT ANTE

Depreciation and amortisation & Jt % 26,028 - 10,329 = 36,357
Segment assets AP EE 108,396,617 5,860,580 1,371,392 1,104,922 116,733,511
Segment liabilities 7 & & 57,017,192 4,191,189 1,448,406 32,009,219 94,666,006

Amounts included in the measure of segment assets:
SR WEERH ANFE
Additions to non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets) RE JERE L&
(SRIAREBRAGHEERN) 1,282,798 793,610 641,922 - 2,718,330
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2#&% (&)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for MATESRENEBE 2 WD HEE2020
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 is F12A31ALEFEMNDHBEROT ¢
as follows:

Property
development
and Property Other
construction investment businesses Unallocated Total
S R WERE EthEH AESR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETL ARETT NS ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers S8 B 1A HE£RIBA 15,755,704 - 18,003 - 15,773,707
Revenue from other sources - Rental income E#GRMA —

BERA - 100,417 - - 100,417
Segment revenue 25U A 15,755,704 100,417 18,003 = 15,874,124
Inter-segment revenue 7 SFRIUA S = = = -
Revenue from external customers BME% PERHIKA 16,755,704 100,417 18,003 - 15,874,124
Gross profit £ 4,017,101 79,825 10,681 = 4,107,607
Other income E YA 125,699
Other gains or losses - net Eft s BB FE (8,264)
Selling and marketing expenses % k& #E X (457 854)
Administrative expenses 1TEHX (746,665)
Fair value losses on investment properties & ME R 1 EERE - (26,666) = = (26,666)
Finance costs - net AR NFE (481,285)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 2158 € £ &

HENRER 592,888 - - - 592,888
Profit before income tax Fi3 14178 3,105,460
Income tax expenses Fr5%5 % (844,965)
Profit for the year A7 2,260,495

Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

TEDAFER T ANGA -

Depreciation and amortisation & Jt % 20,776 = 6,909 = 27,685
Segment assets AP EE 90,808,155 4,219,263 600,633 975,250 96,603,301
Segment liabilities 7 & f& 50,073,185 2,441,150 312,422 27,165,740 79,992,497

Amounts included in the measure of segment assets:
AT BAWEER AMFUE -
Additions to non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets) R B JERE A&
(SRIAREBRAEHEERIN) 3,354,637 580,932 173,341 - 4,108,910
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2#&% (&)

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as EFHHBNEEREERLENHEKRAT ¢
follows:

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTTT
Segment assets 7 EB& E 115,628,589 95,628,051
Unallocated: REH B
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss I AR BEFE A HE

SATABENERMEE 311,041 202,925
Deferred income tax assets #EXE P55 & & 793,881 772,325
Total assets per consolidated balance sheet A BEBBRTNEEHLE 116,733,511 96,603,301
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as ERHHEBEEBEEBNYRNOT :
follows:
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREET T
Segment liabilities A*BEL& 62,656,787 52,826,757
Unallocated: K&
Deferred income tax liabilities #EEFTE T B & 273,336 208,528
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTS T & & 1,387,038 1,269,148
Borrowings and other liabilities &7 & E i & & 30,348,845 25,688,064
Total liabilities per consolidated balance sheet A BEBERTH A EEEE 94,666,006 79,992,497
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6. REVENUE 6. LA

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 210)210]

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR¥EFTTT

Revenue from property development and sales =2 a3 & §5 & A8 YA 22,707,004 15,550,355

Hotel income JB 54 A 33,630 18,003

Rental income & WA 140,590 100,417
Management and consulting services income (Note a)

I8 MR ARG WA (Ksta) 227,844 205,349

23,109,068 15,874,124

Revenue mainly included sales of properties, which is recognised WAFEBFEYEEE - HIRBE —HE
at a point in time. BERER o
(@) The amount mainly represents the management and (a) ZEEE SR LMRIERE Mg
consulting services provided to the Group’s joint ventures and FTASBEGELERBE AN ER
associates in relation to the property development projects. FEEHRIE -
(b) Details of contract acquisition costs: (b) EHW BB R AT -
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
Costs for obtaining contracts EX{S& #J K AKX A 355,227 190,517
Management expects the incremental costs, primarily EIREEEEEEEESNRES
sales commission and stamp duty, incurred for obtaining MEMRA (FEAEEMRS REITE
the property sales contracts are recoverable. The Group B gesEl - REBD BN bLZEIE
capitalised these incremental costs and amortised them when 2 AWE R BB A ERE RS
the related revenue is recognised. There was no impairment o B BRI AN AN R RE E
loss in relation to the costs capitalised. 18 o
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. LA (#8)
(c) Details of contract liabilities: (c) ENEEFHE
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥TR ARETIT
Contract liabilities related to sales of properties EiSEME B BN AL EE 44,577,856 32,309,337
The Group receives payments from customers based on REEEDEHESHNTHANERS
billing schedules as established in the property sale contracts. FEXMAEFPWEGRIE - ZSHIBB
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance BEBTTMERERBEES K
under the contracts for property development and sales. Such - EHEBRERRNEEEKIEEMA
liabilities increased as a result of the business growth of the FRIgn -
Group.
Revenue recognised related to carried-forward contract BZE2021F12 31 AILFE © B4
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB21,655,870,000 BEABERBOBRANRARK
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 21,655,870,0007T (20204 : AR
RMB13,538,615,000). 13,538,615,0007T) °
(d) Unsatisfied contracts related to sales of (d) BEENEFRIARATEREN
properties

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Sales of properties $HE %

Expected to be recognised TEHAH 1A T 71| HAR #E R
— within one year — —&F A 24,235,483 20,731,690
- after one year — —%F{& 26,884,103 17,247,981

51,119,586 37,979,671
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. RMEE AR

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBETIT

Cost of properties sold — including construction cost, land cost, capitalised

interest expenses EEWEAAR (BIEREMA « THIKAR - EREFEFREZ) 17,619,773 11,657,537
Cost of construction services and others & &EARFE A AN K E At 374,200 22,655
Other taxes expenses £ {5 T 552 141,611 109,191
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) E TR A (BIFEEE)

(KtzE8) 679,144 534,248
Marketing and advertising costs % 4 K J& & ik 2k 276,894 179,331
Consulting and project management fees &% & 18 B & 1 £ [ 148,309 132,050
Property management fees #)3 & 12 & 82,210 58,797
Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assets

HIEHHEREEBEEEGHNMX 21,446 24,040
Entertainment expenses B 38,272 35,826
Office and travelling expenses 2 & 2 i B 52 68,703 50,484
Depreciation (Note 14) #7& (Ff3£14) 34,186 26,959
Net impairment losses on financial assets % &l & & R (B &5 18 /% 58 29,611 9,202
Amortisation of intangible assets %2 & &= # £ 717 726
Auditors’ remuneration 1 £ £l 357 B 6,700 6,900

— Audit services — ZEzHiRTS 11,400 5,450

— Non-audit services — JEZEFTARTS 750 1,450
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. EIMA — EitEEE

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31HILLEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARET T

Wages, salaries and bonuses and other benefits T& - ¥ & &KICALLA R H b g F) 720,303 568,010
Pension costs — statutory pension EIREKA — A TERKE 118,734 52,900
Others EAth 21,515 15,296
Total employee benefits expenses & T 1&F| 5% 4258 860,552 636,206

Less: capitalised in properties under development, investment properties
under construction and construction in progress ¥ : FIZsth %

TRV EMERTRETIEERE (181,408) (101,958)
679,144 534,248
Pensions scheme — defined contribution plans BRIKEEE — TEMFEE
Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required REEFERBAFRNEE RS HEM AT
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme BT AEE R EENERETERKRSEE -
administrated and operated by the local municipal government. AEEMFTENBARIZEEHF SNET
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are L M) 22 A B U R IR B R IRAE FI iR 4
calculated on certain percentage of the employee salary to the & o

scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM 2
The directors’ emoluments paid/payable by the Group are as REBEN ENNEEWHEOT :
follows:

Year ended 31 December

HBE12A31HLEEE

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT

Fees, salaries and bonuses and other benefits #& « # 4 RIEALA KR

HEEF 8,095 8,457
Pension costs BRE KA 314 191
8,409 8,648
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. EIHA - BiREESME
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) ESE < (&)
The emoluments received by individual directors are presented SEZAUMBME 25T -
as below:
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2021 () BE2021F 12831 HIFFE

Contribution
Salaries to Retirement

and other | Discretionary benefit

Name of Directors Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total
Espg e | HEeREMER META | RRSTEER #5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT ARBT R

Executive Directors #1725

Mr. Hu Yiping #i—F &% - 501 - 9 599
Mr. Fei Zhongmin & B854 - 996 4,500 107 5,603
Ms. Shan Bei BEL £ - 796 930 109 1,835

Non-executive Directors ¥#{TES
Mr. Hu Shihao ## & %4 = o - - -

Mr. Wang Yongquan Ek 5% £ 124 - - - 124
Mr. Chen Hengliu FR1B7< 4% 4 124 - - 5 124
Mr. Ding Jiangang T 285t £ 124 - - - 124
Total £t 372 2,293 5,430 314 8,409
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020

Name of Directors Fees
BEMA He
RMB'000

ARETT

Executive Directors #{TE%

8. BEIA — BiFEEME
(%)
(a) ESM < ()
() EZE2020F 12531 H I F/E

Gontribution
Salaries to Retirement

and other Discretionary benefit

benefits bonuses scheme

5o REfRER WIETEA | RSB HT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARMTR| ARETR| ARETR

Mr. Hu Yiping #i—F 2 4£ - 500 - 62 562
Mr. Fei Zhongmin 2 A &L 4E = 936 4,569 62 5,567
Ms. Feng Xia (resigned in August 2020)

BELL (R2020F8 ARHE) = 538 900 39 1,477
Ms. Shan Bei (appointed in August 2020)

BELT (R2020F8 AEZ) - 301 314 28 643
Non-executive Directors F#{TES
Mr. Hu Shihao #5% 5% 4 - - - - -
Mr. Wang Yongauan k5%t 4E 133 - - - 133
Mr. Chen Hengliu BB/~ 564 133 - - = 133
Mr. Ding Jiangang T % & 133 - - - 133
Total #t 399 2,275 5,783 191 8,648
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no REZ=2021F &2020F 12 A 31
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or AIEFE  AEEVEMESSHA
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join ZREFTMA LTINS AREE
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of INBARKENIERINARE B 52
office. Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the TRBERAE - BIETBERSE
directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31 AZEBEREHZE20214F K20204F

December 2021 and 2020.
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of
the Company by the Group in respect of the director’s
services as a director of the Company and its subsidiaries
or other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received any termination benefits for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: none).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2020: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 38, as at 31 December 2021,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2020: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 38, no significant transactions,
arrangements, and contracts in relations to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company has a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
nil).

e IR R AR

8. BEIA - BREEME
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BEEE E W BT AR R R (2020
F o) o
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v)
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AN EE B I IR S R AR T |
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7)o

NEE  ZEFLHaZEREE
FHENERBI o ANEN - B
UEFREMKE ZHIMEEEN
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. BEIRA - BIEEEME

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (%)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBEHZESFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HE2021F12A31HILFE » AEH
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 included MAEEAE=H A LR EBIE1HR (2020
1 (2020: 1) director whose emoluments are reflected in the F AR EF (ZEEEFWEERNLX
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the 2D TARFITR) - BE20214F12
remaining 4 (2020: 4) individuals during the year ended 31 RAB1BLLFEENTEHT44% (2020
December 2021 are as follows: F:48) ATHBlENT ¢

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Wages and salaries and bonuses and other benefits T& + & MIEALIA K

Hu 28,010 11,075
Pension costs — statutory pension K& KA — A F RS 440 185
28,450 11,260

The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group REEHTATHHEBELT -

fell within the following bands:

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A1ALEE

2021 2020

20214 20204
Number of Number of
individual individual

AR N

Annual emolument band EE# & & E
RMB1,683,280 to RMB2,104,100 (equivalent to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000)

AR#1,683,280t2 AR2,104,1007T (A% #2,000,0007 L E 2,500,000/ 7T) - 1
RMB2,452,800 to RMB2,861,600 (equivalent to HKD3,000,000 to HKD3,500,000)

AR¥2,452 800 E AR #2,861,6007T (1E 73,000,000/ 7L £ 3,500,000/ 7T) 2 2
RMB3,787,380 to RMB4,496,800 (equivalent to HKD4,500,000 to HKD5,500,000)

AR#3,787,380LE AR 4,496,8007T (& 74,500,000 7L £5,500,000787T) - 1
RMB10,628,800 to RMB11,037,600 (equivalent to HKD13,000,000 to HKD13,500,000)

AR¥10,628,800702 AR ¥11,037,6007T (#HE 713,000,000/ 7.2 13,500,000/ 1) 1 4
RMB12,264,000 to RMB12,672,800 (equivalent to HKD15,000,000 to HKD15,500,000)

ARM12,264,000LE AR ¥12,672,8007T (185 115,000,000/ 7L 2 15,500,000/ L) 1 =
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hyg A

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBETIT

Interest income from related parties and third parties U BEES 75 & 55 = 75 7 &

WA 103,164 97,745
Income from providing repayment guarantee for the borrowings of

joint ventures and associates A& & 1% K& A AlfE RIRHEEERKA 25,828 7,743

Others HAth 30,722 20,211

159,714 125,699

10. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES - NET 10 Rt = S 1R R 8
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEFE

2021 2020

202145 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Disposal gains of subsidiaries (Note 41) H &b E A A #Y U (M aE41) 12,651 24,451
(Losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BRARBEFEEHZHTABRNEREENS (BEB),Ka (68,180) 17,948

Exchange losses [& X, &518 (87,535) (56,380)

Others H At (6,109) 5,717

(99,173) (8,264)
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11. FINANCE COSTS - NET 11. MER XN FEE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Finance costs @l& A

— Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions

— BRITRE M S ERNE R 2,610,082 1,630,676
— Amounts due to non-controlling interests and related parties
— FEIETE AR A 25 K RS 77 SRR 76,175 265,344
— Interest for lease liabilities — FAE & EF| & 21,490 32,080
— Net exchange gains on financing activities
— BEEBATSIE SRR (83,271) (206,223)
— Less: capitalised interest — & : EA&/LF B (2,231,514) (1,171,090)
392,962 550,787

Finance income B & WA
Interest income from F| 2 U A

- Bank deposits — $R171F 5K (134,197) (69,502)
Finance costs — net Bl& X AN F 58 258,765 481,285
12.INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FTBHHAX

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Current income tax: BNERFTSHS -

- PRC corporate income tax — B> 215 970,117 702,987
— PRC land appreciation tax — 1B £+ #h 38 E % 274,946 180,654
1,245,063 883,641

Deferred income tax (Note 17): IELEATSHE (FizE17) :
- PRC corporate income tax — B {> 215 (7,630) (38,676)
(7,630) (38,676)
1,237,433 844,965
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12.INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FrSHRAX (&)
(CONTINUED)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs e
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted RE
average tax rate applicable to profit/loss of the consolidated il
entities as follows:

) Ffr 15 5L A AE B9 P 1S A5 B B 2 8
BEEF /Fﬁ/JEﬁTQFﬁLﬁHE’JMTEEFfﬁR
SHHEREHE - BERWT

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HILLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREET T
Profit before income tax Fr{5 B FIl;HE 3,614,173 3,105,460
Adjust for share of results of joint ventures and associates reported, net of tax
HAAE|MDEEELERBE R R EEIERE (HIKRHE) (291,079) (592,888)
3,323,094 2,512,572
Tax calculated at applicable corporate income tax rate ¥ 3 1 5 AT 15 B Fi =R

STEENIA 830,774 628,143
Effect of expenses not deductible for income tax purpose A HIFT15 % X &)

2 155,154 83,117
Over provision in respect of prior years @& & & 58 B & (10,535) (25,785)
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred income tax assets R AIEIT

STHEENTRIBEENTE 55,831 24,000
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for income tax purpose B 17155 A9

FR R IR (E (68,737) (45,164)
Corporate income tax (> FT1S 8 962,487 664,311
PRC land appreciation tax #F B+ ith 12 {E R 274,946 180,654

1,237,433 844,965
PRC corporate income tax FEEFTEH
The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations REEPAPBEEBCLETRAOMSHEE
in PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the TIRIBRBEREBELE  2EREFEHTFR
estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the existing R Er AR A B IR ER R R E -

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the group entities RIE2008F1 A1 HEAEBM(PEARKL
located in mainland China is 25% according to the Corporate MBEEMBEE) (EEMBFE]D @ L
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “CIT Law”) RPBAMNEEERAMERMNCENSE
effective on 1 January 2008. TR EB25% °
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on LAT effective on 27 January 1995, all income from the sale
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value, with
an exemption provided for sales of ordinary residential properties
if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the
total deductible items.

The Group has made provision of LAT for sales of properties
according to the aforementioned progressive rate.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and, is exempted from Cayman Islands
income tax. The Company’s direct subsidiary in the BVI was
incorporated under the BVI Business Companies Act of the British
Virgin Islands and is exempted from British Virgin Islands income
tax. The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits
tax at the rate of 16.5% for both years.

PRC dividend withholding income tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits generated
by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their foreign
investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax of 10%, a
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate
holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries are incorporated
in Hong Kong and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group has
not accrued any withholding income tax for these undistributed
earnings of its PRC subsidiaries as the Group does not have a
plan to distribute these earnings out of the PRC.

12. Fr 8 BiB < (&)

B+ R ER ([ LB ER )

BIEE1994F1 A1 HREEFH(PEAR
RN LI EHRETIROD MR TE - UK
B19956F 1 A27 BRRAEMM(FEARKL
ME T HIZEREITIRGIEEMA) - HE
REEFEBRE T MERE  EFERNB
BRI T A R ABRN THEES0% E60%
MREFRREMTHIBER - K —RE
EVMEMNHELETBRATINHERS
EM20% + BIA] FEAR ©

AEEDE DR REHRERYRIHEIR
TS E A -

BINREH

ARARFASHERERNERSRADATE
MR SERRBR AR - LEER RN
FMERBMEN - AREREE# R xR
ENBEENBARDRBERBEARES
ZEBEBREERHERRIAEMAL -
WEHRRBARBEBREEMEHR - K
SERBE DN B RN M EFEANREZ
16.5% )T RFAFIFH

RERERHAES

RIER2007F12 A6 BEMGHICREMB
FOEEMIEA) - 20081 A18% - N
REAREENFEREEGINEEE DK
BIIR B ER10% B R MTEFIFR BT -
WP EAMBARMEEZERARTE ST
MRS R & B B R AT R] L MBS
BHORHEHRTE - BIERS%HREENH
T o RN AEEIWEET ST B AN [E
DIRREFBEMBERRMNZEARN - A
SEWRFEFEMBARRERD IREFE
FHERTEIIPAER o
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13. DIVIDEND

At the board of directors meeting held on 13 May 2022, the
directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 of RMBO0.0875 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB236,367,000, out of share
premium account of the Company. These proposed dividends
have not been reflected as dividends payable in this consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, but
will be reflected as dividends distribution in 2022.

At the board of directors meeting held on 25 March 2021, the
directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of RMBO.11 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB297,148,000 out of share
premium account of the Company (Note 42(a)). The final dividends
were paid in September 2021.

e PR R

13. R B

R2022F5 F13HABHAMESEH - A
NAEERBREEZ2021F12A31H
EFEMNRBRE  SFREBRARM
0.08757L * £ AR 236,367,000
AR AR EERP IO o IEEIRA
B ENEZE2021F12831HIEFEZ
IRABMISRMERIEERMARE - MigR2022
FIERB DL ©

M2021F3A25 R BFRAMNESEH + AR
RIEERBIREE=2020F12A31 81
FEMRBARKRE  FRTBRAREO.11
7L HEFHAR297,148,000 TR AR
AR = E R Bk (FiiE42(a)) ° REFAR
BER2021F9 AR »

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.Y1% - BER®RE
Buildings

Office
equipment

and leasehold Motor

vehicles

Construction Right-of-

improvements use assets Total

BPRER
VES
RMB’000
ARBTR

in progress

BORME AR

ERIE
RMB’000
AR®T R

ERREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T TR ARBT T

RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Year ended 31 December 2021 %2021 F
1231 BLEE
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2021

12021451 A1 BMEBMEEFE 350,426 2,055 8,054 - 150,834 511,369
Additions & E 156,784 985 2,223 425,229 56,701 641,922
Disposals i (543) (55) (1,049) - (6,718) (8,365)
Depreciation #7 & (25,383) (1,004) (3,402) - (12,353) (42,142)
Closing net book amount Ei R 8k ¥ 38 481,284 1,981 5,826 425,229 188,464 1,102,784
At 31 December 2021 420215128318
Cost A 579,405 11,116 15,584 425,229 221,580 1,252,914
Accumulated depreciation Z:t47% (98,121) (9,135) (9,758) - (33,116) (150,130)
Net book amount B /% & 481,284 1,981 5,826 425,229 188,464 1,102,784
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14, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.Y%  BERZE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Buildings
and leasehold Office Motor Construction Right-of-
improvements equipment vehicles in progress use assets Total

BFLHEE
ES AR E ERIR fEREaE fazt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTL ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%

12A3BLEE
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2020

20201 A1 BE NG FE 134,728 2916 8,497 96,096 136,584 378,821
Additions K& 33,819 754 4,387 107,787 26,594 173,341
Disposals & (632) 279 (1,441) - = (2,346)
Transfer to buildings BEZEF 203,883 - - (203,883) = =
Depreciation 17& (21,372) (1,342) (3,389) - (12,344) (38,447)
Closing net book amount Ei R BRI F 22 350,426 2,055 8,054 - 150,834 511,369
At 31 December 2020 A2020512A318
Cost FkA& 428,590 10,321 18,040 - 171,597 628,548
Accumulated depreciation Z5H#1E (78,164) (8,266) (9,986) - (20,763) (117,179)
Net book amount S5 350,426 2,055 8,054 - 150,834 511,369
Depreciation has been charged to the consolidated income FENGAWSEERTIBENT

statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTIT
Cost of sales $HEM A 24,897 18,277
Selling and marketing expenses 4% & £ #4551 246 231
Administrative expenses TTH 2 9,043 8,451
Properties under development B2/ )% 7,956 11,488
42,142 38,447
All buildings were located in the PRC. FrEEFHEMRARE -
The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the AREBDKMEENESBRENMHES6 -
Note 36.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e IR R AR

15. B EWEE

Year ended 31 December

HBZEZ12A318LLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTF T

Opening net book amount Hi#] 8k E% %8 3,478,381 2,924,115

Additions RNE 793,610 580,932

Transfer from properties under development and completed

properties held for sale ## AZEPYERIFEHENERTYZE 1,131,811 =

Fair value changes At [BEZ &) 54,343 (26,666)

Disposal of subsidiaries &M B A 7] (454,341) =

Closing net book amount Hi7k B ;% 58 5,003,804 3,478,381

Rental income & WA 140,590 100,417
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties %X &EME QA1 BE

Wz (E1R) 54,343 (26,666)

194,933 73,751

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no contractual
obligations for repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

As of 31 December 2021, no investment property was resulted

from operating of sub lease (2020: RMB454,341,000).

The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the
Note 36.

MR2021F N 2020F12 A31H - KEET
EIEE - HEIEENEOET -

HZE2021F128318 - HEREME
THEESTHAMB(2020F : AR
454,341,0007T) °

AEECEREENEBWENMIEES6 -
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16. LEASES 16.FHE&
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) RS EERABRABRNR
balance sheet 15
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts FEAEBRAXRBETYHEMRBER
relating to leases: 18 -

Year ended Year ended
31 December | 31 December
2021 2020

B Z2021F HE20204F

12A31H 12A31H

HFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Property, plant and equipment - right-of-use assets ¥ - BER

RE-FREEE

Land use rights = Hfifs 4 185,154 132,862
Properties ¥ 3,310 17,972
188,464 150,834

Lease liabilities fHE & &
Current i &) 3,361 7,391
Non-current JE/7E &) 9,898 471,566
13,259 478,957
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. & ()
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) RérE W mET AR KIE

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following e ImEAER NI EMRERIE
amounts relating to leases:

Year ended Year ended
31 December | 31 December
2021 2020

B Z2021F HZE2020%F

12A31H 12A31H

HEE HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets & A& ERENKR

Land use rights =+ {s FA 4 4,410 3,722
Properties #)2£ 7,943 8,622

12,353 12,344
Interest expense (included in finance cost) M BRI (D5t AR E K AN) 21,490 32,080

Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assets
(included in cost of goods sold and administrative expenses) %2 Hif & &

EEEEEMAX (B AREARKARITEAR) 21,446 24,040
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain FAH I ERAMER FHE - YEs%
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease BRI IEZ RIEME - BB AR
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the FHELSE DI BEREY
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the T INEAR] BRI
lessor.
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17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/ 1.EEFIBEHREE A
LIABILITIES
(a) Deferred income tax assets (a) EEFABEREE

As at 31 December
A12A31H

2021 2020

2021 £ 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
ERBEATSESI BRI EEE -

Tax losses BiIEE 15 412,687 463,821

Impairment of assets & & & 37,667 14,410

Deductible temporary differences of investments in subsidiaries 7 M2 &)

YR & ) AT HUR S B 1 22 2R 234,658 242,893

Revaluation losses of financial assets © B & E & 4518 21,018 =

Others Efth 101,185 68,728
Total deferred income tax assets IEEFTSH & EHLE 807,215 789,852
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities # $#HIEIEFT1SHH & & (13,334) (17,527)
Net deferred income tax assets IEIE T8 & & FE 793,881 772,325
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses EIEFTEHEEL ] s iBIBARIRIER
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related RABERBEH WA SRR IES
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 BHEEER - R2021F12A318 -
December 2021, the Group did not recognise deferred income NEBEWEARK644,635,000
tax assets of RMB161,159,000 (2020: RMB105,328,000) in JC (2020F « AR® 421,312,000
respect of tax losses amounting to RMB644,635,000 (2020: TO) WA AR RERTRIMA L EANT
RMB421,312,000), that can be carried forward against HEERREEMSHEEARK
future taxable income. These tax losses will expire up to and 161,159,000 T (20204 : AR¥
including year 2026. 105,328,0007T) ° ZEHIEBERR

2026 F FE AT fE M °
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17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/ 1ELEFRBHEE &
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Deferred income tax assets (continued) (a) EEFTBHEE (&)
Movements of deferred income tax assets without taking into EREFFEMEENES (TZ EEHEE
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax EHBAVEERAREER) T ¢

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deductible

temporary | Revaluation

differences of losses of

Impairment |investments in financial

Tax losses of assets | subsidiaries assets

REBARN
RENTNH tHEE
WIERE BEAE ERMER BEtER Hitr FoH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARETR ARETR | ARMTR | ARTR | ARET:
At 1 January 2020 4202051 51H 456,896 19,170 242,893 - 51,513 770,472
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss
REREHA /(M) 19,554 (4,760) - - 17,215 32,009
Acaquisition of subsidiaries Y& 1B 2 A 24,536 - - - - 24,536
Disposal of subsidiaries £ & HIE 2 Al (37,165) - - - - (37,165)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 463,821 14,410 242,893 - 68,728 789,852
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss
RBa (%) A (47,281) 23,257 (8,235) 21,018 32,457 21,216
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B2 Al (3,853) - - - = (3,853)
At 31 December 2021 20215127318 412,687 37,667 234,658 21,018 101,185 807,215
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities (b) EEFEHRAE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: &8 IEAT
FIES|I BT R IEERE -

Revaluation gains of investment properties & & ¥ % M & Gz 222,334 226,055

Taxable temporary differences of properties under development FEiE4 %

B R E R e 2 3R 64,336 -
Total deferred income tax liabilities IEIEFTISH & E 4258 286,670 226,055
Set-off of deferred income tax assets & 5 IE L Fr {57 & &= (13,334) (17,527)
Net deferred income tax liabilities #EEFTEF: & & F 58 273,336 208,528
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17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/ 1LEEMEHEE AF
LIABILITIES(CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities (continued) (b) IEEEFTBHEE (&)
Movements of deferred income tax liabilities without taking BEFTBMEBENER (T EEHEE
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same BB AEERANMNER) T -

tax jurisdiction is as follows:

Revaluation gains
of properties

Revaluation gains | under development

of investment for business
properties combination Total

EEMENE GRS
REMENE RS (REKEHMS) st
Movements RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
25 ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2020 420201 51H 232,722 = 232,722
Credited to profit or loss B BzEEHA (6,667) - (6,667)
At 31 December 2020 742020128311 226,055 - 226,055
Charged to profit or loss R Bk 13,586 - 13,586
Acquisition of a subsidiary 18— M B A7) - 64,336 64,336
Disposal of subsidiaries t & Ki B2 7 (17,307) = (17,307)
At 31 December 2021 742021 E12831H 222,334 64,336 286,670
(c) Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB370,353,100 (2020: (c) AEBEWRHE FHE LB KREL
RMB396,575,000) have not been recognised for the BT H N TE B K A b B IR B R
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on RIEFTSHIBEARM370,8353,100
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Unremitted 7T (20204 : AR# 396,575,000
earnings totalled RMB3,703,531,000 as at 31 December 2021 JC) c BR2021F12HA31 8 *r BARAX
(2020: RMB3,965,750,000), as the Group does not have a SEIWEmETE A AN E DR
plan to distribute these earnings out of the PRC. ZERF  BOREDAFEFTARE

3,703,531,0007t (20204 : AR¥
3,965,750,0007T) °
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18. SUBSIDIARIES 18. B F
(a) Material non-controlling interests (a) ERFEZERER

Set out below is the summarised financial information for a TXHINHEEHAEEMEBEAN
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material IR ERN—ENBARNTBKE
to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the subsidiary is BE - iz E AR FEENSE
before inter-company eliminations. MARVER AR EEH o

Deqing Dening Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1S EEE XA R A]

Summarised balance sheet EEAGBREE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Current ji@h

— Assets — & & 749,303 2,019,277

— Liabilities — A& (146,833) (943,585)
Total net current assets R B E E/FE 602,470 1,075,692
Non-current JE &)

- Assets — BE 1,626 1,969
Total net non-current assets & IR BN E E FE 1,626 1,969
Net assets EE FE 604,096 1,077,661

Proportionate share of net assets attributable to
non-controlling interests ¥&LL 3 (h IR ER EIL B E ZEFE 410,786 729,343
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. B AR (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) EARFEIZMRAER (F)
Deqing Dening Real Estate Co., Ltd. (continued) EEREEEX AR A (B)
Summarised income statement and statement of WEREEZERERLEE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Revenue YA 1,008,589 2,381,186
Profit before income tax FT15 5 51 ) ;H 281,998 597,225
Income tax expense FTE %5 % 70,567 (192,592)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year & R E & 2 W U 28 4258 211,430 404,633
Total comprehensive income for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests DL F3EEREZMFRNEE =B 5E 143,773 273,849
Summarised statement of cash flows REeERERBPE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Net cash generated from operating activities & & B BIFT5IR & F 5 209,587 1,738,349
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
REFFE (AR F8E 3,278 (684,440)
Net cash used in financing activities Bt & EBFT IR & /558 (380,602) (829,676)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & MR &%
B ORd),/ EhnEeE (167,737) 224,233
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#3R & MRS EHEY 369,969 145,736
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRXIE & MIEEEEY 202,232 369,969
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. B AR (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) ERFFIZRER ()
Wenzhou Dexin Ourun Real Estate Co., Ltd. B EIEEEERF R A]
Summarised balance sheet EEAGEREE

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Current Ji@h

- Assets — BE 452,688 425,525

— Liabilities — & & 56,037 (37,097)
Total net current assets 428 & E FE 396,650 388,428
Non-current FERE)

- Assets — BE 968 1,220
Total net non-current assets #2378 & EFE 968 1,220
Net assets & & FE 397,619 389,648
Proportionate share of net assets attributable to

non-controlling interests & LL 5 1k JFE AR HE 25 B B0 & 22 7 H B 270,380 264,961
Summarised income statement and statement of WBEREEUBERME

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Revenue A 18,067 1,524,818
Profit before income tax FT15 & B 1/ 10,634 464,926
Income tax expense FTE TR 2 (2,663) (125,945)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 9 A E & 2 U 55 42 58 7,971 338,981

Total comprehensive income for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests 7 g T IEIE R =M F A2 E U L5 5,420 230,507
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. B AR (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) EARFEIZMRAER (F)
Wenzhou Dexin Ourun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (continued) BMEEEEERFR 2 A] ()
Summarised statement of cash flows RERBREE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTFIT

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities & & EEN 1S, (FF )

REFHE 6,101 (146,121)
Net cash generated from investing activities & & /A B 1SR & 558 - 7,009
Net cash used in financing activities B & & BIFT IR &% 58 (9) (1,652)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (R & M IR & B

i CRd) F58 6,092 (140,764)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year E¥IR & LI & EHEY 59,793 200,557
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRKIR& MRS EEY 65,885 59,793
Deqing Jinhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1S E R R A
Summarised balance sheet EESEREE

As at 31 December
A12A381H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Current i@

— Assets — BE&E 457,894 748,951

— Liabilities — & & (173,495) (294,542)
Total net current assets 42 8)& & FE 284,400 454,409
Non-current JE B

— Assets — B & 1,963 2,140
Total net non-current liabilities 23R BN E E FE 1,963 2,140
Net assets & &= /FE 286,362 456,549

Proportionate share of net assets attributable to
non-controlling interests &L Il 7515 FE1ZE B 25 FE (R O & B2 )R B 94,500 301,322
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. BT (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) EXRFEIZRER ()
Deqing Jinhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (continued) R EER AR A ()
Summarised income statement and statement of WERREZEBERLE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HIEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T

Revenue WA 53,975 1,739,505

Profit before income tax FT 5 %1 A ) 13,156 629,029

Income tax expenses TSR sz (3,343) (291,263)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year & R E & 2 W U 28 4258 9,813 337,766

Total comprehensive income for the year allocated to

non-controlling interests 73 At T JE 128 MR 25 0 F A 22 [E W an 48 58 3,238 222925

Summarised statement of cash flows HERERBPE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

Net cash used in operating activities & & R B FT IR &% 5 (65,181) (141,529)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

REES (FFA),/ FEHRLFE (6,114) 120,123

Net cash used in financing activities § & )& 8)FT AR & /F 58 (34,000) (775)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 8¢ RIR & F BV F 5 (105,295) (22,181)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#IR & IR &HEY 166,550 188,731

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRKIRE& MRS EEY 61,255 166,550

247



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ (=) /\Zl-ﬁ%#&’%% MTAE

19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. FAEREIERNIRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(a) Investments accounted for using the equity (a) ERER LRI E
method
() The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () REEEEABRABRAIEA
sheets as “investments accounted for using the equity AT BRAIRE | MFTENT ¢

method” are as follows:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Joint ventures & &% 1,400,070 1,993,058
Associates B & A 7 4,387,604 3,409,133
5,787,674 5,402,191
(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) REEWERANERRIDIEEE
statement as “share of results of joint ventures and PELBENTEL | OREN

associates” are as follows: T

Year ended 31 December

HBE12A31HILLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Joint ventures & &% 247,000 305,826
Associates B & A A 44,079 287,062
291,079 592,888
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. EAEREIERNRE

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Set out below are the principal joint ventures and associates (b) TX#HFAEERKR2021F £20205F12
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The place A31EMTFEGELELBERT -
of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of BT FM I TAEFE
business. MR, o
(i) Joint ventures: () BEPRFE:

% of ownership interest

EHEREERE AL
Place of business/ s at 31 December
. . M12A31A
place of incorporation Measurement
Name of entity and business method Principal activities
EEhE HRALR
ERER 3 E | #ERE TEER
MMEEEEBRAR The PRC 50% 50%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Deshun Real Estate Co. Ltd H 50% 50% E@AE NERE
HREEREEXARAA The PRC 31% 43%  Equity Method  Property development
Nanjing Dexin Dongshan Real Estate Co., Ltd ~ #E 31% 43% ‘EAE nERE
MBS EREBREMAT The PRC 55% 55%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Yinfeng Real Estate i 55% 56%  HEmAE NERE
Development Co. Ltd
MMEEELBRAR The PRC 34% 33%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Junxing Real Estate Co. Ltd i 34% 3% EEAE nERE
MNEFEREHEREERAT The PRC 23% 23%  Equity Method ~ Property development
Hangzhou Huayu Yerui Real Estate i 23% 2% BEAA nER
Development Co. Ltd
MM ERHERBERAF The PRC 20% 20%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Jinfeng Real Estate i 20% 0% BEAE ELES

Development Co. Ltd
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. EAREDEIRNIRE

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Set out below are the principal joint ventures and associates (b) TXEHAEERKR20214F £20205F12
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The place A31EBMTESELELBERT -
of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of MMMt AEFE
business. (continued) BRI - (B)

(i) Associates: (i) BHERAE] -

% of ownership interest

EHERERE AL
Place of business/ s at 31 December
: _ M2A31A
place of incorporation Measurement
Name of entity and business method Principal activities
EENY/ ZRALR
BRE EEME F | HERE TEER
MM EEHEREEREAAT The PRC 20% 20%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Hanyuan Real Estate i 20% 0% EEAE NERE
Development Co. Ltd
MMEREXBRAR The PRC 10% 10%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Xingyong Real Estate Co. ' Ltd i 10% 10% E&E NERE
BNEEEREEARAR The PRC 33% 33%  Equity Method  Property development
Changzhou Dexin J|ayuan Real Estate H 33% 38% EEAE nERE
Co., Ltd
MMEIBEHEREERERA AT The PRC 14% 14%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Chuangshu Real Estate el 14% 4% B&EAE EES
Development Co. Ltd
BNEEEXERAT The PRC 20% 20%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Wanxian Real Estate Co., Ltd i 20% 20% EEAE NERE
BINEELRELARAA The PRC 30% 30%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Dexin Hongchen Real Estate G 30% 0% EEAE MERH
Co., Ltd
PEREEXBRAR The PRC 25% 25%  Equity Method  Property development
Jinhua Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd i 25% %% BENE MERE
ANABEZERA The PRC 11% 11%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Hemeng Real Estate Co. Ltd e 11% 1% B&EAE ELES
AN EEEREEARAR The PRC 39% 39%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Dexin Longrui Real Estate Co., Ltd 39% 3% EEAE NERE
KBEENEEXBRAR The PRC 39% 39%  Eoquity Method  Property development
Chengdu Dexin Hangxing Real Estate Co. Ltd & 39% 3% EEAE nERE
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. F AR EIERNKRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Summarised financial information for (c) BELQNTAIREELENUKE
associates and joint ventures R E
(i) Set out below is the summarised financial information for () TXEIFEEmMEBEANEGE
Hangzhou Deshun Real Estate Co. Ltd, which is a material EMMEBIEEXBRARNME
joint venture to the Group. BERBE o
Summarised balance sheet EEAEXREE
As at 31 December
MW12H81H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFIT
Non-current assets EFREEE 9 14
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & MR &S EY 6,628 2,439
Other current assets E R8N E E 85,235 255,814
91,863 258,253
Total assets EEAE 91,872 258,267
Current liabilities BB & &
Other current liabilities R8I & & 34,629 197,951
Total liabilities B E#& %8 34,629 197,951
Net assets EE FE 57,243 60,316
The Group’s share in % A%EEDIHLL 50% 50%
The Group’s share of net assets 7N B fE (& E F(E 28,621 30,158
Carrying amount BREE 28,621 30,158
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. EAEREIERNRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (%)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Summarised financial information for (c) BEQNTRAREELENUKE
associates and joint ventures (continued) PE (&)
(i) (continued) 0 (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income E2EHRERBPE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Revenue YA 1,099 1,594,668
Interest income F| B YA 50 3,424
Income tax credit/(expense) FTEHE R (B %) 1,025 (206,872)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive income for the year A (E548), FIiE
k2 EWREE (3,074) 538,652
Dividends received from the joint venture ¢ & 4 1> 2 I B IR 2. = 229,250
(i) Set out below is the reconciliation of the summarised (i) TXEFIFTE5FIEE R E E A
financial information presented to the carrying amount of EEMNMMNEIEE X BR A A/
the Group’s interest in Hangzhou Deshun Real Estate Co. HHEEE Y B Y EE -
Ltd.
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Opening net assets H ¥ & EFE 60,316 21,664
Profit for the year 4 A7 (3,074) 538,652
Dividends % & - (500,000)
Closing net assets Hi KR & E R {E 57,242 60,316
The Group’s share in % A& BRD 5L 50% 50%
The Group’s share of net assets N4 [E & (L& & FE 28,621 30,158
Carrying amount 8REE 28,621 30,158
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. EAEREIERNRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Summarised financial information for (c) BELQNTAIREELENUKE
associates and joint ventures (continued) PE (&)
(i) Set out below are the summarised financial information (i) TXEFERm S B AEBE LT T~E
for joint ventures, which are individually immaterial to the AHEERENMBEERE -
Group.
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Profit for the year & A F|H 415,303 310,862
Other comprehensive income & Uz - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FFA 2 E k%542 58 415,303 310,862
(iv) Set out below are the summarised financial information for (iv) TXEFER S HAREBW B
associates, which are individually immaterial to the Group. KEFE S N RIS ERLE -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILLEE

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTTT

Profit for the year R FJH 830,439 1,966,493
Other comprehensive income i 2 & - -

Total comprehensive income for the year FF A2 F R 54258 830,439 1,966,493
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 20 REHETMERTE

CATEGORY
As at 31 December

2021 2020

2021 £ 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

Financial assets: €@ EE :
Assets at amortised cost IR K AN ERE E

— Trade and other receivables — & 5 K H fib & I I8 1,180,983 1,737,035

— Amounts due from non-controlling interests — & IEIE R HE RS 12,455,464 8,695,353

— Amounts due from related parties — J& Ui B84 77 218 4,918,331 5,033,402

— Restricted cash — R #IIR & 1,453,000 928,980

— Cash and cash equivalents — IR & NIEEHEY 16,110,197 14,719,240
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IE AR BEFEHEHEH

FFABEHNESREE 311,041 202,925

36,429,016 31,316,935

Financial liabilities: @& & :
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZE# K AT EN SR EE
— Trade and other payables, excluding accrual for staff costs and allowances
and other taxes payable — & 5 & H th fET 5118 (N EIEEET B T AR

B DA K B A E AR IE) 4,897,749 4,676,077
— Amounts due to non-controlling interests — F‘*‘ﬁ#% % 45 2 3N IR 2,830,462 5,774,386
— Amounts due to related parties — J&/~ B84 77 =X 6,941,681 7,082,019
— Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions — BIRITRHEMESH
MR {E R 30,348,845 25,688,064
Lease liabilities THE & E 13,259 478,957
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss &R AR EBETER
HEH:tABENE/mas 2,948 =

45,061,644 43,699,503

LEEGERHSE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. RA R

Ju
= S 2
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AEBRNEREE
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Wealth management products 2 8 & & 25,963 153,614
Hong Kong listed equity securities &8 | I AR5 5 174,955 =
Unlisted equity securities FE T R% 24N 75 % 87,878 =
Others Hfth 22,245 49,311
311,041 202,925
Less: non-current portion J& : 3ERIEREE S (110,123) (93,157)
Current portion BIHEE% 200,918 109,768
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Wealth management products were mainly investments in financial
instruments issued by banks or other financial institutions, which
had no guaranteed returns. They had initial terms ranging from 1
to 3 years. The fair values of these investments approximated their
carrying values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

AND COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

e IR R AR

Q0. B AREBEEFTEEHEET

ABENEHEE ()

BUEMREIZAHBRTREMSmEEAT
BiTemMTAMNKRE  WEERKE  H
A EABR A1 234 20214 k20204
12H31 0 ZERENAABERERE
(ERiEE=

22, B B R W) R R AF B HI3R

TH%

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000
ARBETTT

RMB’000
ARBT

Properties under development B2 #) 2 62,419,190 49,429,752
Completed properties held for sale ¥ {EH & #) ik T Y% 1,253,282 1,524,348
63,672,472 50,954,100

Property under development comprise: FIZ ¥ 5 £ 4E ¢
— Construction costs — EEER A 11,048,113 8,510,592
— Land use rights — = i {5 FA # 48,288,040 38,878,191
— Interests capitalised — & &1L Fl & 3,083,037 2,040,969
62,419,190 49,429,752

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sale of the Group are all located in the PRC and expected to be
completed and available for sale within normal operating cycle.

The capitalisation rate of borrowings is 7.75% for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: 8.5%).

The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the
Note 36.

AEENFEETYELRBELENRTY
EHMNHTE - AFRHSRERZERY
NIRRT RAMEHE -

HE2021F12A31BILFE - £ZHE
AR BT7.75% (20204 : 8.5%) °

AEE D BB ER(E S WENHIES6 -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES BEFREMERFIEURTE
AND PREPAYMENTS (Vg7

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020

20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTTT

Trade receivables (Note a) & 5 FEWFE (KizEa)

— Third parties — £ =7 102,321 88,704
- Related parties — B35t /5 147,457 27,693
Less: provision for loss allowance J& : K518 & (1,628) (2,644)
248,150 113,753

Other receivables HfthfE TR 1E
— Deposits for property development and construction projects — Y13 3 &

BEERES 536,474 088,872

— Deposits for borrowings — &£ 7% & 14,327 23,004

— Cash advances with third parties (Note b) — FEURE = H E 3k (HizEb) 362,605 479,459
— Interest receivables — FEUFI & 40,558 42,922
- Others — E At 70,056 149,585
Less: provision for loss allowance & : K18 %4 (91,187) (60,560)
932,833 1,623,282

Prepayments & {4518
— Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights (Note ¢) — Y88 30 FI Y

ARt A (FsEc) 560,580 1,787,568
— Prepaid value added tax and other taxes — B 38 {E R & E 18 1,013,637 547,859
- Prepayments for property development — %3 5 2% 89 78 1+ 708 300,000 508,000
— Others — EAth 149,674 136,684
2,023,891 2,980,111
Total trade and other receivables and prepayments E 5 & H it B %18

DRFENRIEARE 3,204,874 4,717,146

Less: non-current portion of total trade and other receivables and prepayments
W B S REMBWEIBRIENKIBREE 2 RS (32,909) (79,301)

Current portion of trade and other receivables and prepayments & % &
E fth YUK TE K FE T OB 2 BN ERER 9 3,171,965 4,637,845
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis of the trade receivables net of provision for
loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 presented
based on invoice dates or contractual terms are as follows:

e PR R

B EEZRHEMEBEWRIAENUREA

7RI (88)

(@) 2021 F % 202012 A31 B E 5 &
WRIE (IR ERRE) REZTHHK
BRERRRTEHNT -

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2021 240)210]

202145 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Within 90 days 90K A 202,336 42,945
Over 90 days and within 365 days 90K =365k 21,849 14,743
Over 365 days and within 2 years 365K £ 24 11,081 24,896
Over 2 years 24 + 14,512 33,813
249,778 116,397

Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and mainly arise
from sales of properties and construction services. Proceeds
from sales of properties and construction service are generally
received in accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale
and purchase agreements. There is generally no credit period
granted to the property purchasers.

Trade receivables with ageing over 365 days mainly
included receivables of construction service fees for two
resettlement community projects, of which the customers are
subsidiaries of the local State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission. Management considers the credit
risk is not high since these customers have no recent history
of default. The Group maintains frequent communications
with these customers. Management closely monitors the
credit qualities and the collectability of these receivables and
considers that the expected credit risks of them are minimal
in view of the history of cooperation with them and forward-
looking information.

BHREFBEAARBAEEEZEREY
KIHEMEERT - WERHE RZERS
P15 3R IR — AR K IR B 55 199 ok PO BT AR B AR 30
MKER - —RTEAMEERRHEEH -

FRECHEBI6O RME HRUKATERHE
MEZENNREENEBKEZERGE - &
FHENEPRWTBEEEEEEBEES
EgNMBAR BEERE  BARZE
BEPIHERNELLE  FAitEERR
e ARERZSFEFPRFBERE -
ERECEYERZFRUGRENEEER
ENAEKYE - YRS REERENSG
EELRAIEEEN  RENBEHEER
AR o
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES BEZRHEMEWRIEURTE

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) FFIE (&)

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the amounts included certain (b) m2021F12A318 - & TEK
cash advances from third parties of approximately EFEZFHBRHARKE259,654,000
RMB259,654,000 (31 December 2020 : RMB123,017,000) 7L (2020%F12A31H : AR¥
which bear interest rates of 8% to 10% per annum (31 123,017,0007T) * HE8%E10%
December 2020: 10% per annum) and were repayable (2020@12)?31 H:10%) W EFx
according to respective agreements. FHE - WEKRRREHEEE -

(c) Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights will be (c) U g Lt AREMTEN FIBBERS
reclassified to properties under development when land THERERETOEEREPYE -

certificates were obtained.

24. RESTRICTED CASH 24 ZREIRE

As at 31 December
A12A31H

2021 2020

2021 £ 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

Guarantee deposits for bank borrowings and bank acceptance notes $R1TE R &

RITEALEBOERER 1,421,998 923,273
Others EAfth 31,002 5,707
1,453,000 928,980
Denominated in US$ AZEITEHE 312,728 923,273
Denominated in RMB A A R¥EHE 1,140,272 5,707
1,453,000 928,980
The Group placed certain cash deposits with designated banks as RNREBDRETHRTFEAETFREFZTI
security mainly for borrowings and issuance of commercial bills. BEFRBETEHEZEEER -
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25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

e IR R AR

BHERBEEESEY

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT

Denominated in LA NI & :HE
-RMB — AR 16,011,199 13,751,906
-USDh — %7t 10,514 939,293
- HKD — &7t 88,484 28,041
16,110,197 14,719,240

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies out of
the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

26. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of | Nominal value of
ordinary shares

EERHE

Authorised: £B#FH :

As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020,
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021
®2020F1 818 + 2020124318 -
2021%F1 H1H Kk2021F12 A31H

5,000,000,000

AN R 5B H 4 R 30 D 5N DA K
% S5 91N B o B 7R 98 T R BT P AR
H AR B SN B Bl AR Rl SRR -

26, &% Z<

Equivalent
nominal value of
ordinary shares
EEREEEE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

ordinary shares
ZEREE

uUs$

£

2,500,000

Issued: B 1T :

As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020,
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021
720201 B1H ~ 202012 A318 -
202191 H1H k202112 5318

2,701,341,000

1,350,671 9,200
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27.OTHER RESERVES 21. Hth e
Share Other

premium reserves Total

B2 R E H i f# 5 et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T AR¥T T AR®T T

Balance at 1 January 2020 74202051 A1 B #9456 1,177,648 402,045 1,579,693
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

WM B Ay REIME R (FIFE37) - (146,775) (146,775)

Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without change of control

(Note 37) FEARFE A X HIERE BN THENB AR L

(FF5E37) = 2,177 2,177
Final dividends for 2019 20194 K Hfi% &8 (216,107) = (216,107)
Balance at 31 December 2020 742020512 831 H {45 &k 961,541 257,447 1,218,988
Balance at 1 January 2021 74202151 81 B4 961,541 257,447 1,218,988
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

W RSP A R RE S 2= (P 5E37) - (389,335) (389,335)

Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without change of control
(Note 37) FEARBE A ZEHIEAENIFER T HEM B QR

(Mt3£37) = 3,608 3,608
Put option granted to non-controlling interests 1% F JE1% fi i 25

HITRH HE - (29,648) (29,648)
Final dividends for 2020 (Note 13) 20204 R #AZ & (Kf5E13) (297,148) - (297,148)
Balance at 31 December 2021 742021512 A 31 H 48k 664,393 (157,928) 506,465
Other reserves mainly represented the share premium from the HiEEETERAQNT FHESEMEG S
Company’s listing and the accumulated capital contribution from BREEBATERBREFELAB T ER
the then shareholders of the group companies in excess of the HET B o

consideration given in relation to the reorganisation.
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28. STATUTORY RESERVES 28 EEfEE
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, BETFEEEANKRENR  ETERKRE
when declaring dividend, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are W REEMNTREKEQREGRE+RE
required to appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after R EAREREFTENRZEFEA10%3Kk
taxation calculated under PRC accounting rules and regulations NEEIBEEZERHES  EE2EcMHES
to the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the E’Jf%.ﬁr%@ FiEE S QRFMEARNS0% A
fund reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective ETEEE R LRI ER A
companies. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon E/\\\Tﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁif;u\uﬁiﬁyﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁki&.‘bﬂ%’&n
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses brought forward BWERER o
from prior years or to increase the paid up capital of respective
companies.

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 2. BB F|

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RMB’000) 72 &) B A FE(L K

(AR¥FT) 941,456 1,192,502
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in thousand) 2 %17 @&

i E (A TED) 2,701,341 2,701,341
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) FREAEF (ARETER) 0.35 0.44
The Company had no dilutive potential shares in issue, thus the RARREEMD BTN EEEERG - B
diluted earnings per share equals the basic earnings per share. It BREERNERERELREF -
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30.

262

BORROWINGS

30. f& FX

Borrowings included in non-current liabilities: 5t AJERE A BAME K :

Bank borrowings $R1TE =

2021

20214
RMB’000
ARET T

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

— Secured — K IH 21,272,860 15,267,060
Other borrowings H &
- Secured — A 3,504,130 3,820,321
— Unsecured — #EE#H 949,238 =
Senior notes B ZEE 3,555,672 4,353,886
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings J& : 3FB1EA{E X a9 BN EEE (14,149,136) (6,491,657)
15,132,764 16,949,610
Borrowings included in current liabilities: 5t ARBI & ERIE K :
Bank borrowings #R1T{& %
- Secured — HHE I 454,000 566,463
— Unsecured — K 41,850 =
Other borrowings Hth &7k
- Secured — HHEA 536,095 1,645,334
— Unsecured — K 35,000 35,000
Current portion of non-current borrowings 3FENHA{E 2t # BN EAEE 14,149,136 6,491,657
15,216,081 8,738,454
Total borrowings f& X 42%8 30,348,845 25,688,064
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30. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

On 23 January 2020, the Group issued medium-term notes with
principal amount of USD200 million at 97.90% discount to face
value, at an interest rate of 11.875% per annum and with maturity
in 2022.

On 3 December 2020, the Group issued medium-term notes with
principal amount of USD200 million at 96.872% discount to face
value, at an interest rate of 9.950% per annum and with maturity
in 2022.

On 13 January 2021, the Group issued medium-term notes with
principal amount of USD150 million at 100.8% discount to face
value, at an interest rate of 9.950% per annum and with maturity
in 2022.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2021 of RMB26,356,935,000 (2020: RMB21,299,178,000)
were secured by certain own-used properties, land use rights,
investment properties, properties under development and
completed properties held for sale of the Group with total carrying
values of RMB41,554,253,000 (2020: RMB30,662,387,000). The
Company’s equity interests in certain subsidiaries were pledged
as security for borrowing of the Group at 31 December 2021.

Certain group companies in the PRC have entered into fund
arrangements with trust companies and assets management
companies, respectively, pursuant to which these financial
institutions raised funds and injected them to the group
companies. Certain equity interests of the group companies were
held by the financial institutions as collateral of which the Group
is obligated to redeem at predetermined prices. The funds bear
fixed interest rates and have fixed repayment terms. Thus, the
Group did not derecognise its equity interests in the subject group
companies but treated the fund arrangements as other borrowings
in the consolidated financial statements.

e PR R

30. &K (4&)

R2020F1 A23H » NEBIEZREENZE
97.90% T A SR A200H EFETT * FF|
KR E511.875% B 2022 F B Himyp B 22
o

R2020F 12 A3H » AEBIRKEEITZE
96.872% (T A TR A200B B XL F
& 59.950% H R 2022 F | B h I
-

R202141 A130 » REBERREERE
100.8% B 1TALEEA1508EXT A
R 59.950% H 2022 FE R Bty rh HAZE 1% -

AEEMN2021F12 A31 BRIT R EA
BERA R 26,356,935,0007T (20204 :
ANR#21,299,178,0007T) * JYHAERE
BEAR41,554,253,0007T (20204 : A
R¥30,662,387,0007L) WASEEE T A
A% THERE REWE  FAES
MENBIERENBTYWEELER - R
2021F12A31H ' ARAIEHETHEB R
AN BEASBMEFUER -

FETHEEERARCEREERARREERE
BRARADHFTURERY  ZF5SREE
BUHBRERIAKERA - KERQAH
ETHRREHSBREERFEERR  A58H
BUARREENERER - ZFESRIE
Bl E M ERAAFE - RIREEHRER
At > NRE W R FFERER A EE
NENRBHE - MRERESMBHRER KA
BLHRREMER
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30. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30. 6™ (&)

(a) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate (a) AR EEFAEERF RS LHRAR
changes and the contractual repricing dates or maturity date FEHEFEEAHNBEA (Mf?r
whichever is earlier are as follows: ERE)WNT

As at 31 December

M12A31H

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
6 months or less 61E A AT 7,847,377 9,534,484
6-12 months 6 = 1218 A 17,583,288 10,006,416
1-2 years 1E24F 4,795,180 5,710,164
2-5 years 2 & 54 34,000 330,000
Over 5 years 5 LA £ 89,000 107,000
Total 45t 30,348,845 25,688,064

(b) The repayment terms of the borrowings are as follows: (b) EREERRLT -

As at 31 December

M12H31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Within 1 year 1F AR 15,216,081 8,738,454
1-2vyears 1E£24F 10,285,364 8,882,905
2 -5 years 2&5%F 3,612,150 6,967,972
Over 5 years 5F A - 1,235,250 1,098,733
Total #5t 30,348,845 25,688,064
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30. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30. fEFX (&)
(c) The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 (c) H20214F %2020 12 A31 B K INE
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: FHERERNENT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Weighted average effective interest rates HN#E ¥ 19 & B F| =& 7.98% 8.99%
(d) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in (d) EFHERmMENR T EBHE -

the following currencies.

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB AR¥ 26,751,323 21,266,706
HKD &7t 41,850 -
UsD %7t 3,555,672 4,421,358
Total 485t 30,348,845 25,688,064
(e) The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated their (e) HRERMABFERK - ARLER
fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the impact R2021F &2020F 12 A31 HME®E

of discounting of borrowings was not significant. BEAQAEBEMES -
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

NEZREMENKE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETT
Trade payables (Note a) B 3 FE{3 7 (FffzEa) 3,014,607 2,186,111
Notes payables FE{fZ#E 372,212 572,500
Other payables: EfthfE{$FRIE :
Other taxes payable Hh fEHi18 3,242,181 2,337,244
Interests payable FEAIFI & 197,416 216,898
Construction fees received on behalf of constructors XX e T A & YHLAHY
EREH 51,612 114,931
Deposits from contractors and suppliers B 78 & K 4 f& g W B ) i & 311,355 276,831
Payroll payable fEfff T#& 123,951 168,737
Deposits received for sales of properties %t & ¥ % WE A IR & 563,577 262,217
Advances from third parties (Note b) B 2 =7 URERHIEA 2 (B 3EDb) 333,274 878,554
Others EAth 53,696 168,035
Total trade and other payables B 5 & Hth lE{4 FRIB 4R 4E 8,263,881 7,182,058
Less: non-current portion of trade and other payables & : Z 5 & E b fE {58 2
FEBNEAER & - -
Current portion of trade and other payables & 5 & H fth f& 1+ 518 2 BN EA 26 8,263,881 7,182,058
(@) The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice dates or (@) EBZEMNFIBZER AL NERKOMK
contractual terms is as follows: BT

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2021

20214
RMB’000
ARBTR

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARETTT

Within 90 days 90K 1,709,414 1,306,681
Over 90 days and within 365 days 90K A _EZE 365K 1,168,477 809,537
Over 365 days 365KJA E 136,716 69,893

3,014,607 2,186,111

T

Advances from third parties

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts included certain cash
advances from third parties of approximately RMB189,765,000 (31
December 2020 : RMB544,245,000) which bear interest rates ranging
from 10.10% to 13.00% per annum (31 December 2020: 3.025%
to 18% per annum) and were repayable according to respective
agreements.
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M2021F12A318 - §B5THE=HWKE
IR & B34 AR % 189,765,000 7T (2020
#£12A318 : AR#S544,245,0007T) &N
F10.10% %= 13.00% (2020F 12 A31 8 :
3.025% = 13%) MEF R 8 - WHEH
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS

RNEEREHRSE

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net (a) FAFHEEERSHEEFE

cash generated from operations. B ¥ R
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLFE
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Profit before income tax for the year P Fr1S 5 A K& 3,614,173 3,105,460
Adjustments for: 5t T%I & IBIEL FHE -
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — 1% « /= KR EITE 34,186 26,959
— Interest expenses — F 8 F X 392,962 550,787
— Interest income — FLE U A (237,361) (167,247)
— (Losses)/gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
—BRARBEFEAHZDFABRNEREE (BR), K 68,180 (17,948)
— Impairment losses on financial assets — % & & ZE REE 18 29,611 =
— Share of results of joint ventures and associates — JEME & L% K
= UNCIES (291,079) (592,888)
— Fair value (gains)/losses on investment properties — I EMEHN AR EE
(Wezs),/ B (54,343) 26,666
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — & B A R Uz (12,651) (24,451)
- Exchange losses — [E 3 518 37,535 56,380
— Others-net — Eth)F &8 6,109 4,175
Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital &8 & &
B NLEREHRS 3,587,322 2,967,893
Changes in working capital: &8 & &5 :
— Properties under development and completed properties held for sale
— FERYERFELENKRIYE (5,300,909) (9,627,787)
- Contract liabilities — & £ & & 11,550,417 7,713,384
— Trade and other receivables and prepayments — & 5 & H ith i Ug 5 18
WA K FE FRIA 398,239 248,187
— Trade and other payables — & 5 K H fth f& [~ 2B (392,874) 1,501,441
- Contract acquisition costs — & #JUBERX A (164,710) (176,812)
Cash generated from operations &:EFT1§IHE & 9,677,485 2,626,306
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32. CASH GENERATED FROM RNEEMBEE (F)
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEEHFIEEEENHER

financing activities

Borrowings from Amounts
bank and due to joint | Amounts due to Amounts
other financial ventures and | non-controlling due to other |  Advance from Lease
institutions associates interests | related parties third parties Liabilities

BRORAM | ENGELRR EfFER L GEL
SHERNER | BELINE BiiE BRAHE EEYE L HRAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTR ARRTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Balance as at 31 December 2019 R2019%

12831 &S 14,848,075 3,913,070 3,909,697 71,940 437,498 157,457
Non-cash changes 3B 2 2%

- Acquisition of subsidiaries — KEEM B2 Al 4,099,000 (1,084,582) 622,391 = = =

- Disposal of subsidiaries — £ EMBAT (382,500) 431,000 (68,752)

- Addition of lease liabiiies ~ EB EFE - - - - - 327,399

- Finance expense recognised — 2 EERVAR 464,004 - - - - 32,080

- Foreign exchange adjustments — JNEEE (206,229) - - - - -
Cash Flows B£7 &

- Interest paid — 2FFIE (353,002) 5 = 5 = 5

- Increase — %11 24,766,443 4,372,872 4,495,560 22,497 878,554 -

- Decrease — 50 (17,547,643) (641,427) (3,184,510) (3,351) (437,498) (37,979
Balance as at 31 December 2020 #2020

12831 At&e 25,688,064 6,990,933 5,774,386 91,086 878,554 478,957
Non-cash changes 3% £ 2%

- Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ M BAE 2,219,200 (85,793) 1,771,929 - - -

- Disposal of subsidiaries — X EMB AT (90,000) (17,521) (933,806) - - (462,500)

- Finance expense recognised — EERBMERT 564,835 - - - - 21,490

- Foreign exchange adjustments — JNEE (83,271) - - - - -
Cash Flows &7 &

- Interest paid — 2FFIE (591,508) - - - - -

- Increase — %11 24,773,092 3,125,381 1,226,132 70,280 333,214 -

- Decrease — 0 (22,131,567) (3,227,541) (5,008,179) (5,144) (878,554) (24,688)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 #2021
1231 BhER 30,348,845 6,785,459 2,830,462 156,222 333,274 13,259
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33. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(a) Amounts due from non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2021, amounts due from non-controlling
interests included amounts of RMB82,800,000 (31 December
2020: RMB541,200,000), which carried interest rate of 4.75%
per annum (31 December 2020: 7.3% per annum) and were
repayable according to respective agreements.

(b) Amounts due to non-controlling interests

e IR R AR

3B B FE IR K
|

(a) B EZRER KA

R2021F12 A318 » [ESGEIZERAERS
B A ARES2,800,0007T (20204
12H318 : AR%541,200,0007T) °
ZEFRIBEERA.75% (20209 12 A 31
H:7.3%)MFEFERFTE - WAEKH
FE e (EE -

(b) BAYFEZRERRIEA

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020
20204
RMB’000
ARETIT

20214
RMB’000
AR®T T

Non-current portion (i) 3EB1EEEE5 (i) 99,990 26,318
Current portion (i) BN EFER 2 (ii) 2,730,472 5,748,068
2,830,462 5,774,386

() As at 31 December 2021, the amounts included certain cash iy M2021F12A831H ' 85T EIFER
advances from non-controlling interests, which bear interest rates WA ZA R - H428% (20204F 12

of 8% per annum and were repayable according to respective
agreements (31 December 2020: 8%).

(i)  As at 31 December 2021,
advances from non-controlling interests of approximately
RMB246,710,719 (31 December 2020 : RMB1,621,586,000)
which bear interest rates ranging from 8% to 12% per annum (31

the amounts included certain cash

December 2020: 5% to 13.2% per annum) and were repayable
according to respective agreements.

B31E : 8%) EFIEE B - BAR
FRAE A EE -

(i) R2021%12A8318 2&5TA¥k
EREZWDNBROBARE
246,710,7197T (202012 531 :
AR#1,621,586,0007T) ' &ZHFHK
EEN T8%E12% (20204F 12 A 31
H:5%%E13.2%) WEFERFE - I
AR REREE -
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34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 34, BT IE R

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for certain purchasers (note a)

HETERNRBRERHENER (FIa) 17,182,006 14,605,341
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of joint ventures and associates

(note b and note 38) Bt & & 13 KBk 1 mfE IR H AV B IR (M st & PH7E38) 5,100,166 3,181,893
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of an entity controlled by

Mr. Hu (note 38) Bi#A %t A2 HIH) B 88 5 FUR LA (R (M45E38) 80,000 -
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of a third party (note c) Bt —&E = H &R

Rty R (Fatc) 550,000 -

22,912,172 17,787,234

(@) The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the (@ AKBECRAKENEEMNETERR
Group’s property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations PFIRTRE  TERHERUERZZE
of such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon RETEREENER - ZFEREET
the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate SRR AL ()R BB EPT AR
which will generally be available within an average period of two to —REERBLTKETFHEERE=
three years upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (i) the F ) MEBERENZBER -
satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage RBERGES  WERERZBNEFK - &
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the SEHEEEERREENRIBEREESIA
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and REHNERRBRITWEGFFEMER - B
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group REBEREEHEEMENS EERLE
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related HE  AEENERAGELZRBERZ
properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of Hiest - EER R BEFRERFKIANT B
grant of the mortgages. The directors consider that the likelihood AR/ - B R 2021 4 & 20204 12 A 31

of default in payments by purchasers is minimal and therefore the REAARBEFENVBERLTERX -
financial guarantee measured at fair value as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 is immaterial.
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34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (CONTINUED)

(b)

Amounts represented the maximum exposure of the guarantees
provided for the borrowings of the related parties and independent
third parties at the respective balance sheet dates. The directors
consider that the likelihood of default in payments by the related
parties and independent third parties is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantee measured at fair value as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 is immaterial.

Amount represents guarantee provided for the borrowings of a third
party. Details are as follows:

On 30 November 2021,
Co., Ltd (“Hangzhou Kaiging”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of

Hangzhou Kaiging Enterprise Management

the Company, entered into the guarantee agreement with Hangzhou
Ruiyang Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Ruiyang”),
a supplier and an independent third party of the Company, pursuant
to which, Hangzhou Kaiging shall provide a guarantee for the amount
of RMB550 million borrowed by Hangzhou Ruiyang from Ping An
Bank and receive 3% guarantee fee from Hangzhou Ruiyang. On 1
December 2021 and 3 December 2021,
into the pledge contracts with Ping An Bank, pursuant to which
Hangzhou Kaiging agreed to pledge the certificates of deposit of a
total value of RMB550 million to Ping An Bank in order to provide

Hangzhou Kaiqing entered

guarantees for Hangzhou Ruiyang, for the amount of RMB550 million
by way of pledge. Hangzhou Kaiging will receive an aggregate of
4.67% of the total amount of the pledge contracts as the income
(including the 1.67% interest income per year generated from the
pledge contracts and 3% guarantee fee per year from the guarantee
agreement).

BB HRRNE

n‘/T\

34, B ISR iR ()

(o)

RECHEASEEABRAMRER ST R
BUE=FERMEEOERAERNR
BER - ESR7 G RBYE=F
HRE IEETJ%'IE?E/J\ C FER2021 E K
2020512 AB1 R AR BEF =M FIE
RITEK ©

FZHIBER BB EREHOER -
BT

®2021F11 A308 * AARIMEEZEH B
AAMMEBECEERBR QA ([FME
&) EAmNIGEHEREEGR AR ([
MiEm ] AARIHER - ABYE=F)
RIS ERWE - B NS E BN
B R ERRITEANARESS088 TR
HBERTBEMMNIFHZIRWERER - B
2021412 A1 B %2021F12 438 » fiM
YERFRZRITRILIEAEL - ik - 71
NI BEREBERFLBTEFLEEARY
550 E BILZ FRURE - UMM B IRE
BR BRSEAARES50EET - M
NERBEREIRENBELENEHEL4.67%
FAERA (BIEERRE LRFFNE1.67%E
ERRARBERBEEENIHFERERE
)
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. A IE
Commitments contracted for but not provided for are as follows: EETAVEREE 2 AT -
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
— Property development activities — #7353 5 &) 14,322,280 12,320,814
— Property, plant and equipment — #1% - BE M & & 22,593 11,029
— Investments in joint ventures and associates — A Z N E LEE N RIHRE 1,970,372 1,313,398
— Investment properties — L& ¥ % 87,708 198,992

16,402,953 13,844,233

36. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 3. EIHEREBEFMmZEE
As at 31 December
M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARKETIT
ASSETS ¥ &
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥1% - BE N & 271,562 141,235
Right-of-use assets — land use rights £ &L &E — T ib{FE A 112,616 3,014
Investment properties & & ¥ % 2,272,420 1,270,800
Total non-current assets pledged as security ZiR{E IR R IR BN L E L5 2,656,598 1,415,049

Current assets B EE
Properties under development and completed properties held for sale %

MERFBELRENRTIHE 38,897,655 29,247,338
Total assets pledged as security ER{EAEF RN EELE 41,554,253 30,662,387
The Company’s equity interests in certain subsidiaries were R2021F 1283818 ARAIRETHB
pledged as security for borrowing of the Group at 31 December AR ECER AT EEEFOERR -
2021.
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37. TRANSACTIONS WITH
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(a) Acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiaries

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group acquired additional equity interest of certain
subsidiaries, the Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests and a decrease in equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The differences between the
carrying amounts of non-controlling interests acquired and
consideration paid are set out below:

e IR R AR

I EEFERERNRS

(a) WIRH B D B AYFEIMESR

HE2021FE K2020F12 A31HILEF
B AEEKREETHEARMREIN
BRAE - WHERIEZERES R AR
A AE(RAR R A o FTUREE FEE
BESHEAERENREZMHE
BEERHIT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILLEE

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

Total carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired T4t & JE#5 A%

AR®TR ARETT

R EREE 1,102,713 182,069
Less: total consideration paid and payable to non-controlling interests

o B REMIEERERR(ERRE (1,492,048) (328,844)
Total difference recognised within equity P&z MR AR =58 (389,335) (146,775)

(b) Disposal of ownership interest in subsidiaries
without change of control

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
disposed of certain equity interest in subsidiaries without
change of control. The Group recognised an increase in
non-controlling interests and a decrease in equity attributable
to owners of the Company as set out below.

(b) FERBAEZHERBHNERT

HEMBLRNAERE

HZE2021F12A31BILFE - KEE
FERBEEEFIERENE R THEN
BRARIMETRE - AEBIEHERIE
RN R AR R A AL
@R FEREIIT -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBETIT

Consideration received from non-controlling interests B FF#42 A% # 25 U HXAY

RIE 99,213 40,247
Less: carrying amounts of the equity interest disposed of J& : & H & ER)

BREE (95,605) (38,070)
Total difference recognised within equity P zE N FERH A2 = 58 3,608 RN\
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37. TRANSACTIONS WITH I EEFERERNRS (&)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)
(c) The aggregate effect of the above transactions with (c) Lt EEFFImBERNL HEH AR F
non-controlling interests on the equity attributable to owners BAFELHEERZNERTZENT -

of the Company are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Changes in equity attributable to owners of the Company arising from:
RATIEAAELEZEATRAMBEAENZS)
— Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries — U BB E A B HY

FEIMER (389,335) (146,775)
— Disposal of ownership interest in subsidiaries without loss of control
—EARKEEHENBR T HEMBRARNMEEER 3,608 2,177
(385,727) (144,598)
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.EABAIRS
(a) The ultimate holding company of the Company is Tak Shin (a) RRARMREKER AP REMRERE
International Limited (BVI), and the ultimate controlling RAR (RBEMRAES)  AQAH
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Hu. E—MT IRAR R BB & o
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEE S H M
Key management compensation for the year ended 31 HZE2021F ;2020F12 A31 B IEF
December 2021 and 2020 are set out below: ENFEEREHMMEINNT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETTT

Key management compensation £ E&E B #H

— Salaries and other employee benefits — ¥ & K E 0 (E B &F| 14,912 16,830
- Pension costs — BIKE K A& 549 375
15,461 17,205
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEHARS (F)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EERAEE 5 VAL Bk
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had the R2021F &2020F 12 A31H » K&
following material balances with related parties: B SRR T A LA T KA R

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Trade receivables from related parties: XE BB AN E 5 EUWFEIE :

Joint ventures & &% 16,729 5,708
Associates B & A 7] 127,342 19,140
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #A4E 412 4l ) T 52 3,386 2,845
147,457 27,693
Prepayment to related parties % B8 & 5 VTR S T IE
Joint ventures & &% 32,909 =
Associates B ‘& A A 3,000 20,580
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #85t A 12 HIl A0 F 52 533 =
36,442 20,580
Amounts due from related parties: F&U B E: 5 I8
Joint ventures & &% 2,438,935 2,609,177
Associates Hi & A 7] 2,472,452 2,424,225
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #A4E A 122 4l H) E 52 6,944 =
4,918,331 5,033,402
Less: non-current portion of amounts due from related parties /& : FEUL
BB 7 SRIE R SEBN EAEL (47,631) =
Current portion of amounts due from related parties F& Ut BaHsE 77 21 TE Y
BVERER 5> 4,870,700 5,033,402
Amounts due to related parties: F& {3 BEE: 7 58
Joint ventures & &% 1,852,394 3,071,371
Associates Hi & A &) 4,933,065 3,919,562
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #A4E A #22 4l H) B 52 156,222 91,086
6,941,681 7,082,019

Less: non-current portion of amounts due to related parties /& : FEf

[BRE 7 SRR A SRR R R - -

Current portion of amounts due to related parties J&{< B8l 77 218 H) BN EA 565> 6,941,681 7,082,019

Trade payables to related parties: FE{IBAEiS E 5 FUE

Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #A4E A #22 4l ) B 52 12,174 69,347

Close family members of Mr. Hu A5 4 893 7 2,166 6,496
14,340 75,843
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (continued)

Contract liabilities: &8 1& :

B.FEEAIRZ (&)

(c) BEEARE T RV KSR (A])

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBETIT

20214
RMB’000
ARBT

A director of the Company AN‘A &&= 5,035 =

Lease liabilities: fAE& & :

Entities controlled by Mr. Hu & %t 4 #5 #i| 8 & §2 4,177 12,010

Joint ventures & &b % - 131,806
4,177 143,816

As at 31 December 2021, amounts due to joint ventures
and associates of RMB27,292,650 (31 December 2020:
RMB233,400,000) bear interest rates ranging from 4.35%
to 12% (31 December 2020: 4.35% to 9% per annum)
per annum and were repayable based on the contractual
agreements (31 December 2020: same).

As at 31 December 2021, amounts due from joint ventures
and associates totalling RMB113,630,641 (31 December
2020 : RMB66,000,000) bear interest rates ranging from
6% to 7% per annum (31 December 2020: 7% per annum)
and were repayable on demand or based on contractual
agreements (31 December 2020: same).

The rest of amounts due from/to related parties mainly
represented the cash advances which were unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

276

MR2021F 124318 - EREELER
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9%) FEFEFE - BARRBENH
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 8. FABL RS (M)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Transactions with related parties (d) EHEABE T IR B
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the BZE2021F &2020F12 31 HIEHF
Group had the following significant transactions with related B AREEEBAEAEUATERR
parties. 50

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTIT

(i) Entities controlled by Mr. Hu (i)&A %t 4 #5 i 1) & 42

Receiving of property management services 13 ¥ % & 1% IR 75 91,891 89,279
Receiving of goods and services of smart community solutions E5 52t &

R 7T RV o R RS 16,998 6,029
Receiving of construction and decoration services 15 5t % 2 & iR 75 255,000 189,118
Sales of properties ¥ 4% - 11,013
Rental income & WA 4,082 1,216
Purchase of equity interests of an associate B & — B & A 7 AR - 182,443
Interest expenses for lease liabilities A& & & F] 85X 701 1,347
Payment of lease liabilities 72 & & & 7 8,535 8,535
Receiving of other services 115 E b iR 7% 28,394 11,018

(i) Joint ventures (i)& &%

Rendering of management and consulting services et & 2 & & #0 RS 34,143 23,5611
Interest income F 2 UL A 2,179 11,043
Interest expenses #| 8. % 1,093 32,662
Purchase of carparks & B2 #i1 53,521 31,563
Interest expenses for lease liabilities A& & & X B 5 - 11,548
Payment of lease liabilities T2 & & & 3 - 13,217

(iii) Associates (iii)B# % A 7]

Rendering of management and consulting services Je4t & 12 &+ IR 7% 168,610 141,299
Interest income FEUg A 59,377 28,709
Interest expenses F| 2.5 60,470 7,723

(iv) Close family members of Mr. Hu (iv) &8 4% 4 3T 57

Sales of properties ¥ ¥4 E 7,875 13,869
The prices for the above transactions were determined in R ZNERTIEKBAEBE 97 B E
accordance with the terms agreed by the relevant contracting HESRMEE -

parties.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEBEIRS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Guarantee with related parties (e) EEEAEE F VIR

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2021 2020

2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

Provision of guarantee for borrowings of related parties %t B8t 75 & Fh iR 4

if:jiint ventures — & &b 1,904,854 1,183,350

— Associates — Bt& A a) 3,195,312 1,998,543

- An entity controlled by Mr. Hu — #B5t A2 $IH — R & 52 80,000 =

5,180,166 3,181,893

39. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VEZAARBEFTEEHSE T
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AEENEHEE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Put option granted to non-controlling interests % ¥ 3E#%A%
R ) Rm HR i 29,648 -

29,648 =
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. fiY 8~ Rl FF 1R
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 AEBER2021F K2020F 12 A1 B E
December 2021 and 2020 are set out as below. B AR FIEEHIAOT o

Proportion of
ownership interest

il . 3:07]

Date of Place of
incorporation/ operation/ Principal Registered/
Name of companies establishment Type of legal status | establishment | activities Issued capital 31 December

1A%E ATBE  |ewuEE |AuFer  |sEER ERFR VIR

RMB 2021 2020
ARH 0215 | 2020F

Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. 1 September 1995 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development  3,390,000,000  3,390,000,000 100% 100%
EEMEEEERAT 199549718 EREAAT i VEEES 3,390,000000 3,390,000,000  100%  100%
Taizhou Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd 16 June 2017 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 10,000,000 10,000,000 100% 100%
AMERESERAT 017%6A168  ARELAR e EES 10,000,000 10,000000 ~ 100%  100%
Zhejiang Dehong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 29 August 2017 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 350,000,000 350,000,000 8% 60%
MIEREXERAT 1748R208  BREALH q: ETES 350,000,000 350000000  78% 60%
Hangzhou Wuhe Industrial Co., Ltd. 10 October 2013 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 12,500,000 12,500,000 90% 70%
MNEAEZARAR 20135108108 BREALH Giles ELIES 12500000 12,500,000  90% 70%
Yueqing Xinhui Real Estate Co., Ltd. 14 June 2018 Limited liabllity company ~ The PRG Property development 350,000,000 350,000,000 51% 51%
EREREEXERAT 2018%6A148 BREFAF i VIESE 350,000,000 350,000,000 51% 51%
Xuzhou Deyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. 13 April 2018 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 100,000,000 100,000,000 60% 52%
ANEREZARAT 18548138 BREALH G nERY 100,000,000  100,000000  60% 52%
Hangzhou Dexin Shushan Real Estate 28 February 2018 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 500,000,000 500,000,000 1% 60%
Co., Ltd.
RNEEBILEFERATA 185208  BEREALT hE VELES 500,000,000 500000000 7% 60%
Zhejiang Dejing Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2 March 2018 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 50,000,000 50,000,000 55% 56%
MIEEEXERAA 201853428 EREMAT il VELES 50,000,000 50000000 5% 5%
Shangrao Hetao Real Estate Co., Ltd. 16 March 2018 Limited liablity company ~ The PRC Property development 280,000,000 280,000,000 51% 4%
HETARERARAT 18537168 BREFLH hEl VELES 280,000,000 280,000,000  51% 47%
Ningbo Yongtao Real Estate Co., Ltd. 7 June 2018 Limited liability company  The PRC Property development 620,000,000 620,000,000 21% 27%
ERBEHEXERAR 2018£6A7H ERERRA hE VIESES 620,000,000 620000000  27% 2%
Deqing Jinlan Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1 August 2018 Limited liability company  The PRC Property development 400,000,000 400,000,000 67% 34%
EEGREZERAR 2018%8A1H EREARA il VEES 400,000,000 400000000 67% 34%
Hangzhou Dexin Jinyu Real Estate 13 July 2018 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 300,000,000 300,000,000 26% 24%
Co., Ltd.
MAEEBEELERAR 018%7R138  BRAMARE hEl nERE 300,000,000 300000000 26% 24%

Wenzhou Dexin Dongchen Real 12 July 2018 Limited liability company  The PRC Property development 500,000,000 500,000,000 26% 26%
Estate Co., Ltd.
ANEERREZARAT 018%7R128  BREAAH hE nERE 500,000,000 500,000,000 26% 26%
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40. PARTICULARS OF
SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

280

Name of companies

AR

Deqing Dening Real Estate Co., Ltd. 16 May 2017 Limited liability company  The PRC Property development
EEEEELERAT 17858168 BREAAH i VIEE

Wenzhou Dexin Ourun Estate 21 February 2017 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note a)

RNEEREERAT (Hita) 1728218 ERELEATF HE EES

Deqing Jinhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 9 October 2017 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development

ERRBERARAT 17810898 BREAAH 1 VELES

Wuhan Dexin Junchen Real Estate 20 August 2018 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

REREEREXERARLA 18F8A08  EREALA HE VELES

Nanjing Dexin Yunhu Intelligent 25 July 2018 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development
Technology Co., Ltd.

BRERENBEHRERAR 01857458  BREALH hE VELES

Ruian Dexin Xinchen Real Estate 28 January 2019 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development
Co., Ltd.

BRTEEEREFERAA 2019F1A268  BREFLR ] YEE

Ningbo Jingian Real Estate 12 March 2019 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development
Development Co., Ltd.

ERSHFHERRERAD 19838128 BREARH hEl VELES

Yongjia Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd. 6 June 2019 Limited liability company  The PRC Property development

KEREEFARAR 201956468 EREEAT il VIELE

Wenzhou Dexin Donghu Real Estate 19 June 2020 Limited liability company  The PRC Property development
Co., Ltd.

RNEERAELERAA 2000868198 BREMAR HE VELES

Notes: Biat -

(@) The Group indirectly hold the equity interest in these companies (@)

through layers of holding structures and the Group has control over
the board of directors of these companies who can make majority
votes to decide the key financial and operating decisions of these
companies. The proportion of equity interests as disclosed above

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

B AV
KB

Type of legal status

ERBARS

Place of
operation/
establishment
Rt

represent the effective equity interests attributable to the Group.

40. fif BB 2 Rl =¥ 15 ()

Principal
activities

IEER

Registered/

Issued capital

EGI S
RMB
ABS

15,000,000
15,000,000
100,000,000

100,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000

50,000,000

50,000,000
50,000,000

50,000,000
50,000,000

50,000,000
200,000,000

200,000,000
105,000,000
105,000,000
1,800,000,000

1,800,000,000

700,000,000
700,000,000
100,000,000

100,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000

50,000,000

50,000,000
50,000,000

50,000,000
50,000,000

50,000,000
200,000,000

200,000,000
105,000,000
105,000,000
1,800,000,000

1,800,000,000

Proportion of
ownership interest

Vil {30

31 December

12831A
2021 2020
2021F | 2020F
32% 32%
32% 32%
32% 32%

32% 32%

67% 34%
67% 34%
100% 100%

100% 100%
43% 51%

43% 51%

100% 100%
100% 100%
35% 35%
36% 35%
2% 47%
2% 47%
44% 40%
44% 40%

AEBEBAEREBEEAMESAZER
AIRORLHE - BEAEEENEHZED
EEE  EMENELSHIREIRATEZ
ZERAHARVBREEARAEK - LXEED
RRAEELL Bl B BN AR E M E R -
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40. PARTICULARS OF 40. Mt B A~ R sE 18 (48)

SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

(b) The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results and net
assets of the Group. To give full details of subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

() The names of certain of the companies referred to in these
consolidated financial statements represent management’s best effort
in translation of the Chinese names of these companies as no English
names have been registered or available.

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 41.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed
of interests in a number of subsidiaries to certain third parties.
Details of the disposals are as follows:

(o)

ERITEERRIBFEAKEEEAR
BEFENAEENTIENBAR - E=E
RE - RHUZIAMBERARNFERERA

ZEFAPVBRRMBAE T AR EMHE
RERBHZERAANTIXERERAE
HEE RERZSF /AL EEML
BT

HEMRE AR

HE2021F12A31HILFE - A%EM
ETE=THEETHWEARMES - &
EFHBENAT :

As at
31 December
2021

720214
12A31H
RMB’000
ARET T

Cash received B R & 61,899
Fair value of investments in joint ventures and associates upon transfer from subsidiaries
EfRBATERERNAERERBEATINREN AR EE 3,578
65,477
Total net asset disposal of H & #F & & (75,640)
Non-controlling interest disposed of H & JEiZ i 25 22,814
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A &R 12,651
Cash proceeds from disposal, net of cash disposed of H&E ZFi53IRE KB HERS
— From third parties — KBE=% 61,899
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiaries disposal of HEMBARIMIE S MRS EEY (85,251)
Net cash inflow for disposal of subsidiaries & H1B A RIHIFIRE A 26,648

281



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHhEZERERLAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ (= /\Zl-ﬁ%#&’%% Bﬁ-?

42. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE RAEADNTNEERBRRAEE
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY &)
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
ASSETS B E
Non-current assets R EE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A FIHIIEE 1,738,541 1,738,541
Amounts due from subsidiaries J& U} B 2 7 7E 2,894,751 3,562,317
4,633,292 5,300,858
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a shareholder J& U — 2 i% 5 5018 - 322
Amount due from an associate & —EEE S N FIFIA 104,694 73,640
Other receivables and prepayments £ fib & U 7 IE'&%H RIE 1,316 1,145
Restricted Cash X [RHIIR& - 923,273
Cash and cash equivalents 34 NI & % B 95,231 238,561
201,241 1,236,941
Total assets EEAE 4,834,533 6,537,799
EQUITY ##&%
Share capital J&7< 9,200 9,200
Reserves 1 a 1,168,524 2,048,401
1,177,724 2,057,601
LIABILITIES &1&
Current liabilities BB & &
Borrowings f& 3,597,522 1,824,994
Trade and other payables & 5 & H it fE {5k 797 350
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfHIEB A _J/AIE 58,490 58,490
3,656,809 1,883,834
Non-current liabilities R B & &
Borrowings &3k - 2,596,364
Total liabilities B &4 % 3,656,809 4,480,198
Total equity and liabilities #E&Z R B EHEE 4,834,533 6,537,799
The balance sheet of the Company was approved and authorised KAREEBBERN2022F5 813 HES
for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 May 2022 and was SR EMKETR  ITRXREEFEH
signed on its behalf by: 2o
Hu Yiping Shan Bei
tH—F BE
Director Director
EE EF
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42. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE RAENTNEEABRKRAGS
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY B (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Reserve movements of the Company (a) XA R#EETH
Share Other | Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
R4 RE Hith ks 2R @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET R ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 420201 51H 1,109,986 1,727,906 (89,637) 2,748,255
Final dividend for 2019 2019F K fiz & (216,107) - - (216,107)
Loss for the year FREE - - (483,747) (483,747)
At 31 December 2020 742020512831 H 893,879 1,727,906 (573,384) 2,048,401
At 1 January 2021 #2021%5181H 893,879 1,727,906 (573,384) 2,048,401
Final dividend for 2020 20204 R B & (297,148) - - (297,148)
Loss for the year FREE - - (582,729) (582,729)
At 31 December 2021 A2021E12831H 596,731 1,727,906 (1,156,113) 1,168,524
VA
43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 3. HEHEREE
PERIOD
The Company has redeemed the US$200,000,000 11.875% KA ERBERRKEHZRREERNSRE
Senior Notes due 2022 in full in accordance with the terms and 183,010,000% st R R 5t 2 2 H3 B &9 7
conditions at the outstanding principal amount of US$183,010,000 IS 5’5%5(@%@2022&%”%9']200 000,000
together with interest accrued to the maturity date, with a total TL11.875% B A 2K - KRR BB
redemption amount of approximately US$188,444,000 paid by fB Ol s A S 88,444,000%75 o fE—3F
the Company at maturity. Further details are disclosed in the HERERARA A HF2022F4 258
announcement of the Company dated 25 April 2022. N

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant events B L EEN  RBEEHREEERN
after the reporting period and up to the date of this consolidated FEUBRAEMEEAMERZER -
financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

20174 2018 20194 20204 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR| AR®TR| AR®TR| AR®TR

Revenue YA 6,553,989 8,212,074 9,512,995 15,874,124 23,109,068
Profit before income tax Ff{5%: A 1,218,061 2,866,649 2,981,214 3,105,460 3,614,173
Income tax expenses PS8BS (378,692)  (1,025,602) (724,587) (844,965)  (1,237,433)
Profit for the year A F;H 839,369 1,841,047 2,256,627 2,260,495 2,376,740
Other comprehensive income

HE 2wk - - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year
FALHENERRE 839,369 1,841,047 2,256,627 2,260,495 2,376,740

Attributable to:

AT FEG -
Owners of the Company
VIN/NEIESZEDN 737,543 1,453,456 1,556,514 1,192,502 941,456
Non-controlling interests
FEFE AR = 101,826 387,591 700,113 1,067,993 1,435,284
839,369 1,841,047 2,256,627 2,260,495 2,376,740
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2017 & 2018 20194 20204 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR%ET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Total assets & E &5 35,417,221 49,609,447 67,287,000 96,603,301 116,733,511
Total liabilities B E42%E (33,233,472) (42,740,810) (56,552,272) (79,992,497) (94,666,006)
Net assets &&= /FE 2,183,749 6,868,637 10,734,728 16,610,804 22,067,505

Equity attributable to owners of the

Company ANQ BB A FE(E#EZS 1,514,799 2,473,466 5,013,485 5,845,282 6,074,215
Non-controlling interests JF{Z A 2E 668,950 4,395,171 5,721,243 10,765,522 15,993,290
Total equity x5 4858 2,183,749 6,868,637 10,734,728 16,610,804 22,067,505
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